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OFFICIAL STATEMENT Ratings:
WIS ontinuipacioy oo Dated: February 1,2022 S&F:  “AA-" (stable outlook)
Fitch: “AA™ (positive outlook)
(see "OTHER INFORMATION
NEW ISSUE - Book-Entry-Only - Ratings" herein)

Interest on the Bonds will be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law. See "TAX MATTERS" herein.

561,550,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
(Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Connties)
SALES TAX REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2022

Dated Date: February 15, 2012 Due: July 1, 2022 and January 1, as shown on page 2
Interest to acerue from Delivery Date

Pavment TERMS, . . Interest on the $61,550,000 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2022
(the “Bonds™) will accrue from the “Delivery Date™, will be payable January 1 and July 1 of each year commencing July 1, 2022, until
maturity or prior redemption, and will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The definitive
Bronds will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC") pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial ownership of the Bonds may be acquired in denominations
of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a maturity, Ne physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners
thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will
make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the
Bonds. See "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System® herein. The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas (see "THE BONDS - Paying Agent/Registrar").

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE. . . The Bonds are being issued by the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City") pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 334, Texas Local Government Code, as amended and Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended and an ordinance adopted
December 14, 2021 (the “Bond Ordinance™). In the Bond Ordinance the City eCouncil delegated pricing of the Bonds to a “Pricing Officer”
whao approved o Pricing Certificate which contwined the final terms of sale and completed the sale of the Bonds (the Boad Ordinance and the
Pricing Certificaie are jointly refermed to as the “Ordinance”). (see “THE BONDS - Auihority for Issuance™).

The Bonds ave papable solely by a pledge of and liew on the Pledged Revenes (defined herein) described finther in the Ordinance and not
Srowi any other reven iies, properties or Iicoie of the City,

PURPOSE. . . Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i} refund a portion of the City’s owistanding debt described in Schedule
I (the “Refunded Obligations™) for debt service savings, and (i) pay the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

CUSIP PREFIX: 386166

MATURITY SCHEDULE & 9 DICIT CUSIP
Shown on Page 2

LEGALITY . .. The Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and received by the initial purchaser (the “Initial Purchaser™) and
subject to the approving opinicn of the Atiorney General of Texas and the opinion of Norion Rose Fulbright US LLP., Bond Counsel,
Dallas, Texas (see Appendix €, “Form of Bond Counsel's Opinion™). Certain legal matters will be passed upon by West & Associates,
L.L.P,, as Disclosure Counsel for the City.

DELVERY. .. Tt is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through DTC, on February 24, 2022,

BAIRD
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MATURITY SCHEDULE CUSIP Prefix: 38616610

Principal Maturicy  Interest  Initial CUSIP
Amount Date Rate _ Yield  Suffin”

$ 330000 WN022 3000%  0.600% HZ8
580,000 17142023 3.000%  D.950% 1Al
GO0000 112024 3.000% 13500 IB%
GI5000 /2025 3.000%  1.600% c7
635,000 112026 3.000% 1.8004% o5
3,535,000  VIZ0ZT  3.000% 1.900% JE3
1645000 V12028 3.000%  2.000%% JF0
3,740,000 1/1/2029  2.100% 21000 JGR
3820000 112030 2.200% 2.2000% JHE
3905000 L2031 2.300% 23007 iz
3,995,000 1172032 2400% 2.400% IKS
4,100,000 1172033 2.500%  2.500% L7
4205000 112034 2.600%  2.600% M3
4315000 1122035 2700%  2.700% IN3
4435000 1712036 2.800°%  2.800% flid 3
4,565,000 11/2037  2.850% 2.850% 106

$14,530,000 3.000% Term Bond due January I, 2040 at a Price of 100.000% to Yield 3.000% - CUSIP No. *7JT0

{Interest to accrue from Delivery Date)

CUSIP is a regi d trademark of the Ameni Bankers A iation. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global
Services, managed by $&P Global Market Intelligence on behalf of the American Bankers Association. This data is not intended
to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP Serviees, The City, the Financial Advisor and
the Initial Purchaser take no responsibility for the selection or ac y of such numbers.

OFTIONAL REDEMETION. . . The City reserves the right, at its oplion, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after January 1,
2033, in whole or in part in principal amounts of 35,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on January 1, 2032, or any date thereafter, al the
par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption (see “THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds™).

ManpaTory SiniinG Funn REpEmeTion, - . The Bonds maturing on January 1, 2040 (the “Term Bonds") are subjeet to mandatory
sinking fund redemption in part prior to maturity st a price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date as described under “THE
BONDS — Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.”
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NORTOM ROSE FULERIGHT
Page 2 of Legal Opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
Re:  "City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series
2022°

City and are payable solely from and equally and ratably secured by a lien on and pledge of the
Pledged Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) including receipts from a local sales and use
tax, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof may be affected by bankruptey, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights or the exercise of
judicial discretion in accordance with the general principles of equity.

2 The Escrow Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered and,
assuming the due authorization, execution or acceptance, and delivery thereof by the Escrow
Agent, is a binding and enforceable agreement in accordance with its terms and the outstanding
obligations refunded, discharged, paid and retired with the proceeds of the Bonds have been
defeased and are regarded as being outstanding only for the purpose of receiving payment from
the funds held in a fund with the Escrow Agent, pursuant to the Escrow Agreement and in
accordance with the provisions of Texas Govemnment Code, Chapter 1207, as amended. In
rendering this opinion, we have relied upon the special report of the Accountanis as to the
sufficiency of cash and investments deposited with the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement for the purposes of paying the outstanding obligations refunded and to be retired with
the proceeds of the Bonds and the interest thereon.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are
further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof, We assume no duty to update or
supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to our
attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective.
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result; rather, such opinions represent our legal
judgment based upon our review of existing law that we deem relevant to such opinions and In
reliance upon the representations and covenants referenced above.

103806882.2/1001 130278
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THE AGREEMENTS QF THE CITY AND OTHERS RELATED TO THE RONDE ARE CONTAINED SOLELY IN THE CONTRACTS DESCRIBED HEREIN. NEITHER
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANT OTHER STATEMENT MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE BONDS IS TO' BE CONSTRUED
AS CONSTITUTING AN AGREEMENT WITIH THE PURCHASERS OF THE OBLIGATIONS. INVESTORS SHOULD READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
INCLUDING THE SCHEDULES AND ALL APPENINCES ATTACHED HERETO. 7O OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO MAKING AN INFORMED
INVESTUENT DECISION,

THE BONDS ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION IWITH THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND CONSEQUENTLY HAVE
NOT BEEN REGISTERED THEREWITH. THE REGISTRATION, (UALIFICATION, O EXEMPTION OF THE BONDY IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS OF THE JURISINCTIONS IN WHICH THE BONDS HAVE BEEN REGISTERED, QUALIFIED, OR EXEMFTED SHOULD NOT
BE REGARDED A5 A RECOMMENDATION THERECHF.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary is subject in all respects 1o the more complete information and definitions contained or incorporated in this Official
Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement., No person is
authorized to detach this summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

THECITY coooiiniiisissiinssisinsn. The City of Grand Prairie (the “City™) ts a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the
State of Texas (the “Stare™), located in Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties, Texas. The City covers
approximately 81 square miles (see "INTRODUCTION - Description of City").

THEBONDS ..ccooecerecamreacnscnienee. The Bonds ave issued as $61,550,000 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2022,
The Bonds are issued as serfal bonds to mature on July 1, 2022 and on January | in each of the
wears 2023 through 2037, inclusive and as a Term Bond maturing January 1, 2040 (see “THE
BONDS - Deseription of the Bonds™ and “THE BONDS - Mandatory Sinking Fund
Redemption™),

PAYMENT OF INTEREST .......... Interast on the Bonds accrues from the date of the initial delivery of the Bonds, anticipated to be
February 24, 2022, and is payabbe July 1, 2022 and each January 1 and July 1| thereafier until
maturity or prior redemption (see "THE BONDS - Description of the Bonds", “THE BONDS —
Optional  Redemption of the Bonds™ and “THE BOWDS - Mandatory Sinking Fund
Redemption™),

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE ..... The Bonds are issued pursuant to the general laws of the State, including particularly, Texas
Local Govemment Code, Chapter 334, as amended, Texas Government Code, Chapter 1207, as
amended, and the Ordinance (see "THE BONDS - Authority for Issuance of the Bonds™).

SecuriTy For THE Bonos ... The Bonds ave special obligations of the City, and are payable solely from and secured by a pledge
of the "Pledged Revenues” (as defined herein) received by the City, to wit: the receipts firom a % of
190 sales and use tax levied within the City for the benefit of the City {see "THE BONDS - Secutity
and Source of Payment®),

REDEMPTION OF

THEBONDS........cooooinnnnen The City reserves the right. at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after
January 1, 2033, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof, on January 1, 2032 or any date thereafier, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest
to the date of redemption (see “THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds™ and “THE
BONDS — Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption™).

TAX STATUScrmmmsmssimssnmsneiens KNMETESE 00 the Bonds will be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes under
existing law. See “TAX MATTERS™ herein,

USE OF PROCEEDS .................... Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) refund a portion of the City®s outstanding
debt described in Schedule 1 (the "Refunded Obligations™) for debt service savings, and (ii) pay
the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

RATINGS .o . The Bonds have been rated “A A" (positive outlook) by Fitch Ratings, Inc. (“Fitch”) and “AA-"

(stable outlook) by S&P Global Ratings, a division of $&P Global Ratings Inc., {(“S&P™) (sce
"OTHER INFORMATION - Ratings").

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM... The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee
of DTC putsant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial ownership of the
Bonds may be acquired in denominations of 55,000 or integral multiples thereof. No phiysical
delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof, Principal of, premivm, if
any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Apent/Registrar to Cede & Co.,
which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for
subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds (see “THE BONDS - Book-Entry-
Only System™).

NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Norten Rose Fulbright US LLP
2200 Ross Avenue, Sulte 3600
Dallas, Texas 75201-7932
Urited States

[closing date]

Tel +1 214 855 BOCO
Fax +1 214 855 8200
nortenrosefulbright.com

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Sales Tax
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2022, dated February 15, 2022, in the principal
amount of $61,550,000 (the “Bonds”), we have examined into their issuance by the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas (the “City"), solely to express legal opinions as to the validity of the Bonds, the
defeasance and discharge of the City's outstanding obligations being refunded by the Bonds and
for no other purpose. We have not been requested fo investigate or verify, and we neither
expressly nor by implication render herein any opinion concerning, the financial condition or
capabilities of the City, the disclosure of any financial or statistical information or data pertaining
to the City and used in the sale of the Bonds, or the sufficiency of the security for or the value or
marketability of the Bonds.

THE BONDS are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof (within a maturity). The Bonds mature on July 1, 2022 and January 1 in
each of the years specified in a pricing certificate (the “Pricing Certificate”) executed pursuant fo
an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the
“Bond Ordinance" and, jointly with the Pricing Certificate, the “Ordinance”), unless redeemed prior
to maturity in accordance with the terms stated on the Bonds. The Bonds accrue interest from
the dates, at the rates, and in the manner and interest is payable on the dates, all as provided in
the Ordinance.

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS herein we have examined and rely upon (i) original or certified
copies of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including the Ordinance an
Escrow Agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) between the City and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A. (the “Escrow Agent’), a special report of Samuel Klein and Company,
Certified Public Accountants (the "Accountants”) and an examination of the initial Bond executed
and delivered by the City (which we found to be in due form and properly executed);
(i} certifications of officers of the City relating to certain facts within the knowledge and contral of
the City and (iii) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the
examination of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, we have assumed the
authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of all
documents submitted to us as certified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained in
such documents and certifications.

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS OUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the
State of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized by the City and, when issued in compliance
with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and enfarceable obligations of the

Morton Rose Fulbight US LLP is a limiled labiity parinership registerad under the laws of Texas. 103809862 211001185278

Merton Rose Fulbnghl US LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright LLP, Norfon Rose Fulbrighl Australia, Morton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP end Norton Rose
Fulbright South Africa Inc are separste legal entites and & of them are membess of Norton Rose Fulbright Viersin, & Swiss verein Noron Rose Fulbiigh
Varain helps coordinate the aclivitios of the membera bul dees not Ruelf provide legal services to dlienis. Details of each entity, with cerlaln regulstory
infarmalion. are available al noftonrosafulbright.com
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For additional information regarding the City, please contact:

Curyn Riggs

priggsEnGPTX g

Chief Financial Officer
City of Grand Prairie

317 College Sireet

Girand Prairie, Texas 75050
{972)237-8090

Hrady Olsen

bolsen@ GPTX. oz
“Treasury and Debt Manager
City of CGirand Prairic

317 Caollege Strect

Grand Prairie, Texas 75050
(972) 237-8099

Jim S. Sabonis

Jim.sabonisfahilltopsecurties com
mg.

Hilltop Securities Ine.

717 N Harwood Street, Suite 3400

Dallas, Texas 75201

(2149534195

Andre Ayala

andre avalu@hillopsecurities.com
Senior Vice President

Hilllop Securities Inc.

717 N, Harwoad Streel, Saite 3400
Dallas, Texas 75201
(214)953-4184
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CITY OFFICIALS, STAFF AND CONSULTANTS

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Lengh of Term
Service Expires Oecupation
Ron Jensen 17 Years May 2022 President and Owner, Control Products
Mayor
Jorja Jakson Clenson 6 Years May 20123 President, Stere Service Inc.
Place 1 - Distriet |
Denwis King 1 Year May 2022 Pastor
Plice 2 - District 2
Mike Ded Bosque 2 Years May 2023 Founder/CED, [ntire Health
Place 3 - District 3
Mayor Pro-Tem
John Lopez I Year May 2022 Adminisirative Supervisor at the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas
Place 4 - Disirict 4
Cole Humphuey s 1 Yewr Muy 2024 Owner, Austin Insurance
Place 5 - District 5
Kurt Johnson <] Year May 2024 Ciovernment Public Servant, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Place & - Digtrict 6
Jeff Copeland 6 Yemrs May 2023 President, Federal Title, Inc.
Place 7 - At Large
Steve Ezeonu <1 Year My 2024 Educator
Place B - Al Large
SELECTED ADMINISTHATIVE STAFF
Lengh of Service Total Municipal
HName Posithon In Grand Praivie Governnient Experience
Steve Dyve Cily Manager 0 Years 3 Years
Cheryl De Leon Deputy City M anager 2 Year 20 Years
Rill Hills Meputy City Mansger 32 Years 45 Vears
i gmn M ahan Cily Attomey 9 Years 11 Years
M onm Lisn Galicia Clty Secretary 17 Yeurs 17 Years
Caryn Riggs Chiet Finencial Ofticer =1 Year 17 Years
Hrady (Hsen Treasury and Debt Manapey 2 Vewr 7 years
Kathbeen M ercer Budget Director 19 Years 21 Yewrs
Gabe Jolinson Public Works Director 7 Years 11 Years
CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS
Dallas, Texas
Bond Counsel ..Morton Rose Fulbright US LLP

Disclosure Counsel

Dallas, Texas
West & A i L.LP,

Financial Advisor

.. Dallas, Texas
Hilltop Securities Inc.

Dallas, Texas

APPENDI

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Stafements
September 30, 2020

0. Tax Abatements and Economic Incentive Agreements

The City has incentive agreements with companies which may refund or rebate cerfain amounts of faxes
based on performance indicators. These agreements are governed by Chapter 312 of the Texas Local
Government Code, Recipients may be eligible basad on their impact to the City's economy, as usually
measured by job creation. Agreements may also contain recapture or ‘clawback' provisions In the event
of non-performance of the agreement standards. The City's Management Services division reviews the
performance of the companias under these agreements for their compliance with staled standards. As
of the 2019 certified roll [used for 2020 fiscal year| the City's abaterent agreements with three companies
resulted in $5,584,790 in appraised values, totaling $57.518 in taxes cbated on the 2019 certified tax ol
(used for the 2020 fiscal year).

P. Subsequent Events
In February 2021, the City issued $23,215,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Bonds, Series 2021. Procesds from the sale ore expected fo be used to acquire. construct. improve, and

equip facilities; and construct sfreet improvements.

The City has evaluated all ofher events or transactions that occurred after September 30, 2020 up through
March 11, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

OFFICIAL STATEMENT
RELATING TO

561,550,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
SALES TAX REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, TAXARBLE SERIES 2022

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the maturity schedule, Schedule 1 and the Appendices hereta, provides certain information
regarding the issuance of $61,550,000 City of Grand Prairie, Texas Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2022,
Capitalized terms used in this Official § have the same ings assigned fo such terms in the ordinance adopted December
14, 2021 {the “Bond Ordinance™). In the Bond Ordinance the City Council delegated pricing of the Bonds 1o a “Pricing Officer” who
has approved a Pricing Certificate which contains the final terms of sale and has completed the sale of the Bonds except as otherwise
indicated herein (see “SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE"), The Bond Ordinance and the Pricing Certificate are
jointly referred to as the *Ordinance™,

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Bonds and certain information regarding the City and its finances. All
deseriptions of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in their entirety by reference to each such
document. Copies of such documents may be obizined from the City's Financial Advisor, Hilltop Securities Inc., Dallas, Texas.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY. . . The City is a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the State of Texas (the “State™),
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, including the City's home rule charter (the “Home Rule Charter™). The
City first adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1948, The City operates under a Council/Manager form of government with a City
Council comprised of the Mayor and eight Councilmembers who are elected for staggered two-year terms. The City Manager is
the chief administrative officer for the City. Seme of the services that the Cily provides are: public safety (police and fire
protection), highways and streets, water and sanitary sewer utilities, health and social services, culture-recreation, public
transportation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The 2010 Census population for
the City was 175,396, while the 2020 Census population was 196,100. The estimated 2022 population is 200,640. The City covers
approximately 81 square miles.

INFECTIOUS DISEASE OUTBREAK — COVID-19... In March 2020, the World Health Organization and the President of the United
States separately declared the outhresk of a respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") to be 2 public health
emergency. On March 13, 2020, the Governor of Texas (the "Governar') declared a state of disaster for all counties in the State
hecause of the effects of COVID-19, Subsequently, in response 1o a rise in COVID-19 infections in the State and pursuant to the
Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code, the Governor issued a number of exceutive orders intended to help limit the spread
of COVID-19 and mitigate injury and the loss of life, including limitations imposed on business operations, social gatherings and
other activitics.,

Over the ensuing vear, COVID-19 negatively affected commerce, travel and businesses locally and globally, and negatively
affected economic growth worldwide and within the 118, the State and the City. Following the widespread release and distribution
of varions COVID-19 vaccines beginning in December 2020 and a decrease in active COVID-19 cases generally in the United
States, state governments (including Texas) have started fo 1ift business and social limitations associated with COVID-19. Under
executive orders in effect as of the date of this Official Statement, there are no COVID-19 related operating limits for any business
or other establishment in Texas, The Governor retains the right o impose additional restrictions on activities if necded in arder 1o
mitigate the effects of COVID-19. Additional information regarding exceulive orders issued by the Governor is aceessible on the
website of the Governor at https://zov.texas.gov/. Neither the information on, nor accessed through, such website of the Governor
is incorporated by reference, either expressly or by implication, into this Official Statement.

With the easing or removal of associated ovemmental restrictions, cconomic activity has increased. However, there are no
assurances that economic activity will continue or increase at the same rate as before the COVID-19 pandemic or following the
easing or removal of restrictions, especially if there are future outbreaks of COVID-19 or variants of COVID-19, The COVID-19
pandemic may result in lasting changes in some bus and social practices, which could affect business activity and limit the:
growih of or reduce the City's ad valorem and sales tax collections. In addition, further or extended reductions in the value of stocks
and ather investments could impsct employee retirement plans or otber funds and could require actions by the State. The City
cannot predict the long-term economic effect of COVID-19 ot the effect of any future outbreak of COVID-19, or variants of
COVID-19, or a similar virus on the City's operations or financial condition.

Some of the financial and operating data contained herein are as of dates and for periods prior to the economic impact of COVID-
19 and measures instituted to slow it. Accordingly, such information is not necessarily indicative of the current financial condition
or future prospects of the City. The City continues to manitor the spread of COVID-19 and is working with lacal, State, and national
agencies to address the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic upon the City, While the cxtent of the impact of COVID-19
an the City cannot be fully quantified at this time, the continued outbreak of COVID-19 could have an adverse effect on the City's
operations and financial condition, and the effect could be material. Sec "CENTRAL PARK SALES TAX —Tapie 2 - HISTORICAL
CITY RECEIPTS OF ¥4% EQUIVALENT SALES Tax™ and “- CALCULATION OF DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE FOR THE Bonps.”
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
; Notes te the Basic Financial Statements
PLAN OF FINANCING
- September 30, 2020

PURPOSE . ., Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) refund a portion of the City's outstanding debi described in
Schedule | (the “Refunded Obligations™) for debt service savings, and (if) pay the costs assaciated with the issuance of the Bonds. N. Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

REFUNDED OBLIGATIONS... The Refunded Obligations are being redeemed on the dates set forth in Schedule | hereto (collectively,

the “Redemption Date™). The principal and interest due on the Refunded Obligations aie 1w be paid on the Redemption Date from The City maintains five enterprise funds — water and wastewater, solid waste, golf, airport, and

fursds to be deposited pursuant to a certain escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust storm water utiiity activities. At September 30, 2020, the Municipal Airport Fund had outstanding revenue-
Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas {the "Escrow Agent”). The Ordinance provides that from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds backed certfificates of obligations. Segment infarmation for this Fund is as follows:

received firom the Initial Purchaser and other available fimds of the City, if any, the City will deposit with the Escrow Agent an

amount that will be sufficient to accomplish the discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date. Muricipal

Sueh funds will be held by the Escrow Agent in a special escrow account (the “Escrow Fund”) and used to purchase direct

irpor!

noncallable obligations of the United States of America (the “Escrowed Securities”). Under the Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Condersed statlement of nel position: L1
Fund is irvevocably pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations, Curent assels § 798,634
Samuel Klein and Company, in conjunction with Public Finance Partners LLC, will issue its report (the "Repor™) verifying at the E:::i: :j,':lm R '“'523'::2
time of delivery of the Bonds to the Initial Purchasers thereof the mathematical accuracy of the schedules that demonstiate the S
Escrowed Securities will mature and pay interest in such amounts which, together with uninvested funds, if any, in the Escrow Total ossets and delerred oul lows of resowrces 17.241.855
Fund, will be sufficient 1o pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations. Such maturing principal of -
and interest on the Escrow Securities will not be available to pay the Bonds (see “VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL Current flablilties 527,369
COMPUTATIONS™), Long-term liakilities EFD.668

Defered inflows of rescurces 42911

By the deposit of the Escrow Securities and cash, if necessary, with the Fscrow Agent pursuant 1o the Escrow Agreement, the City o
will have effected the defeasance of all of the Refunded Obligations in accordance with State law and in reliance upon the Report, Tatalliabilities and dsferred inflows of resources 1440548
Ttis the opinion of Bond Counsel that as u result of such defeasance and in reliance upon the Report, the Refunded Dbligations will

; e . et position: Met investment incopital assets 15,7B3.555
be outstanding only for the purpose of receiving payments from the Escrowed Securities and any cash held for such purpose by the et position: Unrestriclad 117,352
Escrow Agent and such Refunded Obligations will not be deemed as being outstanding obligations of the City payable from sales ' ——
taxes nor for the purpose of applying any limitation on the issuance of deb. Total net pasiion 3 15900907
—
Use OF PROCEEDS , ., The proceeds from the sule of the Bonds will be applied approximately as follows: Condensed statement of rev enues, expenses ond changes in net posifion:
Soles to customers 5 1,205 500
Irdargov ermmenial revenuve 746,306
SOURCES OF FUNDS: Miscellaneous 701,148
Par Amount of Bonds 361,556,000.00 Total t
% al O [ge reven
Pt 467 68815 otal operating revenues 2,002.954
TOTAL SOURCES: $62,012,688.15 Depraciofion 832,284
Diher operaling expenses L1377z
USES OF FUNDS: Tolol operating expensas 2,478,058
Deposit to Refunding Escrow Fund 360,805,000 45
Costs of Issuance 283,034.10 Intarest sxpaiie o [287é0]
Initial Purchaser’s Discount £34,554.60 Toiol ranoperofing revenues [experses| (38,740}
TOTAL USES: SGZEUIEEGSB.IS T
Loss before transfers [531.844)
Tronsiars in 421,633
Transters aut {48,000)
Chaonge innet position 41,769
Net position af the baglnring of the year 15,859,138
(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.) Net posliion ot the end of the year 3 15500907
Condersed stalernent of cash fiows:
et cash provided (used) by:
Cperating octivities 446533
Noncapital financing aclivities 573633
Capital ond relol ed financing activities (1.677.200)
Investing activities .
Begirning cash ond cash equivalent bolances 983,907
Ending cash and cash equivalent balances ] 347 271
—_—
&

89



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Motes to the Basic Financial Staterments
September 30, 2020

Mountain Creek Regional Wastewater Systern Contract (System

The City entered into a contract in 2002 which it in effect for the entire useful life of the System. Although
the City does not yet deliver flows fo this System, the City is obligated to pay annual minimum fees
equivalent to 21.9 milion gallons of flow. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the City paid
$40,348 to the System.

Master and Other Agreements

The City and Texas NextStage, LP |Next$tage) entered inta agreements [development agreements, lease
agreements and other ancillary agreements) on January 10, 2001, o design, develop and construct a
performance hall (Performance Hall), Construction of the Performance Hall began in July 2000 and was
completed in February 2001. Under the agreements, the City purchased the Performance Hall from
NextStage for $15 million with the proceeds from the $17.% million TIF tax and tox incrernent certificate of
obligation bond issue in fiscal year 2001, NexiStage initially leased the Performance Hall from the City
under o twenty one-year lease. Effective September 18, 2002, Anschutz Texas, L. P. assumed the lease
obligations of NextStage and became lessee and operator of the Performance Hall. The lease between
the City and Anschulz Texas, L. P. expires January 23, 2023. Monthly lease payments from the lessee of the
Performance Hall are used to pay debt service on bonds issued by the City for the purchase of the
Performance Hall.

The City and the Texas Airhogs Baseball Club entered into agreements [development, lease, and other
ancillary agreements) on June 26, 2007 to develop, construct and operafe a minor league professional
baseball stadium. The funding for the stadium was accomplished through a one-eighth cent sales tax
approved by the citizens of Grand Praie. Construction began in July 2007 and was completed in
hary 2008.

Ground Lease - The City entered into a lsase agreement with the Sports Corporation for the land on which
the stadium was built, The lease runs through June 25, 2036 with an annual base rent of $50,000.

stadium Lease — On October 19, 2014, the City entered into a four-year lease agreement with Mextel
Pramotional, LLC. In addition to Aimogs home baseball games, Nextel has unlimiled use of the Stadium
te hold other sporfing and entertainment events. Nextel pays the City, in advance, a monfhly lease
payment of $7,137 and fen percent of the total net profit generated by Meltex at, in, or through the
stadiurn. Nextel is respansible for all uiility services and the City is responsible for the maintenance of the
building, lancscaping, irgation, art, and playgrounds.

nstruction Commitments
The City has several approved outstanding major capital projects as of September 30, 2020, The City's
total committed but unexpended expenditures for such authorized capital projects af year-end

approximates $85,569,753. Funding for these contracts will be received through various capital projects
funds and enterprise funds.
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THE BONDS

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS . . . The Bonds are dated February 15, 2022 and mature on July 1, 2022 and January 1 in each of the
vears and in the amounts shown on page 2 hereof. Interest will be computed on the basis af a 360-day year consisting of twelve
30-day months, and will be payable on July | and lanuary 1 in esch year, commencing July 1, 2022 until maturity or priot
redemption. The definitive Bends will be issued only in fully registered form in any integral multiple of $5.000 for any one maturity
and will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co,, the nominee of The Depasitory Trust Company, New Yark, New
York, {"DTC") pursuent to the Book=Entry-Only System described herein, No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to
the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for
subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. See "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein.

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . . . The Bonds are being issued pursuant o the Constitution and peneral laws of the State of Texas,
particularly Chapter 334, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the “Act™), Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as
amended, and the Ordinance.

SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT . . . The Bonds are special obligations of the City, payable solely from a pledge of the “Pledged
Revenues™ (as defined in the Ordinance) received by the City, to wit: the receipts from a ¥ of 1% sales and use lax levied for the
benefit of the City (the “Central Park Sales Tax") pursuant to the Act and an election held n the City on May 10, 2014, The Bonds do

niot constitute a legal or equitable, pledge, charge, lien or encumbrance upon any property of the City except with respect to the "Pledged
Revenues,”

The Bands mey not be paid in whole or in part from any property taxes raised or to be raised by the City and do not constitute a debt
of and do nof give rise to a elsim for payment against the City, except as to the Ceniral Park Sales Tax revenues held by the City and
required to be paid to the City. Neither the State, the City nor any political subdivision or agency of the State shall be obligated to pay
the Bonds or the interest thereon, and neither the faith and eredit nor the taxing power of the State, the City or any other political
subdivision or agency thereof is pledged 1o the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, except as noted above.

The Act contains no provisiens which would allow the voiers of the City to either reduce ot repeal the Sales Tax. Should the Legislatre
ever enact such an amendment to the Act to allow for the reduction or repeal of the Sales Tax, the Attorney General of Texas has
rendered an Opinion (Opinion No. DM-137) relating to sales tax obligations and therein stated a "reduction in the sales tax rate, or a
limitation on the amount of time the 1ax may be collected, may not be applied w0 any bonds issued prior to the date of the rollback
election,” In so opining, the Attomey General noted any "subsequent legislation which purpors to permit the reduction or other
limitarion of that tax is ineffective to do so, because such alteration would impair the obligation of the contract | the eity and
such bondholders,” and in effect be a violation of Article 1, Section 10 of the United States Constitution and Article 1, Section 16 of
the Texas Constitution,

The Central Park Sales Tax may not be collected after the last day of the first calendar quarter ocewrring after notification to the State
Comptroller of Public Accounts {the “Comptrolier”) by the City that all bonds er other obligations of the City that are payable in whole
or in pait from the proceeds of the Central Park Sales Tax, including any refunding bonds or other obligations, have been paid in full

ar the full amount of money necessary to defease such bonds and other obligations hes heen set aside in a trust aceount dedicated to
their payment,

PLEDGE UNDER ORTINANCE. . . The City covenants and agrees that the Pledged Revenues are irrevocably pledized 1o the payment
and security of the Bonds, including the establishment and maintenance of the special funds created and established in the Ordinance.
The Ordinance further provides that the Bonds shall constitute a lien on the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the terms of the:
Ordinance, which lien shall be valid and binding without any further action by the City and without any filing or recording with respect
therelo excep! in the records of the City.

THE CENTRAL Park Vesut PROJECT FUND ... The Gross Ceniral Park Sales Tax R collected by the Comptraller and
remitied periodically to the City for the benefit of the City shall be deposited by the City as received to the credit of a fund or account
ofthe City to be known as the "Central Park Venue Project Fund" (hereinafier called the “Central Park Project Fund™).

“The Gross Central Park Sales Tax Revenues held in the Central Park Project Fund are first to be used to make payments to the Bond
Fund in amounts equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the interest on and principal of the Bonds then due and payable.

GENERAL COVENANT REGARDING THE CENTHAL PARK SALES TaX .., The Municipal Sales and Use Tax Acl provides that the
Central Park Sales Tax does not apply to the sale of a taxable item unless the item is also taxable under the Texas Limited Sales, Excise
and Use Tax Act. The Central Park Sales Tax is therefore subject to broadening and reduction in the base against which it is levied by
action of the State Legistature without the consent of the City.

In the Ordinance, the City covenants and agrees that, while any Bonds are outstanding, it will take all legal means and actions
permissible to cause the Central Park Sales Tax, at its authorized current vate (4 of 1%) or at a higher rate i legally permitted, to be
levied and collected continuously throughout the boundaries of the City, as such boundaries may be changed from time to time, in the
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mannet and to the maximum extent legally permitted; and o cause no reduction, abatement or exemption in the Central Park Sales
Tax while any Bonds shall remain outstanding. The City also covenants and agrees that, if, subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds,
the City is authorized by applicable law to impose and levy the Central Park Sales Tax on any items or transactions that are not subject
to the Central Park Sales Tax on the date the Ordinance was adopted, then the City will use its best efforts to cause the City to take
such action as may be required by applicable [aw to subject such items or transactions to the Centeal Park Sales Tax.

OPTIONAL REDEMFTION OF THE BONDS, . | The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated matuorities on
and afier January 1, 2033, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on January 1, 2032,
or any date thereafler, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. IF less than all of the Bonds are to
be redeemed, the City may select the maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed. If less than all of the Bonds of any maturity are to
be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar {or DTC while the Bonds are in Book-Entry-Only form) shall determine by lot the Bonds,
or portions thereof, within such maturity to be redeemed. If & Bond (or any portion of the principal sum thereof} shall have been
called for redemption and nolice of such redemption shall have been given, such Bond (or the principal amount thereof ta be
redeemed) shall become due and payable on such redemption date and interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the
redemption date, provided funds for the payment of the redemption price and acerued interest thereon are held by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on the redemption date.

MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION . . . The Bonds maturlng on January |, 2040 (the “Term Bonds”) are subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts shown below at the price of par plus acerved interest
1o the date of redemption:

Term Bonds Due January 1, 2040
Redemp tion Dete Principal Amount
January 1, 2038 $4,700,000
Junuary 1, 2039 $4 840,000
January |, 2040 (maturity) 54,990,000

Approximately forty-five (45) days prior to each mandatory redemption date for the Term Bonds, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall
seleet by lot the numbers of the Tenm Bonds within the applicable stated maturity to be vedecmed on the next following January |
from moneys set aside for that purpose in the Bond Fund (as defined in the Ordinance). Any Term Bonds not selected for prior
redemption shall be paid on the date of its stated maturity.

The puincipal amounl of the Term Bonds required to be redeemed on any mandatory redemplion date p to the operation of
the mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of any Term
Bonds which, at least 50 days prior to a mandatory redemption date (1) shall have been acquired by the City and delivered to the
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation or (2} shall have been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions and nat
theretofore credited against a mandatory redemption requirement.

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION. .. Not less than 30 days prior to a redemption date for the Bonds, the City shall cause u notice of
redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owness of the Bonds to be redeemed, in
whaole or in part, af the address of each registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Faying Agent/Registrar at the
close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice,. ANY NOTICE SO MAILED SHALL BE
CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEN, WHETHER OR NOT THE REGISTERED OWNER
RECEIVES SUCH NOTICE, NOTICE HAVING BEEN SO GIVEN, THE BONDS CALLED FOR REDEMPTION SHALL
BECOME DUE AND} PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THAT ANY
OBLIGATION OR PORTION THEREOF HAS NOT BEEN SURRENDERED FOR PAYMENT, INTEREST ON SUCH
OBLIGATION OR PORTION THEREOF SHALL CEASE TO ACCRUE.

‘With respect to any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds 10 be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of
redemption, such notice may stare that said redemption is conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Paying
AgentiBegistiar on of prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon the satisfaction of any p isites set forth in such
notice of redemption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the City shall not
redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given,
to the effect that the Bonds have not heen redeemed.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Nctes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

M. Canfracts, Commitments, and Contingent Liabilities

[ e Granfs
The City parficipates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any liability for
reimbursernent which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material,

Liticraati

The City and Sports Carporation are contingently ligble in respect of lawsuits and claims in the ordinary
course of operations which, in the opinion of management, will not have material adverse effect on the
combined financial statements,

Water Intake Facility Contract

The City entered into a contract with the Trinity River Authority [TRA) whereby TRA agreed fo sell revenue
bonds, and, to construct and operate water treatment, fransmission and storage facilities necessary to
supply freated water to several area cifies. The City has also agreed contractually to pay TRA annudclly
an amount sufficient fo pay it's pro rata share of the operation and maintenance expenses of the facilities
and related debt service of its bonds. The project is not treated as a joint venture by the City since the
project s managed and unilaterally controlled by TRA, the City has no equity interest in the project, and
the City is not obligated for the repayment of TRA bonds.

Water P cts

The City has a 30-year contract with the City of Dallas, which expires in 2042, for the purchase of water,
Grand Prairie curently takes up to 33.8 million gallons a day (MGD), and pays a fiked demand charge
plus o volume charge. The demand charge is based on curent maximum demand or the highest
demand established during the five preceding years, whichever is greater. Thus, even if the City were to
stop purchasing water from Dallas, its obligation to pay the demand charge ($262,058) would extend for
five years. The maximum may be increased in future years as needed. Grond Prairie has two intake points
for City of Dallas water with o contractual right obligating the City of Dallas to meet Grand Prairie's needs,
Existing pipelines wil provide up to 55 MGD,

A confract with the City of Fort Worth, effecfive until the year 2031, permits the City to purchase up te 2.5
MGD.

A contract with the City of Midlothian, executed in 2014 for a 30-year term, permits the City to purchase
up to an average of 4.5 MGD during the term of the contfract, Beginning in January 2016, the City began
purchasing water from the City of Midiothian at an average rate of 0,478 MGD.

A confract with the City of Arlington, executed in 2011 for a 20-year term, allows the City to purchase up
to 2.5 MGD maximum flow unless otherwise agreed to in wiiling. As of September 30, 2020, no wafer has
been purchased through this contract,

Wastewater Treatment Contracts

The City has a 50 yedr contract with TRA, which will expire in 2023, for wastewater freatment. The City is
billed for its prorated share of total wastewater costs, which was 20.5% during fiscal year 2020, The City
must pay its prorated share of the debt service related to wastewater freatment faciities until the dabt
matures whether it contibutes to flow or not,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

L. Fund Balance

Al September 30, 2020, fund balances were classified as follows:

Nenimagjar
Slreety Deot Eglc 2 Gavemmerial
Genarel Sectiand = Groats Sorvice ar Funds Talal
Fund balsrces
Hersperdoma:
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FLow oF Funps, .. The Ordinance establishes the following funds and aceounts for the payment and security of the Bonds, and for
the Pledged Revenues with all revenucs flowing first to the Central Park Project Fund:

CENTRAL PARK VENUE PROJECT FUND

FRIORITY
Firs! Priority Bond Fund for the payment of Debt Service on the Bonds,

Second Pricrity Any other fumd requived by the Ordinance authorizing issuance of the Bonds or any other supplemental
ordinance of the City as peemitted by the Ordinance,

Third Priority Any Pledged Revenues remaining in the Central Park Venue Project Fund after satisfying the
foregoing payments, or making adequate and sufficient provision for the payment thereof, may be
appropriated and used for any other lawful purpose now or herealler pemmitted by the Act, and the
election which authorized the Central Park Sales Tax.

Book-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM. . . This section describes how ownership of the Bonds are to be transferred and how the principal
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds are 1o be paid to and eredited by DTC while the Bonds are registered in its nominee
name, The information in this section conceming DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been provided by DTC for use in
disclosure documents such as this Official Statement. The City belicves the source of such information to be reliable, but takes no
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof.

The City cannot and does not give eny assurance that (1) DTC will distribute payments of debt service on the Bonds, or any notices,
to DTC Participants, (2) DTC Participants or others will distribute debt service peyments paid to DTC or its nominee (as the
registered owner of the Bonds), or any notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on atimely basis, ar (3) DTC will
serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The current rules applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, and the current procedures of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with
DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name
of Cede & Co. (DTCs parinership nominee} ar such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One
fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and
will be deposited with DTC,

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
“banking orgenization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing
corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency™ registered y to the
provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DTC holds and provides ssset servieing for aver 3.5 million
issues of LLS, and non-ULS. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100
countries) that DTC’s participants [“Direct I‘amcupﬂnls") deposn with DT‘C DTC abso facilitates the pusl -trade settlement among
Direct Participants of sales and other iti in ited securitics, through el puterized book-entry
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts, Thls eliminates the need for physrt:al mcwt:mcnt af securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
(*DTCC™). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Comotation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both U5, and non-11.5. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trast companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with » Direet Participant, either directly or indirectly
(“Indirect Participants™}. DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating oft AA+, The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtec.com and www.dtc.org,

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the
Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (*Beneficial Owner™) is in turn to be
recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of
their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive writien confimnations providing details of the transaction, as
well as periadie statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered
into the fransaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct
and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the beok-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's
partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of
Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not affect any change in beneficial
ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and
Indirect Participants will remain respansible for keeping account of their holdings on hehalf of their customers.



Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants,
and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Gwners will be governed by eirangements among them, subject
1o any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from fime to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to tuke
certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as defaults and
proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee
holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners, in the alternative, Beneficial
Ownews may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the natices be provided directly
to them

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co, (nor such other DTC nomines) wifl consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless authorized by &
Direct Participant in aceordance with DTC"s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to City as
soon as possible afier the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to the Direct
Participants to whose accourits the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

All payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other inee as may be requested by an authonized ref i
of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and comesponding detail
information from the City or Paying Agent/Registrar on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is
the case with securities held for the aceounts of customers in bearer form or registered in street name,” and will be the respensibility
of such Participant and not of DTC nor its pominee, Paying Agent/Registrar, or the City, subject to any slatutory ot regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payments to Cede & Co. {or such other nominee as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC) are, the responsibility of the City or Paying Agent/Registrar, dist ent of such p 15 1o
Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments ta the Beneficial Owners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at sy time by giving reasonable notice to the

City or Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such eircumstances, in the event that a or depository is not obtained, Bond certificates
are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry only tansfers through DTC (or a successer securities
depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered (see “THE BONDS-Transfer, Exchange and Registration”
berein).

Use of Certain Terms in Other Seetfons af this Official Statement, . . In reading this Official Statement it should be understoed that
while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other sections of this Official Statement to registered owners
should be read to include the person for which the Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds, but (i) all rights of ownership must
be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System, and (i) except as described above, notices that are to be given to
registered owners under the Ordinance will be given only to DTC.

Information conceming DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy
or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation by the City or the Initial Purchaser.

Effect of Termination of Book-Enny-Cnly System. . . In the event that the Book-Entry-Only System is discontinued, printed Bonds
will be issued to the Participants or the Beneficial Dwners, as the case may be, and the Bonds will be subject to transfer, exchange
and registration provisions as set forth in the Ordinance and summarized under “THE BONDS - Transfer, Exchange and
Registration™ belaw,

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR. . . The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas,
Texas. In the Ordinanee, the City retains the right to replace the Paying Agent/Registrar. The City covenants to maintain and
provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times until the Bonds are duly paid and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be o
commercial hank or trust company organized under the laws of the State of Texas or other entity duly qualified and legally
authorized to serve as and perform the duties and services of Paying Agent/Registrar forthe Bonds. Upon any change in the Paying
Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice thereef to be sent to each registered owner of
such Bonds by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the address of the new Paying
Agent/Registrar,

Interest on the Bonds shall be paid to the registered owners appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at
the close of business on the Record Date (hereinafter defined), and such interest shall be paid (i) by check sent United States mail,
first class, postage prepaid, to the address of the registered owner recorded in the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar
or (i) by such other method, acceptable 1w the Paying Agent'Registrar requested by, and at the risk and expense of! the registered
owner, Principal of the Bonds will be paid to the registered owner at the stated maturity upon presentation to the designated
payment/transfer office of the Paying Agent/Registrar; provided, however, that so long as Cede & Co, {or other DTC nominee) is
the registered owner of the Bonds, all payments will be made as described under “THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein,
If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday or a day when
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MRS Supplemental Death
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference in expected and octual experience 3 - % 222026
Difference in assumptions 564,036 3
Difference in projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments - -
Employer's contributions 1o the OPEB plan
subsequent 1o the measurement date 29,303
3 595339 % 222026

Defered outilows of resources related fo OPEB resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date of $29,303 will be recognized os a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the
City's financial statements September 30, 2021, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Refiree Health Insurance

Measurement Net deferred
Period Ended outflows (inflows)
September 31, of resources
2021 ¥ [453.955]
2022 [453.955|
2023 [453.955]|
2024 408,482
2024 408,683
Total % [544.500)
—_—
IMRS Supplemental Death
Measurement Net deferred
Yeor Ended outflows (inflows)
December 31, of resources
2020 3 81,600
2021 81.400
2022 81,600
2023 74,522
2024 31,432
Thereafter [&6.744)
Tatal e SAROIO
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Cify's TMRS supplemental plan calculated using the
discount rate of 2.75%, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rafe that is 1 percentage peint lower (1.75%) or 1 percentage point higher [3.75%] than the
current discount rate:

Sensitivity of the QPEB Liakility to
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrecse Discount Rate |\ % Increase

3 5342149 % 4419808 % 3,702,234

Sensitivity of the: PER Lighility to Changes in the Health st Trend Raf

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's refiree health insurance, as well as what the
City's fotal OPEB fiability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost frend rate:

sensitivity of the OPER Liability to
Changes in the Healthcare Cost Rate
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

3 54304846 § 62543756 § 467,883,762

OPEE Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OFEB
For the year ended September 30, 2020, the City recognized total OPEB expense of $2,841,498 which
included $2,454,262 related to Refiree Health Insurance and $387.236 related to TMRS Supplemental
Death,

Al September 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outfiows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following resources:

Retiree Heqlth Insurance

Defered Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resowces of Resources
Difference in expacted and actudl experience $ - $ 2,877,504
Difference in gisumplions 3314370 981,366
Difference in projected and actual earnings
oh OPEB planinvestments -
Employer's confributions to the OPER plan
subsequant to the measurement dole -

k] 3314,370 $ 3,858,870
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banking institutions in the city where the designated payment/iransfer office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized
to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a day, and payment on such date shall
have the same force and effect as if made on the date payment was due.

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION, .. In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued, printed
certificates will be delivered to the registered owners of the Bonds and thereaftes the Bonds may be transferred and exchanged on
the registiation books of the Paying Ageny/Registrar only upon presentation and swirender of such printed certificates to the Paying
Agent/Registrar and such transfer or exchange shall be without expense or service charge to the registercd owner, except for any
1ax or other governmental chavges required to be paid with respeet to such registration, exchange and transfer, Bonds may be
assigned by the execution of an assignment form on the respective Bonds or by other instrument of transfer and assignment
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. New Bonds will be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in lieu of the Bonds being
transfecred or exchanged, at the principal office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or sent by United States mail, fivst class, postage
prepaid, to the new registered owner or his desi To the extent possible, new Bonds issued in an exchange ar transfer of Bonds
will be delivered to the registered owner or assignee of the registered owner in not more than three business days afier the receipt
of the Bonds to be canceled, and the written instrument of transfer or request for exch duly d by the regi i owner
or his duly authorized sgent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, New Bonds registered and delivered in an exchange
ar transfer shall be in denominations of $5,000 o integral multiples thereof for any one maturity and for a like aggregate principal
amount as the Bonds surrendered for exchange or transfer. See "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” for a description of the
system to be utilized initially in regard to ownership and transferability of the Bonds.

RECORD DATE FOR INTEREST PAYMENT, | , The record date (the "Record Date®) for the interest payable on the Bonds on any
interest payment date means the close of business on the fifieenth calendar day of the monith next preceding each interest payment
date.

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such
interest payment {the “Special Record Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, i and when funds for the payment
of such interest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past
due interest (the "Special Payment Date”, which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business
days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner of
2 Bond appearing on the registration baoks of the Paying Apent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next
preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

REGISTERED OwnERs' REMEDIES. . - The Helder or Holders of any Bond shall be entitled to 2 writ of mandamus issued by a court
of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the governing bedy of the City and other officers of the City to observe and perform
any covenant, condition or obligation prescribed in the Ordinance. The i of & writ of mand is controlled by equitable
principles and rests with the discretion of the court, but may not be arbitrarily refused. The enforcement of such remedy may be
difficult and time consuming and a registered owner could be required 1o enforce such remedy on a perodic basis. There is no
acceleration of matuiity of the Bonds in the event of default and, consequently, the remedy of mandamus may have to be relied
upon from year to year. The Ordinance does not provide for the appointment of a trustec to represent the interests of the bondholders
upon any failure of the City to perform in accordance with the terms of the Ordinance, or upon any other condition snd, accordingly,
all legal actions to enforce such remedies would have to be underiaken at the initiative of, and financed by, the registered owners.
On April 1, 2016, the Texas Supreme Court ruled in Wassort Interests, Ltd v City of Jacksonville, 489 8. W, 3d 417 (Tex. 2016}
("Wasson") that sovereign immunity does not imbue a city with derivative immunity when it performs proprietary, as opposed to
govemmental, functions in respect to contracts exceuted by a ity. The Texas Supreme: Court reviewed Wasson again in June 2018
and clarified that to determine whether governmental immunity applies to a breach of contract claim, the proper inquiry is whether
the municipality was engaged in a governmental or proprietary funetion when it entered into the contract, not at the time of the
alleged breach. Therefore in regard to municipal contract cases (as in fort claims) it is incumbent on the courts to determine whether
a function was proprietary or governmental based upon the statutory guidance at the time of the contractual relationship. Texas
jurisprudence has generally held that proprietary functions are those conducted by a city in its private capacity, for the benefit only
of those within its corporate limits, and not as an arm of the government or under the autherity or for the benefit of the state. If
savereign immunity is determined by a court to exist, then the Texas Supreme Court has ruled in Teoke v. City of Mexia, 197 §.W.
3d 325 {Tex. 2006), that a waiver of sovercign i ity in & ¢ | dispute must be provided for by statute in “clear and
unambiguous” language. Because it is unclear whether the Texas legislature has effectively waived the City's sovereign immunity
from a suil for money damages, holders of the Bonds may not be able to bring such a suit against the City for breach of the Bonds
or Ordinance covenants. Even if a judgment against the City could be obtained, it could not be enforeed by direct levy and exccution
against the City's property. Furthermore, the City is eligible to seek relief from its creditors under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankrupicy
Code (“Chapter 9). Although Chapter 9 provides for the recognition of a security interest represented by a specifically pledged
source of revenues, such as the Pledged Revenues, such provisions are subject to construction. Chapter 9 also includes an automatic
stay provision that would prohibit, without Bankruptey Court approval, the prosecution of any other legal action by creditors o
holders of the Bonds of an entity which has seught protection under Chapter 9, Thesefore, should the City avail itsell of Chapter 9
protection from creditors, the ability to enforee creditors’ rights would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court (which
could require that the action be heard in Bankruptey Court instead of other federal or state court}, and the Bankruptey Code provides
for broad discretionary powers of a Bankruptcy Court in administering any proceeding brought before it. The opinion of Bond
Counsel will note that all opinions relative to the enforceability of the Ordinance and Bonds are qualified with respect to the
customary rights of debtors relative to their creditors.
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DEFEASANCE . ... The Ordinance provides for the defeasance of the Bonds when the payment of the principal of and premium, if September 30, 2020

any, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof {whether such due date be by reason of maturity or otherwise), is provided by
imevocably depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or other authorized eserow agent, in trust (17 money sufficient to make
such payment or (2) Government Obligations to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times to insure the

availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such payment, and all necessary and proper fees, compensation and €hange in OPEB Liability Total OPEB
expenses of the paying agent for the Bonds. The Ordinance provides that “Government Obligations™ means (a) direct, noncallable Retiree Health Insurance Licioility
obligations of the United States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of

America, (b) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that Balonce at September 30, 2019 $ 57.183.450
are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by Changes for the year:

the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA" or its equivalent, Servi

(c) noncallable cbligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been ervice cost 2196598
refunded and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally Interest 2,214,000
recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA™ ar its equivalent, and (d) any other then suthorized securities or obligations Difference between expected

that may be used to defease obligations such as the Bonds under applicable laws of the State of Texas. The City has the right, ,

subject to satisfying the rtquiru;"ltms of (1) and (2) above, to sul;:titmc other Government Obligations for the Govermgn ond QC“_JGl Emene_me 11.525,154)
Obligations originally deposited, to reinvest the uninvested moneys on deposit for such defeasance and to withdraw for the benefit Changes in assumplions 3,977,244
of the City moneys in excess of the amount required for such defeasance. Benafit payments* {1.502,382)

There is no assurance that the current law will not be changed in a manner which would permit investments other than those
deseribed above to be made with amounts deposited to defease the Bonds, Because the Ordinance does not contractually limit such
investments, registered owners may be deemed 1o have consented to defeasance with such other investments, notwithstanding the
fact that such investments may not be of the same investment quality as those currently permitted under State law. There is no
assurance that the ratings for U.S, Treasury securities used as Government Obligations or that for any other Government Obligation

Met chonges

Balance at September 30, 2020

5,360,306

§ 62,543,756
—_—

will be mainteined at any particular rating category. Change in OPER Liability Total OPER
TMRS Supplemental Death Liability

Upon such deposit as described above, the Bonds shall no longer be regarded to be outstanding or unpaid. After firm banking and

financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the Bonds have been made as described above, all rights of the City Balance of December 31, 2018 3 4,220,784

to take any action amending the terms of the Bonds are extinguished. Changes for the year:

AMENDMENTS . . . The City may amend the Ordinance without the consent of or notice 1o any registered owner in any manner nol Service cost 147.917

detrimental to the interests of the registered owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or Interest 158.603

omission therein. In addition, the City may with the written consent of the Holders of a majority of aggregate principal amount of Difference between expected

the Bands then outstanding affected thereby, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of the Ordinance; excep! that, without i

the consent of the registered owners of all of the affected Bonds, na such d addition or rescission may (i) extend the nd OCT‘:’QI experle‘nce 760,883}

time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thersof, the Changes in assumptions 692,831

redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way madify the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if Benefit payments* (39,444)

any, or interest on the Bonds, (1) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal

amaount of Bonds required to be held by Holders for consent 1o any such amendment, addition, or rescission. Net chonges 199094

Balance of December 31, 2019

$  4.419.808

*Duz fo the Plan being considered an unfunded OPER plan under GASB 75, benefil payments are freated as being equal fo the
employer's yeary contibuficns for refirees.

Sensitivity of the Total OFER Liability fo Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's retiree health insurance calculated using the
discount rate of 3.83%, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated usinga
discount rate that is | percentage peint lower [2.83%) or | percentage point higher [4.83%) than the
current discount rate:

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)

Sersitivily of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increcse

$ 68016956 § 42543756 % 55,575.295
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Staterments

September 30, 2020

The refiree health insurance total OPER liability in the Sepftember 30, 2020 actuariol valuation was
determined using the following actuarial ossumptions:

Inflaticn

Salary Increases
Discount Rate

wMortality rates - retirees

2.50%
3.50%
241%
RP-2014 Cambined Tatile projecied using MP-2019

The discount rate was selected by City of Grand Praiie bosed on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General
Obligation Index to reflect yields on long-term municipal bends as of the measurement date,

The TMRS supplemental death total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Salary Increcses
Discount Rate
Admiristralive expanses

Mortdlity rates - service retiress

toartality rates - disabled retireas

2.50%
3.50% to 11.5%including inflation
2.75%

Al administrative experses are paid through the Pension Trust and

accounted for under reporting reguirements under GASB Statement
Mo, £8.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables, The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP,

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set
forward for males and a 3 year set-forward for females. In addition, o
3.5% ond 3% minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the
impaoirment for younger members who become disabled for males and
fermalas, respectively. The rates are projected on a fully generotional
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortaliy Improvements
subject to the floor.

The discount rate was based on the Fidelity index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" rate as of

December 31, 2019,
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DERT INFORMATION
TABLE 1 - DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ™

Fiscal
Year
Ending Cutstanding Debt Serviee!! The Honds
9730 Principal Interest Total DS Principal Interest Total DV Total IVS
02 2,373,000 1,772,246 4,147,246 330,000 387372 97372 5064618
2023 2ATSO00 363330 2,83E330 SR0,000 1,646,393 2,126,393 5,064,722
2024 2,575,000 262330 2,837,330 600,000 1628693 2,228,693 5,066,022
2025 2,6R0.000 157,230 2,837,230 615,000 1610468 2,225,468 5,062,697
2026 2,785,000 51815 236,815 635,000 1,591,718 2,126,718 5,063,532
027 - - - 3,535,000 1,529,168 5,064,168 5,064,168
2008 - - - 3,645,000 1,421,468 5,066,468 5,066,468
2029 - - 3,740,000 1327523 5,067,523 5,067,523
2030 E . 3,820,000 1,246,233 5,066,233 5,066,233
2031 E & 3,505,000 1,159,305 5,064,305 5,064,303
032 - - = 3,595.000 1,066,458 5,061 458 5061458
013 - - 4,100,000 467,268 5,067,268 3,067,268
2034 - . - 4,205,000 461,353 5,056,353 3,066,353
2035 & 4 i 4,315,000 748,435 5,063,435 5,063,435
2036 - - = 4,435,000 628,003 5,063,003 5,063,093
2057 - - - 4,565,000 0951 3,003,951 3,063,951
2038 . - . 4,700,000 365,400 5,065,400 5,065,400
2039 i 4,840,000 122,300 5,062,300 5,062,300
2040 o % - 4,990,000 74,850 5,064,850 5,064,850

§ 12,890,000 $2,606950 $15496950 § 61,550,000 3 19,183,444 § BO,733AM4  §$96,230,594

{1 Exchudes the Refunded Obligitions.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)

%ol
Principal
Retired

21.02%

46.07%

74.35%

100.00%



THE CENTRAL PARK SALES TAX

SOURCE AND AUTHORIZATION . .. The Central Park Sales Tax is a 1/4 of 1% limited sales and use tax imposed on all 1axable
transactions within the City as approved at an ebection beld in the City on May 10, 2014. The Comptroller began collecting the Central
Patk Sales Tax on transactions within the City on October 1, 2015, The Central Park Sales Tax is authorized to be levied and collected
against the receipts from the sale at retail of taxable items within the City. The Central Park Sales Tax also is an excise tax on the use,
storage or other consumption of taxable tangible personal property purchased, leased or rented from a retailer within the Clty. The
imposition, computation, administration, governance, sholition and use of the Central Park Sales Tax is governed by the Texas Limited
Sales, Excise, and Use Tix Act (Texas Tax Code, Chapter 151, as amended) except o the extent that there is conflict with the Act, in
which case the provisions of the Act confrol as to the Bonds, and by the Municipal Sales and Use Tax Act (Texas Tax Code, Chapter
321, as amended), and reference is made thereto for a more complete description of the Central Park Sales Tax.

In general, as applied to the Central Park Sales Tax, a taxable item includes any tangible personal property and centain taxable services.
"Taxable services” include certain amusement services, cable television services, motor vehicle parking and storage services, the repair,
remaodeling, maintenance and restoration of most tangible personal property, certain telecommunication services, eredit reporting
services, debt collection services, insurance services, information services, real property services, dala processing services, real
property repair and remodeling and security services, telephone answering sevvices, Internet access services, and distribution utility of

transmission or delivery of service directly to an electricity end-use whaose plion of electricity is subject 1o taxation
under Chapter 131 of the Texas Tax Code, as amended. Certain items are exempted by State law from sales and use taxes, including
items purchased for resale, food products (except food products which are sold for immediate consumption, e.g. by lunch

counters, efe.), health care supplies (including medicines, corrective lens and various therapeutic appliances and devices), agricultural
items (ifthe item is to be used exclusively on a farm or ranch or in the production of agriculiural products), gas and electricity purchased
for residential use (unless a city has taken steps to repeal the pi certain telecc ications services, newspapers and
magazines. In addition, items which are taced under cther State laws are generally exempted from sales taxes. These items include
certain natural resources, cement, motor vehicles and insurance premiums. Alcohol and tobacco products are taxed under both State
aleohol and tobacco taxes as well as through the sales taxes except that the following are exemps from the sales taxes: mixed beverages,
ice or nonaleoholic bevernges that are subject to State aleohol taxes (there is no local companent of the State alcohol taxes and, thus,
the City would not receive any revenue with respect 1o such sales) and aleoholic beverages when sold to the holder of a private club
registration permit under certain ci In addition, purch made by various exempt organizations are nol subject 1o the
sales and use taxes. Such organizations include the federal and state govermments, political subdivisions, Indian tribes, religious
institutions and certain charitable organizations and non-profit cities. Also, State law provides an exemption from sales taxes on items
purchased under a contract in effect when the legislation anthorizing such tax (ar the increase in the rate thereo) s enacted, up toa
maximum of three years,

In general, a sale of a taxable item is deemed to occur within the municipality, county or special district in which the sale is
consummated. The tax levied on the use, storage or consumption of tangible personal property is consideted to be consummated at
the location where the item is first stored, used or consumed. Thus, the use is considered to be consummated in & municipality, and
the tax is levied there if the item is shipped from outside the state to a point within the municipality.

I addition o the local sales and use taxcs |evied, as described above, the State levies and collects a 6.25 % sales and use tax against
essentially the same taxable items and transactions as the Central Park Sales Tax is levied. Under current State law, the maximum
aggregate sales and use tax which may be levied within a given area by an authorized political subdivision within such ares, inchading
the State, is 8.25%. The current aggregate sales and use tax levied in the City is .25% of which 6.25% is levied by the State, 1% is
levied by the City, 124 of 19 is levied ps the Central Park Sales Tax, 1/4% is levied for the general municipal parks and recreation
facilities, 1/4 % is levied for maintenance and repair for municipal streets and 1/4% is levied for the GPTX Crime Control Development
District, See “-Other Sales Taxes™ below.

The Compiroller admini and enff all sales tax laws and collects all sales and use taxes levied by the State, and levying counties,
municipalities and ather special districts having sales tax powers, Certain limited items are taxed for the benefit of the State under
nonsales tax statutes, such as certain natural s and other items described above, and are not subject 10 the sales tax base available
1o municipalities and counties, including the tax base against which the Central Park Sales Tax is levied, Municipalities may by locul
option determine to tax certain telecommunication services on the same basis as the State taxes such services (some aspeets of
felecommunication services, such as interstate telephone calls and broadeasts regulated by the FOC are not subject to either State or
local taxation). The City has not repealed the Jocal telecommunication services exemption. With respect to the taxation of the
residential use of pas and electricity, the State is not authorized to collect a sales tax, while municipalities, on a local option basis, may
1ax such use.

In recent years, several changes in the State sales tax laws have contributed to the growth of local sales tax revenues. These changes
have added additional goods and services to the list of taxable items. Other items have been subjected to sales tax on an interim basis
or have been taxed pursuant to legislation which includes planned phase-outs of the tax.

With certain exceptions, sales and use taxes in the State are collected at the point of sale and are remitted to the Compiroller by the
“tmxpayer” who is, generally speaking, the business that collects the tax resulting from a taxable transaction. Taxpayers owing §500
or more sales and wse tax dollars in a caleadar month submit their tax collections to the Comptroller on & monthly basis; faxpayers
owing less than $5040 sales and use tax dollars in a calendar month but $1,500 or more in a calendar quarter submit their tax collections
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Retirees that do not confinue coverage through our retiree health care plans do not receive payment in
lieu of retiree health care,

The City offers medical, dental, and vision coverage to eligible retirees.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

For refiree health insurance af the September 30, 2020 valuation and measurement date, the following
employees were covered by the benefit ferms:

Inactive employess or baneficiaries currently réceiving benefits 167
Active employees 1,328
Tolal 1,425

For TMRS supplemental death at the December 31, 2019 valuation and measurement date, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employess or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 427
Inactive employees entitled to but nol yel receiving benefits 125
Active employees 1,384
Total 2,138

—_—

Confribufions
For refiree health insuraonce, refirees and their spouses currently receiving benefits are required to
cantribute specified amounts monthly toward the cost of health insurance premiums.

Monthly retiree contribution rates are as follows:

Refiree 2018 Maonthly Health Care Premiums [Employee Pays Parfion)
Monthiy
Health Care
Fremium

Ower 65 Retiree

[Grandfathered by age)
Employes only $ 241
Employee plus spouse 238

Total OPEB Liabil
The City of Grand Prairie retiree health insurance total OPEB liability of $62,543,756 was measured as of
September 30, 2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

The City of Grand Praifie TMRS supplemantal death total OPEB lability of $4,419,807 measured as of
December 31, 2019, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employes's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual eamings, for the 12-month period
preceding the month of death; retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other post-
employment benefit," or OPEB.

Reti Health Benef

Curent employees who retire from the City of Grand Prairie under a TMRS Retirement / Plan option may
elect to remain on the City's medical, denfal, and vision insurance plans as long as they meet the
following criteria;

« Under age of 65
e Currently working for the City immediately prior fa retirement, and
« Payment of required monthly premiums by due date, or within grace period

TMRS Retirement / Plan option may include:

e Service refirement, 25 vears of TMRS creditable service at any age, or
e Age 60and 5 years of TMRS credifable service
«  Disabilty/medical retirement at any age, if approved by TMRS

Eligibility requirements do nat vary by type of retirement. The refiree health care plan s o single-employer
defined benefit plan. Mo trust is setup for the plan; therefore, there is no separate oudit report avaiable.

Retirees pay a portion of their refiree hedlth care premium based on their years of service with the City of
Grand Praiirie, the plan selected, and dependent caverage when they refire. The base retiree health care
premium is based on the accrual rate, claims costs, and budget for the prior fiscal year.

Medical coverage for retiree benefits extends only to age 65. Cnce aretiree reaches age 45, they will be
dropped from medical coverage at the beginning of the month in which they fumn é5. If a refiree cancals
any or all insurance at any fime during retirement, they forfeit all rights to coverage through the City for
that benefitIf they cancel medical coverage all together, they may not elect medical againin the future
for any reason.

A spouse who is on the employee's plan af the time of refirement may continue on the plan until the
spouse reaches age 65. Spouse coverage continues after the employee reaches the age 65 ond after
the death of the employee until the spouse reaches the age of 65, os wel. Spouse coverage continues
even though the employee becomes Medicare eligible.

Rates for spouse coverage are dependent upon the employee's years of service with the City of Grand
Proifie. Spouses receive the same benefits as the employee. Sunviving spouses of deceased aclive
members are not eligible for retiree health care benefits, unless they become eligible under TMRS and
elect retirernent immediately following the month of death. They become “retiree” in that case.

For all refirements after 1/1/08, dependents must have been covered for the 2 years iImmediately
preceding the effective date of retirement to be eligible to confinue coverage under refiree into
retirement,

New dependents gained duing refirement [due to mariage or birth) may not be added to the City's
plan since they were not eligible af the time of retirement.
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quarterly; and taxpayers owing less than 51,000 in a calendar year submit their tax collections annually, Taxpayers are required to
repont and remit to the Comprolier by the 20th day ef the month following the end of the reporting period, The reporting period for
vearly filers ends each January 20 of the next calendar year; for quarterly filers, the reporting period ends at the end of each calendar
quarter: and monthly filers report and remit by the 20th of each month for the previous month. The Comptrolier is required by law to
distribute funds to the receiving political subdivisions periodically and as promptly as feasible but not less frequently than twice during
each fiscal year of the State. Historically, and at the present time, the Compiroller distributes the funds monthly with the largest
payments being made quarterly in February, May, August and November. The Comptrolier has initiated a direct deposit program using
electronic funds transfers to expedite the distribution of monthly allocation checks. 1f a political subdivision desires to participate in
the electronic funds transfers, it may make application to the Comptroller. The City participates in this program. Otherwise, the
Comptioller mails the monthly allocation check, which is typically received by the middle of the month following the month in which
the taxpayer reports and remits payment on the tax.

The Comptroller is responsible for enforcing the collection of sales and use taxes in the State, Under State law, the Comptroller utilizes
sales tax permits, sales tax bonds and andits to encourage timely payment of sales and use taxes, Each entity selling, renting, leasing
or otherwise providing taxable goods or services is required to have a sales tax permit. Permits are requived for each individual location
of a taxpayer and are valid for only one year, requiring an annual renewal, As a general rule, every person who applies for a sales tax
permit for the first fime, or who becomes delinquent in paying the sales or use tax, is required 1o post a bond in an amount sufficient
to protect against the failure to pay taxes. The Comptroller’s audit procedures include auditing the largest 2% of the sales and use tax
taxpayers (who report about 65% of all seles and use tax in the State annually), each every three or four years. Other taxpayers are
selected al random or upon soine other basis for audits. The Comptroller also engages in taxpayver education programs and mails a
report 1o each taxpayer before the last day of the month, quarter or year that it covers.

Onee ataxpayer becomes delinquent in the payment of a sales or use tax, the Comptroller may collect the delingquent tax by using one
or mote of the following methods; (1) collection by an automated collection center or focal field office, (i) estimating the taxpayers’
liahility hased on the highest amount dug in the previous 12 months and billing them for it, (iii) filing liens and requiring a new or
increased payment band, (iv) utilizing forced collection procedures such as seizing assels of the taxpayer (e.g., a checking account) or
freezing assets of the taxpayer that are in the custady of third parties, (v) removing a taxpayer's sales and use tax permit, and (vi)
certifying the account to the Attorney General's Office to file suit for collection. A municipality may pot sue for definquent taxes
unless it joins the Attomey General as a plaintiff or unless it first receives the permission of the Attorney General and the Comptroller.

The Comptroller retains 2% of the tax receipts for collection of the tax; additionally, under State law, a taxpayer may deduct and
withhald 1/2% of the amount of taxes due on a timely refurn as reimbursement for the cost of collecting the sales and use taxes, In
addition, a taxpayer who prepays its tax lishility on the basis of a reasonable estimate of the tax Tiability for a month or quarter in which
aprepayment is made, may deduct and withhold | 1/4% of the amount of the prepayment in addition to the 1/2% allowed for the cost
of eollecting the sales and use tax.

INVESTOR CONSIDERATIONS . . . The primary source of security for the Bonds will be certain receipts of the Central Park Sales Tax
received by the City. The amount of revenwes from the Central Park Sales Tax is closely related to the amount of economic activity
in the City. Sales and use tax receipts, unlike other taxes levied by icipalities, i li reflect chi
conditions of a municipality.

pes in the economic

Historically, the Caomptroller vas remitted sales and use tax allovation checks to municipalities on a monthly basis, but State law
currently requires that such allocation be made at least twice annually and such procedures could change in the future, Additionally,
the taxable items and services subject 1o State and local sales and use taxes are subject io legislative action, and have been changed in
recent years by the State Legislature. State kaw provides that the Central Park Sales Tax cannot be levied against any taxable ilem or
service unless such item or service is also subject to the State sales and use tax.

In recent years the State Legiskature has enagtcd laws permitting the State, together with its political subdivisions, to levy sales and use
taxes of up o §.25%, which is among the highest sales tax rates in the nation (although the State has o personal or corporate income
tax), and the current total sales and use tax rate within the City's boundaries is 825% (including State and City taxes as well as the
Central Park Sales Tax), The rate of the sales and use taves authorized in the State could be further increased by the State Legislature
and the City has no way of predicting any such increase or the effect that would have on the Central Park Sales Tax, the pledge of
which secures the Bonds. Any changes which may be enacted by the State Legislature could effect the tax hase against which the
Central Park Sales Tax is levied; and the City, except in certain limited instances described below, has no control over the components
of the tax basc.

Tax receipis received by the City are expected to be subject 10 seasonal variations and to variations caused by the State laws and
administeative practices goveming the remittance of sales and use tax receipts which authorize different taxpayers to remit the tax
receipts at different times throughout the vear.

Changes in the tax base against which a sales and use tax is assessed, as well as changes in the rate of such taxes, make
projections of future tax revenue collections very difficult, No independent projections have been made with respect to the
revennes availahle to pay debt service on the Bonds,



During the 86th Texas Legislative Session, certain laws were passed regarding the collection of sales taxes in response to the
United States Supreme Cowrt decision in South Dakota v. Wayfair, Inc., 138 S, Ct. 2080 (June 21, 2018) (*Wayfair™). Among
other matters, in WayFir the Court ruled that out-of-state based sellers of goods are required to collect and pay sales taxes to
states and local jurisdictions where the receivers of such goods are located, H.B.1525, effective October 1, 2019, amended
Chapters 151, 321 and 323, Texas Tax Code, by amending the definitions of “seller” and “retailer” 1o include a “Markelphcc
provider and 1o requlre such Mnrﬂelplacc pm\ndcr to ¢ollect and remit to the Compiroller sales and use taxes on items sold in
Texas on el internet websites and software applications. H.B. 2153, effective October 1, 2019,
amended the Texas Tax Code by establishing a single local use tax rate that “remote” (out-of-state) sellers may elect to use.
Chapter 151 of the Texas Tax Code, as amended, now authorizes the Comptroller to adopt rules that establishes a single local tax
rate for use by remote sellers. For the period beginning January 1, 2022, and ending December 31, 2022, such rate is set by the
Comptroller at 1.75%.

Pursuant to such recent legislation, the Comptrol ler finalized approval of the adopted rules d ter Texas Administrati
Code Rule 31334 {which may be Found at
ifitexreg sos.state. . us/public/readtacSext. TacPage?sl=T&app=0&p dir=F&p rloc=199495&p tloc=14707&p ploo=|&pe
cpi=1 &eh=3&1=334, Ameng other matters, the amendments change the current local sales ax sourcing rule
from the place of origin to the place of destination for all intemet orders.  Such amendments were set to become effective on
Octaber |, 2021, Centain Texas cities were granted an injunction prohibiting the Compteol ler from implementing such amendments
to the sourcing of local sales tax collection. The injunction will remain in effect until a hearing on the merits of the case, which is
currently set for June 2022, The City cannot determine at this time what effect, i any, the new legislation and adopted rules might
have in the future with respect to its Central Park Sales Tax reventies.

OTHER CITY SALES TAXES . . .The voters approved a one-fourth cent 1/4¢) lacal sales and use tax rate (the “Parks & Rec Sales Tax™)
at an election held on November 2, 1999 under Section 334.021 of Chapter 334, Local Government Code. The additional sales tax
receipts is used exclusively for costs sssociated with the municipal parks and recreation system es defined in Section 334,001} D).
The City began collecting the Parks & Ree Sales Tax in April 2000, The Parks & Rec Sales Tax authorized by the Movember 2, 1999
election is not pledged to nor available for payment on the Bonds,

The voters approved aone-fourth cent (1/4¢) local sales and use tax rate (the “Street Repair Sales Tax™) at an election held on November
6, 2001 under Chapter 327 Subtitle C, Title 3, Tax Code, The additional sales tax receipts ave used exclusively for street repair
maintenance. The Street Repair Sales Tax was last reauthorized in May 2017 for eight years,

On May 12, 2007 vaters approved a 4% sales tax in a 1/4% and two 1/8% mcrements for the following projects:

-A one-fourth cent (1/4 cent) local sales and use tax under Section 363.054, Loeal Government Code for Crime Centrol and
Prevention District to fund a new Police Center {“Crime Control Sales Tux").

- one-¢ighth cent (1/8 cent) local sales and use for a Senior Center (“Senior Center Tax™),

<A one elghth cent (1/8 cent) local sales and use for a minor league baseball stadium ( ium Tax"),

The additional sales tax receipts were to be exclusively for costs associated with each of the projects. The City began collecting the
taxed on Oetober 1,2007. At an election held on May 10, 2014, voters abolished the City's 1/8% Senior Center Tax and 1/8% Baseball
Stadium Tax as authorized under Section 334,089, Local Govemnment Code, effective September 30, 2015, and adopted the Central
Park Sales Tax for the City's EPIC project as permitted under the provisions of Chapter 334, Local Government Code, effective
October 1, 2015, The City began collecting the Central Park Sales Tax on October 1, 2015.

Atan election on November 3, 2020, the 1/4% sales tax for the Community Policing District was reauthorized for a peviod of ion years,

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Defered Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2020, the city recognized persion expense of $19,217,448.

At September 30, 2020, the City reported deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Quiflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference in expected ond actual experience $ 3241408 % (1,510.794)
[actuarial (gains) or Iosses)

Difference in assumptions 925824

Difference in projected and actual eamings
on pension plan inv estments - (17.012.110)
[actuarial {gdins) or losses)

Employer's contributions to the pension plan
subsequent fo the measurement date 12,453,895 -

b 16621127 §  (18.522704)

The $12,453,895 reported as deferred outfiows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the
year ending September 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as defered outflows and inflows of rescurces
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Measurement Net deferred
Year Ended outflows {inflows)
Dacember 31 of resources
2020 $ [4,169,174)
2021 (4.247.429)
2022 1,823,672
2023 (7.810.082)
2024 47,339
Total §  [14.355474)
—_— s

K. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Plan Description

Sy, men nefits

The City also parficipates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan operated by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF), The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both curent and retired employees. The
City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopfing an ordinance
before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made aof the
rates specified in statute, Based on that assumpfion, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was
projected to be avallable fo make all projected future benefit payments of curent active and inactive
employses. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periodis of projected benefit paymenis io determine fhe Tolal Pension Liatbility.

Ch in the ion Liobi
Increase |Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Met Pension
Liability Met Positicn Licibility
(A (B) {A)- [B]
Balance ot December 31, 2018 $ 587.394.541 § 484,228,225 $ 101166316
Changes for the year:
Service cost 17,424,628 - 17,424,628
Interest 39,278,509 - 39278509
Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference belween expected .
and actual experience 2850261 - 28502481
Changes in assumptions 1,142,147 - 1142147
Contributions - employer - 16,638,630 [16,638.630)
Contributions - employee - 6,905,686 [6,205.686)
Net investment income - 75171025 [75,171.025)
Benefit paymenis* (28.406.023] 128,406,023) -
Administrative expense - [424.744) 424746
Other changes - (12.759) 12,759
Net changes 32,289,522 £9,871.813 [37.582.291)
Balance at December 31, 2019 § 619,684,063 $ 556,100,038 § 63,584,025
* |ncludes refunds of employee contributions
Sensifivity of the Pension Lid hanges i Discoun

The following presents the net pension liabiiity of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as
well as what the City's net pension liabilty would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-
percentage-point lower (5.75%) or one-percentage-peint higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the Net Persion Liakility to
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease Single Rate 1% Increose

$ 151,726,229 $ £3.584,025 $  18.768.674)
Pensi n Fiducis Pasifion
Detalled information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in o separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Infemet at www fmis.com.
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TABLE 2 - HISTORICAL C1TY RECEIPTS OF 1/4% COMPARABLE SALES TAx

FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 217 FY 2016
ot §  85379% 5 74926 5 69T § 655765 § 61122 § 579579 § 533,505
Mo, 1,061,427 860,560 TU5A27 0479 710,466 09,993 648,300
Dec. 875,207 136,447 735,712 636,471 93,552 583,108 542,000
Jan. 059,237 TI2460 691,820 658,974 623,870 506,056 520,043
Feb. - 954,377 595,944 819425 813,702 791,657 712,010
Mar - 695,079 695,427 620,347 622,170 579513 537,007
Apt. - 591,119 654,896 607,684 353,587 483,849 527982
May 2 991,279 756,746 811,360 88,591 735,027 GRE,588
Jun - §20,443 607,350 691,016 626,408 607,690 556,747
Jul, Z 765,363 697,140 686,501 690,187 635,575 SESEIR
Aug. - 933,869 913,541 1,007,741 BOBAGY 718,314 TH0557
Sep. - 878,349 712,260 TIE640 664,555 613,260 SR7,752
§ 37667 5 974271 5 BES0239 5 B724404 5 RIDGTIS § 7635620 5§ 7.160408
TABLES - CALCULATION OF DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE FOR THE BoNns ()
1/4% Sales Tax Collections for last 12 months $ 10,409,544
Maximum Annual Debt Service (Fiscal Year 2029)) $ 5,067,523
Coverage of Maximum Debt Service for the Bonds
by Sales Taxcollections for last 12 months 205 x
Average Annual Debt Service Outstanding™ $ 5064758
Coverage of Average Annual Debt Service Requirements
by Sales Taxcollections for last 12 months 2.06 %

(1) Reflects actual colleciions of Sales Tax for February 2021 through January, 2022,

(2) Excludes the Refunded Obligations and includes the Bonds.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)



SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE

The following are selected provisions of the Ovelimance. These excerpts showld be qualified by reference to the evact terms af the
Chrellnance  Unless athervise indicated, any references to sections listed below are to it irted in the Ordi and

section headi irved i the followi) are fo i ined fn the Crdi
g & P

SECTION 10: Definitions. That for all purposes of this Ordinance and in particular for clarity with respect to the
issuance of the Bonds herein authorized and the pledge and appropriation of revenues therefor, the following definitions are
provided:

“Act” - Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 334, as amended at any time.

"Bonds™ - The “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2022."
“City" - The City of Grand Prairie, Texas,

“City Couneil” - The City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

“Debt Service” - As of any particular date of computation, with respect to any Bonds and with respect to any period, the
aggregate of the amounts to be paid or set aside by the City as of such date or in such period for the payment of the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest (1o the extent not capitalized) on such Bonds; assuming, in the case of Bonds required to be redeemed
or prepaid as to principal prior to maturity, the principal amounts thereof will he redeemed prior to maturity in accordance with the
mandatory redemption provisions applicable thereto.

“Depository™ - A commercial bank or other qualificd financial institution eligible and qualified to serve as the custodian
aof the City's monetary accounts and funds.

“Fiscal Year” - The twelve month financial accounting period used by the City ending September 30 in each year, or
such other twelve consecutive month petiod established by the City.

“Government Obligations™ - Unless otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificare, (i) direct noncallable obligations of the
United Stales of America, including obligations the principal of and interest on which are uncorditionally guaranteed by the United
States of America, (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City
are rated as 1o investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent,
{iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been
refunded and on the date of their scquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized
investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent and (iv) any other then authorized securities or obligations that may be
used o defease obligations such as the Bonds under the then applicable laws of the State of Texas,

“Gross Sales Tax Revenues” - All of the revenues or receipts due or owing to, or collected or received by or on behalf of
the City or otherwise pursuant o the provisions of the Act and the election held May 10, 2014, less any amounts due and owed to
the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas as charges for the collection of the Sales Tax or retention by said
Comptroller for vefunds and to vedeem dishonored checks and drafis, to the extent such charges and retention are authorized or
required by law.

“Outstanding” - When used in this Ordinance with respect to Bonds or Parity Bonds, as the case may be, means, as of
the date of determination, all Bonds and Parity Bonds theretofore sold, issued end delivered by the City, except:

(n those Bonds or Parity Bonds canceled or delivered ta the transfer agent or registrar for cancellation
in connection with the exchange or transfer of such obligations;

) those Bonds or Parity Bonds paid or deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section
21 hereof or similar provisions of any Supplemental Ordinance; and

(3) those Bonds or Parity Bonds that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen and replacement
obligations have been registered and delivered in lieu thereof,

“Parity Bonds™ - Collectively, the Previously 1ssued Bonds and the Bonds.
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Actuarial Assumpfions
The Total Pension Licbility in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions;

[nfiation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.0% 1o 11.50% per year including Inflation

Investrment rate of return. £.75%, net of pension plan Investment
expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, refirees, and
beneficiaies were bosed on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with
Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%, The rates
are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For
disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Coliar
Adjustment are used with males rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a three-
year set-forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied fo reflect
the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuaricl investigation of the
experience of TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014, They
were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-refirement
mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate [APRs) are based on the
Maortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013.
In conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the System adopted
the Entry Age Nommal Actuarial cost method and a one-time chonge to the amortization policy. Plan
assefs are manages on a fotal return basis with an emphasis on both copital appreciation as well as
the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using o building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected fulure real rates of refum [expected returns, net
of pension plan invesiment expense and infiation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined fo produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of retum by the target asset dllocation percentage ond by adding expecied inflation. In
determining their best estimate of a recommended investment refurn assumption under the various
altemative asset dllocation portiolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean [agaressive|
without an adjustment for time [conservative) and (2} the geometric mean (conservative) with an
adjustment for fime (agaressive). The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return tor each
major asset class in fiscal year 2020 are summarized in the following table:

Lang-Tarm Expected
Real Rote of Retum

Assed Closs Target Allocalion [ Arit medich
Domeskic Equity 17.5% 4.20%
Intemationd Equity 17.5% 4.10%
Core Fiked Income 10.0% 1.00%
Mon-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 137%
Redl Relun 10.0% 3.78%
Red Elale 100% 444%
Absolute Relum 10.0% I54%
Private Equily 50% 175%
Tetal 100.0%
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Benefits Provided
TMRS provides refiremeant, disability, ond death benefits, Benefit provisions are adopted by the goveming
body of the city, within the options availabls in the state statutes govemning TMRES.

Af retirement, the benefit s calculated as if the sum of the employee's contibutions, with interest, and
the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used fo purchase an annuity, Members may choose
to receive their refirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose fo
receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Dishibution in an amount equal ta 12, 24, or 36
monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest,

Plan provisions for the City are as fellows:

Employee deposit rate 7%

Matching rafic |City to employes]  2to

Years required for vesting 5

Service refirement eligibility 25 years af any age, 5 years
at age 40 and above

Updated service credit 100% Repeating lransfers

Anruity increase toretireas 70% of CP| Repeating

Additional information related to the TMRS Plan is located in the TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report.

Em ees Covere Benefit Tell

At the December 31, 2019 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries curently receiving benefits 824

Inactive employess entitled to but not yel receiving benefits 643

Active employaes 1,386

Total 2853
Contributions

The contribution rates for employses in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross eamings, and the
city malching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the city. Under the state low goveming TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually
by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN] actuarial cost methoed. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary fo finance the cost of benefits eamed by employees during the yvear,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Grand Praliie were required fo confribute 7% of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year, The confribution rates for the City of Grand Prairie were 14.30% and 16.09% in
calendar years 2019 and 2020, respectively. The Cify's confiibutions 1o TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 2020, were $17,153,441, and were equal to the required contibutions.

Met Pension Liability

The city's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the Tatal Pension Liability
[TPL) used fo calculate the Met Pension Liability was determined by an actuaridl valuation as of that date.
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“Pledged Revenues” - Collectively (i) Gross Sales Tax Revenues from time to time deposited or owing to the Central
Park Venue Project Fund and (ii) such other money, income, revenue, receipts or other property as may be specifically dedicaved,
pledged or otherwise encumbered in a Supplemental Ordinance.

“Previously lssued Bonds” - All bonds or other obligations heretofore issued and now outstanding that ave payable from
and secured by a lien on and pledge of all or any part of the Pledged Revenues, including but not limited to, the unpaid bonds or
other obligations of the following issue or series: “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2015,
dated November 1, 2015,

“Gales Tax™ - The local sales and use tax authorized under Subchapter D of the Act, approved at an election held on May
10, 2014, and the effective date for the imposition and application of such Sales Tax within the corporate limits of the City by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas being October 1, 2015, together with any increases in the rate of such Sales
Tax authorized and provided by law.

“Supplemental Ordinance”- Any ordinance of the City Council supplementing this Ordinance for the purpose of
providing the terms and provisions of the Bonds, or supplementing or amending this Ordinance for any other authorized pupose
permitted in Section 22 hereof, including ordinances pledging and encumbering income, revenues, receipts or property other than
the Gross Sales Tax Revenues to the payment and security of the Parity Bonds.

SECTION 11: Pledge. The City hereby covenants and agrees that the Pledged Revenues, with the exception of
those in excess of the amounts required for the payment and secwity of the Bonds, are hereby irrevocably pledged to the payment
and security of the Bonds including the establishment and mai of the special funds created and established in any ordinance
authorizing the Previously Issued Bonds, this Ordinance and any Supp tal Crrdi , @l as hereinafter provided, The City
hereby grants a lien on the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance and any Supplementsl Ordinance,
which lien shall be valid and binding without any further action by the City and without any filing or recording with respect thereto
except in the records of the City.

SECTION 12: Central Park Venue Projeet. The City has established and hereby agrees and covenants to maintain
a fund or account at a Depository for the deposit of the Pledged Revenues as received by the City, which fund or account shall be
Known on the books and records of the City as the “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Central Park Venue Project Fund” (the “Venue
Project Fund™), All Pledged Revenues deposited to the credit of such Fund shall be accounted for separste and apart from all other
revenues, receipts and income of the City and, with respect to the Gross Sales Tax Reverues, the City shall further account for such
funds separate and apart from the ather Pledged Revenues deposited to the credit of the Venue Project Fund. All Pledged Revenues
deposited to the credit of the Venue Project Fund shall be appropriated and expended to the extent required by this Ordinance and
any Supplemental Ordinance for the following uses and in the order of priority shown:

First: To the payment of the amounts requived to be deposited in the Bond Fund for the payment of
Debt Service on the Parity Bonds as the same becomes dug and payable;

Second:  'To the payment of ts required to be deposited in any other fund or account required by
any Supplemental Ordinance; and

Third: After satisfying the foregoing payments, or making edequate and sufficient provision for the
payment thereof, Pledged Revenues may be approprinted and used for any other lawful purpose
mow or hereafter permitted by the Act and the election authorizing the Sales Tax.

Any amaunt in the Venue Project Fund after satisfying the foregoing payments, or making adequate and sufficient
provision for the payment thereof, may be appropriated and used for any purpose permitted by Section 334.001 (4)(D) of the Act,
related to the improvernents and additions 10 Central Park or ather type of area or facility that is planned for use for providing park
and recreation facilities including a recreation center, indoor and outdoor water park fecilities, playground facilities, trails,
amphitheaters and other park and recreation facilities related 1o the Central Park facilitics and related infiastructure,

SECTION 13: Bond Fund. For the purpose of providing funds to pay the principal of'and interest on the Bonds, the
City has agreed and covenanted and does hereby agree and covenant 1o maintain a separate and special account or fund on the
books and records of the City known as the “City of Grand Praivie, Texas Sales Tax Revenue Central Park Bond Fund” (the “Bond
Fund™), and all monies deposited to the eredit of the Bond Fund shall be held in a special banking fund or account maintained at a
Depasitory of the City. The Cily covenants that there shall be deposited into the Bond Fund prior ta each principal and interest
payment date from the Pledged Revenues an amount equal to one hundred per centum (100%) of the interest on and the prinipal
of the Bonds then falling due and payable, and such deposits to pay principal and acerued intevest on the Bonds shall be made in
substantially equal monthly installments on or before (i) the 15% day of the month commencing on the date set forth in the Pricing
Cenificate or (i) the first business day next following the date Gross Sales Tax Revenues are first received from the State
Comptrofler of Public Accounts, whichever date is the later.
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The required deposits to the Bond Fund for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds shall continue 1o be
made as hereinabove provided until (i) the total amount on deposit in the Bond Fund is equal to the ameunt required to fully pay
and discharge all Bonds (principal and interest) then Outstanding or (i) the Bonds are no longer Outstanding.

SECTION 14: Deficiencies. [f on any occasion there shall not be sufficient Pledged Revenues to make the required
deposits into the Bond Fund, such deficiency shall be cured as soon as possible from the next available Pledged Revenues, or from
any other sources available for such purpose,

SECTION 15: Payment of Bonds. While any of the Bonds are Outstanding, the Chief Financial Officer of the City
{or other designated financial officer of the City) shall cause to be transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from funds on deposit
in the Bond Fund amounts sufficient to fully pay and discharge promptly as each installment of interest and principal of the Bonds
accrues or matures; such transfer of funds to be made in such manner as will cause immediately available funds to be deposited
with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds at the close of the business day next preceding the date of payment for the Bonids,

SECTION 16: Investments - Security of Funds.

Maney in any fund required to be maintained pursuant to this Ordinance may, at the option of the City, be invested in
obligations and in the manner prescribed by the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as
amended), including investments held in book-entry form; provided that all such deposits and investments shall be made in such a
manner that the money required to be expended from any Fund will be available at the proper time or times. Such investments
shall be valued in terms of current market value within forty-five (45) days of the close of each Fiscal Year. All interest and income
derived from deposits and investments in the Bond Fund immediately shall be credited to, and any losses debited to, the appropriate
account of the Bond Fund. All such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary 1o prevent any default in connection with
the Parity Bonds.

That money deposited to the eredit of the Venue Project Fund and Bond Fund, to the extent not invested and not otherwise
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Comporation or similar agency, shall be secured in a manner permitted by the Public Funds
Collateral Act (Texas Government Code, Chapier 2257, as amended).

SECTION 1T: Refunding Bonds, The City reserves the right to issue refunding bonds to refund all or any part of
the Parity Bonds (pursuant to any law then available) upon such terms and conditions as the City may deem to be in the best interest
of the City.

SECTION 18: onfirmation and Levy of Sales T

(a) The City hereby represents that it has duly complied with the provisions of the Act for the levy of the Sales
Tax at the rate voted at the election held by and within the City on May 10, 2014, and such Sales Tax will be imposed within the
corporate limits of the City and the receipts of such Sales Tax are to be remitted to the City by the Comptroller of Public Accounts
at least semiannually,

(b) While any Bonds are Outstanding, the City , agrees and to take and pursue all action
permissible to cause the Sales Tax to be levied and collected continuously, in the manner and to the maximum extent permitted by
tuw, and to cause no reduction, sbatement o exemption in the Sales Tax or rate of tax below the rate stated, confimmed and ordered
in subsection (a) of this Section to be ordered or permitied while any Bonds shall remain Outstanding.

(c) If hereafler suthorized by law to apply, impose and levy the Sales Tax on any taxable items or transactions that
are not subject to the Sales Tax on the date of the adoption hereof, to the extent it legally may do so, the City agrees to use its best
efforts to cause the City to take such sction as may be required to subject such taxable items or transactions to the Sales Tax.

(d) The City agrees to take and pursue all action legally permissible to cause the Sales Tax to be collected and
remitied and deposited as herein required and as required by the Act, at the earliest and most frequent times permitted by law.

(e} The City agrees o use its best efforts to cause Gross Sales Tax Revenues to be deposited to the credit of the
Venue Project Fund in their entirety immediately upon receipt by the City. In the alternative and if legally authorized, the City
shall, by appropriate notice, direction, request or other legal method, use its good-faith efforts to cause the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas (the “*Comptroller™) to pay all Gross Sales Tax Revenues directly to the City for deposit to the
Venue Project Fund,

SECTION 19: Regords and Accounts. The City hereby covenants and agrees that while any of the Bonds are
Quistanding, it will keep and mainiai plete records and in accordance with 1l pied ing principl
and following the close of each Fiscal Year, it will cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made by an independent firm
of certified public accountants. Each such audit, in addition to whatever other matters may be thought proper by the accountant,
shall partieularly include the following;
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Liabilifies of the Risk Management Fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has oceurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably esfimated. Liabilities include an ameunt for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBMR). The result of the process to estimate the claims liablity is not an exact
amount as it depends on many complex factars, such as inflation, timing of filed claims, adjudication of
cldim benefits, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards.

Accordingly, claims are reevaluated annudlly to consider the effects of inflafion, plan benefit designs,
recent claim settlement trends, claim expense. and other economic and social factors. The estimate of
the claims liability also includes ameounts far incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific
claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardiess of whether dllocated to specific claims. The fotal
acerued liabilifies for the Risk Management Fund based on the recent September 30, 2020 actuarial report
was $4,32),886.

The City offers group health coverage to ifs employees and retfirees in plans administered by
Urited Health Care using an escrow account funded by the City with both employee and City
confributions. The City allows refired employees under age 65 fo continue participating in its group health
insurance program after retirement with a portion of premiums paid by the City. The amount of premiums
paid by refirees is based on the refirement date, length of service with the City, plan selected and
dependentis covered at the time of retirement. The City retains risk for up to $400,000 per member per
year, and fransfers risk in excess of this amount fo a reinsurer. Reported claims are charged to expense in
the period the loss is incuned. The total accrued liabilities for health insurance as of September 30, 2020
were $1.941 897,

At September 30, 2020, the change in estimates of accrual liobilifies for health coverage for the risk
management fund:

Beginning of Claims and End of
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fscaol Year
Liability Estimoles Payments Liability
2020 $ 4145960 § 19.807.058 § 17469235 § 4283783
201% 397,327 15,449,741 15,275,108 4,145,960
2018 3861819 16,301,886 16,192,378 3,971,327

J. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plon Description

The City participates as one of 888 plans in the nohfraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plon administered by the Texas Municipal Refirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created
by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employess in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of
the System with o six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Govemnar, with the advice and consent of
the Senate. appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined
benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS
issues a publicly ovailable comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained at
www trmrs.com,

All eligible employees of the city are required to participcte in TMRS,
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Environmental remediafion liability activity in fiscal year 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balonce Balance Current
Property Descriplion 9/30/2019 Additions Reductions S/30/2020 Portion
Copelond Home Asbestos Abatemen!  § 20900 § - % - § 20900 % 20500
Service Center 13,742 - {13.742] - -
Development Cenfer Abatemeni 42395 2 (42.395) = -
Total $ 77037 § - § (56137) $% 20900 3§ 20900

Other Liabilities

Sales Tax Payback

During fiscal year 2008, the Texas Compholler of Public Accounts nofified the City of an eror in sales
tax payments made fo the City, The error was the result of a local business reparting and paying foxes
incorectly to the State Comptroller over several years. The overpayment by the business resulted in an
overpayment to the City for $2,386,464. In 2012, a liability for this amount was recorded by the City and is
repaid from future sales tax revenue over a period of thiteen years. As of September 30, 2020, the llability
equaled $1,139,367.

I. Risk Moanagement

The City currently administers o deductible pregram for Workers Compensation, all Liabiity, Property,
Airport, and Crime claims through the Texas Municipal League Infergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP], a
public entity risk pool. The TMLIRP sustains itself through member premiums and stop loss coverage for
excess claims through commercial insurers.

The City's curent per occurrence and aggregate limits through the TMLIRP are as follows:

Coverage Per Occurrence  Aggregate
General Liobility $ 1000000 § 2000000
Law Enforcement Licbiiity 3,000,000 6,000,000
Errors and Omissions 3,000,000 4,000,000
Automabile Liability 3,000,000 NfA
Airport Liability 10.000.000 10.000.000

Curent deductibles with TMLIRP are $350,000 for Workers Cempensation with no aggregate retenfion:
$300,000 tor all liabiity lnes (General, Law Enforcement, Public Officials, and Auto Liability): $1.000 for
Automobiles; and $10,000 for Maobile Equipment.

The City's operaling funds ore charged premiums for coverage provided by the Risk Management Fund
based on approved annual budgets with adjustments based on estimates of the amounts needed to
pay prior and current-year claims, These inter-fund premiums are used fo reduce the amount of actual
expenditures.
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[0} A statement in reasonable detail regarding the receipt and disbursement of the Pledged Revenues for
such Fiscal Year, and

) A balance sheet for the City as of the end of such Fiscal Year,

Such annual audit of the records and accounts of the City shall be in the form of a report and be accompanied by an
opinion of the accountant to the effect that such examination was mude in accerdance with generally accepted auditing standards
and contain & statement to the effect that in the course of making the examination necessary for the report and opinion, the:
aceountant obiained ro knowledge of any default of the City on the Bonds or in the fulfillment of any of the terms, covenants or
provisions of this Ordirence, or under any other evidence of indebtedness, or of any event which, with notice or lapse of time, or
both, would constitute a failure of the City to comply with the provisions of this Ordinance or if, in the opinion of the accountants,
any such failure to comply withac or ags hereof, a statement as to the nature and status thereof shall be included.

Copies of each annual audit report shall be furnished upon written request, to any Registered Owners of any of said
Bonds. The audits hercin required shall be made within 120 days following the close of each Fiscal Year insofar as is possible.

The Registered Owners of any Bonds or any duly authorized agent or agents of such Registered Owners shall have the
right o inspect such records, accounts and data of the City during regular business hours.

SECTION 20: Representations as to Security for the Bonds.
(a) The City represents and warrants that, except for the Parity Bonds, the Pledged Revenues are and will be and

remain free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance thereon or with respect thereto prior 1o, or of equal rank with, the
pledge and Tien created in or authorized by this Ordinance except as expressly provided herein.

(k) The Bonds and the provisions of thie Ordinance are and will be the valid and legally enforceable obligations
of the City in accordance with their terms and the terms of this Ordinance, subject only to any applicable bankruptey or insolvency
laws or to any laws affecting creditors rights ily.

(€ The City shall at all times, to the extent permitted by law, defiend, preserve and protect the pledge of the Pledged
Revenues and all the rights of the Registered Onwners against all claims and demends of all persons whomsoever.

(d) The City will take, and use its best efforts to cause the City to inke, all steps reasomably necessary and
appropriate to collect all delinguencics in the collection of the Sales Tax to the fullest extent permitted by the Act.

{e) The provisions, covenants, pledge and lien on and against the Pledged Revenues, as herein set forth, are
established and shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the owners and holders of Bonds without distinction as to
priority and rights under this Ordinance.

)] The Bonds shall constitute special obligations of the City, payable solely from, and equally and ratably sccured
by a parity pledge of and lien on, the Pledged Revenues, and not from any other revenues, properties or income of the City. The
Bonds may not be paid in whole or in part from any property taxes raised or to be raised by the City &nd shall not constitute debts
or obligations of the State or of the City, and the Registered Owners, shall never bave the right to demand payment out of any funds
raised or to be raised by any system of ad valorem taxation,

SECTION 21: Satisfaction of Obligation of City. If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall atherwise
be paid to the Registered Owners, the principal of, premivm, if any, and interest on the Bonds, at the times and in the manner
stipulated in this Ordinance, then the pledge of the Pledged Revenues under this Ordinance and all other obligations of the City to
the Regisiered Owners shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be discharged and satisfied.

Bonds or any principal amount(s) shall be deemed 1o have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed
above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in full such Bonds at maturity, together with all interest due thereon, shall
have been ircevocably deposited with and held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, or
(i) Government Obligations shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow
agent, which Government Obligations have been certified by an independent a ing or Iting firm to mature as to principal
and inferest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money, together
with any moneys deposited therewith, iT any, to pay when due the Bonds on the Stated Maturities thereof or (iFnotice of redemption
has been duly given or waived or if irrevacable arrangements thetefor accepted to the Paying Agent/Registrar have been made) the
redemption date thereof,

Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registiar, or an authorized escrow agent, and all income from
Government Obligations held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, pursuant to this Section in
excess of the amount required for the payment of the Bonds shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the City.
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Furthermore, any money held by the Paying AgenuRegistrar for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and
remaining unclaimed for a period of three (3) vears after the Stated Maturity, or applicable redemption date, of the Bonds such
moneys were deposited and are held in trust to pay shall, upon the request of the City, be remitted to the City against a written
receipt therefor. Notwithstanding the above and foregoing, any remittance of funds from the Paying Agent/Registrar to the City
shall be subject to any applicable unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas.

SECTION 22: Ordingnce a Contract - Amendments, This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Registered
Owners from time to time, be binding on the City, and shall not be amended or repealed by the City while any Bond remains
8] ling except as permitted in this Section. The City, may, without the consemt of or notice 1o any Registered Owners, from

time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the Registered Owners,
including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein. In addition, the City may, with the
written consent from the owners holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding affected thersby,
amend, add 1o, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the written consent of all Registered
Ormers of Outstanding Bonds effected, na such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the time or times of pay ment
of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof or the rate of interest thereon,
or in any other way modifiy the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give any
preference to any Bond over any other Bond, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be held for consent
to any such amendment, addition, or rescission,

T

INVESTMENTS

The City invests its investable funds in investments authorized by Texas law in aecordance with investment policies approved by the
Ciry Council of the City (“Investment Policies™). Both State law and the City's investment policies are subject to change.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS . . . Under State law, the City is authorized to invest in obligations meeting the requirements of the Public
Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended (the “PFIA™), which may include: (1) obligations,
including letters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, including the Federal Home Loan Banks, (2)
direct oblizations of the State or its ies and i talities; (3) collateralized morigege obligations direcily issued by a
federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or
instrumentality of the United Stales; (4) other obligations, the principal and interest of which are guaranteed or insured by, or
backed by the full faith and credit of, the State or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities; {5} obligations
of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state rated as to investment guality by a nationally
recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent; (6) bonds issued, assumed or gnaranteed by the State of Israel;
{7 (i) that are issved by or through an institution that has its main office or a branch office in Texas and are guaranteed or insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund, or are sccured as to principal by
obligations described in clauses (1) through (6) or in any other manner and amount provided by law for City deposits; or {ii) where
(a) the funds are invested by the City through (1) & broker that has its main office or a branch office in the State of Texas and is
selected from a list adopted by the City as required by law or (11} a depository institution that has its main office or a branch office
in the State of Texas that is sclected by the City; (k) the broker or the depository institution selected by the City amanges for the
deposit of the funds in centificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository institutions, wherever located, for the
account of the City; (¢} the full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the certificates of depasit is insured by the
United States or an instrumentality of the United States, and (d) the City appoints the depository institution selected under (z)
above, a custodian as described by Section 225704 1(d} of the Texas Government Code, or & clearing broker-dealer registered with
the Szcurities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢3-3 (17 CF.R.
Section 240.15¢3-3) as custodian for the City with respect to the certificates of deposit; (8) fully collateralized repurchase
agreements that have a defined termination date, are fully secured by a combination of cash and obligations described in elause (1)
which are pledged to the City, held in the City's name, and depesited at the time the investment is made with the City or with a
third party selected and approved by the City and are placed through a primary govemment securities dealer; as defined by the
Federal Reserve, or a financial institution doing business in the State; {9) cerfain bankers' acceptances with the remaining torm of
270 days or less, if the short-tenm obligations of the accepting bank or its parent are rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by
at least one nationally recognized credit rating agency, (10 commercial paper with a stated maturity of 365 days or less that 1s
rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by cither (a) two nationally recognized credit rating agencies or (b} one nationally
recognized credit rating agency if the commercial paper is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank organized
and existing under the laws of the United States or any state, (11) no-load money market mutual funds registered with and regulated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission that have a dollar weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less and include in
their investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset value of §1 for each share, and (12) no-load mutwal funds registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission that have an average weighted maturity of less than two years, invest exclusively in
obligations described in this paragraph, and are continuously rated gs to investment quality by at least one nationally recogrized
investment rating fem of not less than AAA or its equivalent. If specifically authorized in the authorizing document, bond proceeds
may be invested in guaranteed investment contracts that have a defined termination date and are secured by obligations of the
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The capital lease is being amortized using the interest method over the 30-year life of the lease. The
Corporation hos recorded lease rental and interesl for the year ended September 30, 2020 as follows:

Mominal interest on the lease $ 1759320
amortization of the lease (1,025364)
Met interest 733956
Contingent rerfals recelved (includes rent for simulcast

facility prior to completion of project| 125,745
Total lease rental and interest 3 859,701

Closure and Post Closure Liability

State and federal laws and regulations require the City ta place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for
30 years after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs wil be paid only near or after the
date that the landfills stop accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and post closure
care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance
sheet date. The City follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 18 Accounting for Municipal Salid Waste
Londfil Closure dnd Post closure Care Costs. Accordingly, the City has recorded a closure and post
closure care liability of $8,648,946 in the Solid Waste Fund. The total liabiity represents the cumulative
amount reported to date based on the use of 49.69% of the estimated capacity of the landfill,

The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post closure care of $8,943,097 as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled. The City expects to close the londfillin year 2037. Actual cost may
be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations,

Environmental Remediation Obligafi

The City has recorded a liability and an asset related to environmental remediation in the amount of
$20,700, in the Staternent of Net Position and Statement of Activities, The estimates of the liabilities are
prepared by the Environmental Professional Group and by the City's Environmental Quality Manager and
based on arange of expected outlays, net of expected cost recoveries, if any, for the type and amount
of pollution contamination detected. The estimates are reviewed and adjusted periodically for price
changes, additional contamination and any other changes detected.

« The City owns the building and is responsible for the asbestos abatement of the Copeland home
located ai 125 SW Dallas Streef,
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On March 5, 2009, Magna Entertainment Corporation, the parent company of MEC, filed for bankruptcy
under Chapter 11 federal bankruptcy protection, Subsequently, on September 14, 2009, Lone Star filed
for bankrupicy protection.

On October 23, 2009, an auction for Lone Star was conducted with Global Gaming LSP, LLC {a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Chickasaw Nation| winning the auction for $47 million.

On May 13,2011, Global Gaming obiained their license with the Texas Racing Commission. The sale was
completed on May 16, 2011, Under the terms of the purchase agreement, Global Gaming has agreed fo
assume the lease agreement between Lone Star and the Sports Corporation,

The agreement states that upon completion of the project, Global Gaming will lease the facility for a
period of thirty years. The lease became effective April 1997 and meets the requirements for accounting
as a direct financing lease.

The fulure base rent payments under the lease are as follows!

Year Amount
2021 b 1.756.920
2022 1,888,689
2023 1.932.612
2024 1,932,612
2025 1,932,612
Thereafter 3,124,389
12,567,834
Less inferest 2,840,830
Met present value 9,727,004
Less cument portion 1,025,364

Non-current porion 3 8,701,440
—_—

Additional confingent rentals are due monthly based upon 1% of gross revenues from the operation of
the track for each month plus an amount equal to the cumulative net retainage from the live races and
the simulcast races mulfiplied by the following percentage:

Cumulative Net Retainoges Percentage
$0 1o less thon $20 million 1%
$20 million o less than $40 million 3%
$40 million to less than $60 million 5%
$60 million or more 7%

The lease has been accounted for as a capital lease. However, only the base rent payments are
determinable and are included in the lease payments receivable at the net present value of future rent
payments. The remaining portion of the Facility is recorded as estimated unguaranteed residual value of
the lease. Its fair value is esimated to be approximately equal to the differences between the original
cost plus capitalized improvements of the Facility, net of whal accumulated depreciation would be, and
the fixed lease payments receivable, Therefore, this amount is being amortized over the life of the lease
(thirty years). Amorfization for the year ended September 20, 2020 was $4,305,040 Addifional contingeni
rentals are recorded as revenue when recelived.

72

United States or its agencies and instrumentalities in an amount at Jeast equal to the amount of bond proceeds invested under such
contract, otler than the prohibited obligations described in the next suceeeding paragraph.

The City may inves! in such obligations directly or through government investment pools that invest solely in such obligations provided
that the poals are rated no lower than AAA or AAAmM or an equivalem by at least one nationally recognized rating service. The City
may #lso coniract with an investment t firms registered under the Ir Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section
80b-1 et seq.) or with the State Securities Board to provide for the investment and management of its public funds or other funds
under its contral for a term up to two years, but the City retains ultimate responsibility as fiduciary of its assets. In order to renew
or extend such a contract, the City must do so by order, ordinance, or resalution. The City is specifically prohibited from investing
in: (1) obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-
backed security collateral and pays no principal; (2) obligations whose payment tepresents the pringipal stream of cash flow from the
underlying mortgage-backed security and bears no interest; (3) collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final niaturity of
greater than 10 years; and (4) collateralized mortgage abligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts
opposite 1o the changes in a market index,

Giovernmental bodies in the State are authorized to implement securities lending programs if (i) the securities loaned under the
program are collateralized, a loan made under the program allows for termination st any time and a paragraph under lhnssuhcapuon,
[b) inevocable letters of credit issued by a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any state that is
continuously rated by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than "A" or its equivalent, or (¢) cash invested in
obligations that are described in clauses (1) through (6) and (10) through (12) of the second paragraph under this caption, or an
authorized investment pool; (ii) securities held as collateral under a loan are pledged to the governmental body, held in the name
of the povemmental body and deposited at the time the investment is made with the Agency or a third party designated by the
Agency; (iii)a loan made under the program is placed through either a primary government securities dealer or a financial institution
doing business in the State; and (iv) the agreement to lend securities has a term of one year or less,

INVESTMENT POLICIES . . . Under Texas law, the City is required to invest its funds under written investment policies that primarily
emphnsme safety of principal and hqmduy. that address investment diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of

+ and that includes a list of authorized investments for City funds, maximum allowable stated maturity of any
individual i the maxi average doll ighted maturity allowed for pooled fund groups, methods to monitor the market
price of investments acquired with public funds, a requirement for settlement of all transactions, except investment pool funds and
mutual funds, on a delivery versus payment basis, and procedures to monitor rating changes in investments acquired with public
funds and the liquidation of such investments consistent with the Public Funds [nvestment Act, All City funds must be invested
consistent with a formally edopted *Investment Strategy Statement” that specifically addresses each fund’s investment, Each Investment
Strategy Statemnent will describe its objectives concerming: (1) suitability of investment type, (2) preservation and safety of principal, (3)
liquidity, (4) marketability of each investment, (5) diversification of the portfolio, and (6) yield.

Under Texas law, Uity investments must be made "with judgment and care, under peevailing circumstances, that a person of pradence,
discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person's own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment,
considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived." At least quarterly the investment officers of the City
shall submit an investment report detailing: (1) the investment position of the City, {2} that all investment officers jointly prepared and
signed the report, (3) the beginning market value, , the ending market value and fully accrued interest during the reporting period of
each pooled fund group, (4) the book value and market value of each separately listed assel at the end of the reporting period, (3) the
maturity date of each separately invested asset, (6} the account or fund or pooled fund group for which each individual investment was
acquired, and (7) the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates to: {a) adopted investment sirategy statements and (b) state
law. No person may invest City funds without express written authority from the City Council.

ADDITIONAL PrOVISIONS . . . Under State law, the City is additionmally required 10: (1) annuaily review its adopted policies and
strategies, (2) adopt a rule, order, ordinance or vesolution stating that it has reviewed its investment policy and investment strategies
and records any changes made to either its investment policy or investment strategy in the resp rule, order, ordi or
resolution, (3) require any investment officers with personal business relationships or relatives with firms secking to sell securities
1o the City to disclose the relationship and filea s with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City Council; (4) require the
qualified representative of firms offering to engage in an investment transaction with the Ciry to. (a) reoei\ne and review the City's
investment policy, (b} acknowledge that reasonable confrols and pmcednres have been imp I 1o preclude i
transactions conducted between the City and the business organization that are not aulhunzxd by the City's investment pollcy
{exeep! to the extent that llm authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the City’s entire portfolio or requires an
interpretation of subjecti dards), and {c) deliver a written statement in a form acceptable to the City and the
business organization altesting lc these requiremenis; (5) perform an annual audit of the management contrals on investments and
adherence 1o the City’s investment policy; (6) provide specific investment training for the City’s designated Investment Officer;
(7) resirict reverse repurchase agreements to not more than 90 days and restrict the investment of reverse repurchase agreement
funds to o greater than the tetm of the reverse purchase agreement; (8) restrict the investient in non-money marked mural funds
in the aggregate to no more than | 5% of the City"s monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds and reserves and other
funds held for debt service; (%) require local government investment pools to conform to the new disclosure, rating, net asset value,
yield caleulation, and advisory board requirements, and {10) at least annually review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified brokers
that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with the City.
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THE CITY's INVESTMENT POLICIES

The City Menager designates the Chief Financial Officer as the City's chicf investment officer. The Treasury and Debt Manager,
Centroller, and Treasury Analyst are designated as additional investment officers. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the
City's comprehensive cash management program, including the administration of the Inmrmcnl Palicies, The Chief Financial Officer
is responsible for considering the quality and capability of staff involved in siment i t and p | The Chief
Financial Officer shall be rcspunSIblc for authorizing investments and the Treasury and Debl Manager shall account for investments
and pledged collatersl in order to maintain appropriate internal controls. The Controller shall be responsible for recording investments
in the City's I:mkx of accounts. The Iniemal Audit staff shall audit records monthly and the extemal auditors will review for
management on in and adl 10 policy as reguired by law,. On November 16, 2021, the City Council approved
and readopted the Investment Policies.

City palicy requmes investments in sccordance with applicable State law, specifically the PFIA. The City's Investment Policy does
not perm itthe i investment at‘Clry funds in all eligible investments permitted by State law. Furthermore, this pollcy specifically prohibits

it in the g in seculities.

L Obligations whose p the coupon payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying
mong,nge-bucked security oo]lmcral and pays no principal.

Obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the underfying mortgage-backed security
w]latmnl and bears no interest.

Culhitﬁllmnd morigage obhgallans that have a stated final nsaturity date of greater than 10 years.
4. Call gatons the interest rate of which is defermined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes
in a market index.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

An Investment Committee consisting of the Treasury Analyst, Treasury and Debt Manager, Controller, Chief Financial Officer, and
Deputy City Manager shall meet as frequently as necessary to review the City's investment portfolio. The commitiee shall also meet
as necessary fo add or delete a financial institution or broker/'dealer from the list of institutions with which the City may do business or
to conduct other business. The commitiee shall also meet to review prospectuses, financial st and other performance data on
money market mutual funds and shall formulate recommendations on the advisability of investing in specific funds for the
consideration of the City Council.

Any three of the five Investment Committee members constitute a quomem. The Treasury and Debt Manager shall serve as chairman
ofthe committee, and maintain written record of investment committee meetings.

CurrENT INVESTMENTS . . . As of December 31, 2021 the following percentages of the City's investible funds were invested in the
following categories of investments:

Ty pe of Investment Percentape Total Cast
Lacal Government Pools and M oney Market Funds 16.03% £ 74,146,404
Federal Agency and Instrumentality Notes B3.97% 388,538,723

3_sensusns

TAX MATTERS

The following is a general summary of the United States federal income tax consequences of the purchase and ownership of the
Bonds. The discussion is based upon laws, Treasury Regulati rulings and decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to
change or possibly differing interpretations. No assurances can be given that future changes in the law will not alter the conclusions
reached herein, The discussion below does not purport 1o deal with United States federal income tax consequences applicable to
all catégories of investors. Further, this summary does not discuss all aspecis of United States federal income taxation that may be
relevant to a particular investor in the Bonds in light of the investor's particular personal investment circumstances or to certain
types of investors subject to special trestment under United States federal income tax laws (including insurance companies, tax
exempt organizations, financial institutions, brokers-dealers, and persons who have hedged the risk of owning the Bonds). The
summary is therefore limited to certain issues relating to initial investors who will hold the Bonds as “capital assets™ within the
meaning of section 1221 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), and acquire such Bonds for investment
and not as a dealer or for resale, Prospective investors should note that no rulings have been or will be sought from the Internal
Revenue Service (the “IRS™) with respect to any of the U.S. federal income tax consequences discussed below, and no assurance
can be given that the TRS will not take contrary positions.
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and ifi i inance Corporation
The GPHFC has a general obligation note payable to a bank which was used to construct the Cotton
Creek and Willow Tree Learning Center. The note bears a rate of 4.25% and is payable in equal monthly
instaliments of $12,438 through September 21, 2040,

In December, 2003, the HFC issued Independent Senior Living Center Revenue Bonds for $13,8%0,000 o
finance the construction and operations of its planned Senior Living Center faciity. The bonds bear
interest rates from 7.5% to 7.75% depending on longevity. Beginning January 1, 2011, semi-annual
retirernents of the Bonds began and continues through January 1, 2034, The bonds are non-ecourse
liabilities collaterclized solely by the land and construction in progress, less the accrued interest,

A surnmary of long-term debt activity during the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:

Due

Beginning Endling Within

Bdance Additions Celetions Balance COne Year
Note payable $ zZl4gez § - § (606130 § 2054379 5 43,148
Revenue bonds 7.180,000 - [255,000) £505,000 265,000
Subordinate bonds 4,550,000 - - 4,550,000 -
Developer loan 1,425,532 41,759 = 1 467,271 =
Todal $ 15250524 % 41,759 3 [315613) F 14974470 5§ 328148

Effective July 1, 2010 the bonds of the Senior Living Center were reissued in two series: $8,630,000 in Priority
Lien Revenue Bonds and $4,550,000 in Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds.

Future maturilies of the debt are as follows:

Year Ending Mote Payoble Revenue Bonds
Decamber 31, Principal Inferast Principal Interest
2020 $ 43148 % B6,109 3§ 245000 §  529.837
20 45,885 83,372 295,000 508,781
2022 68,740 80517 315000 485,731
2023 71.71% 77.538 340000 40738
2024 74,824 74,429 370,000 434,000
2025-2029 425,682 320,602 2335000 1.6681.944
2030-2034 526,271 220,013 2,985,000 604,306
2035-2039 ASDLAZY 95,455 - ES
2040 107.481 1,889 * -
Total $ 205437% 0§ 1,040,124 § £705000 § 4705537

The Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds are not scheduled above as their payments are contingent upon
cash flow and payment amounts and periods are uncertain,

Leases

Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Dev orts Corporation] - nent Unit

On September 15, 1995, the Sports Corparaflon and LSJC entered into a lecse agreement. On
Ociober 23, 2002, Long Star, LSJC, and MEC Lone Star, LP. (MEC) entered Into an asset purchase
agreement whereby MEC agreed to purchase substantially all of the racing assels of Lone Star and LSJC.
The Master Agreernent between the Sports Corporation, Lone Star, and LSJC was terminated. Lone Star
and LSJC assigned fo MEC all of their rights and obligations under the lease and certain ancillary
agreements with the Sports Corporation.
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ter and W water Syste t Service Coverg
The tallowing covenants are included in various woter and wastewater system revenue bond indenture
ordinances:

v Mel revenues (defined os gross revenues less expenses of operafion and maintenance| are
pledged for the payment of bond principal and interest.

« Additional water and wastewater system revenue bonds cannot be issued unless the “nel
earnings”" [defined as gross revenues after deducting the espenses of operafion and
maintenance, excluding depreciation and ceriain other items specified in the ordinances| of the
system for twelve consecutive months out of the fifteen months prior to the date of such bonds is
equal to af least 1,25 times the average annual requirernents for the poyment of principal and
interast on the then-outstanding bonds and any additional bonds then proposed to be issued.

« Al revenues derived from the operations must be kept separate from other funds of the City.

« The amount required to meet interest and principal payments falling due on or before the next
matuity dates of the bonds is fo be paid info the water and wastewater system interest and
redemption account during each year,

At September 30, 2020, compliance with these covenants can be demenstrated as follows:

Systemrevenue!! $ 82440094
Operating expenses:
Water purchased 17,154,531
Sewage disposal contract 17.699.189
Cther operaling expenses 23,494317
Total expenses ¥ 58,388,037
Netrevenuve (available for deblservice) 24052057

Average anrual principal and interest requirements, all waler
and wast ewater revenue bonds ot September 30, 2020 5 3089544

Coverage of averoge annual requirements based on
September 30, 2020 revenue avalable for debt service 778

(1} Inchsdes operafing revenues. plus inv estment income and impact fees
{2) Excludes depreciation expense.
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INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS IN DETERMINING THE FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL,
FOREION AND ANY OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM FROM THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND
DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS.

PAYMENTS OF STATED INTEREST ON THE BONDS. .. The stated interest paid on the Bonds will be included in the gross income, as
defined in section 61 of the Code, of the beneficial owners thereof and be subject to US. federal income taxation when received or
acerued, depending on the tax accounting method applicable to the beneficial owners thereof.

OniGINAL ISsUE DISCOUNT.. If a substantial amount of the Bonds of any stated maturity is purchased at original issuance fora
purchase price (the “Issue Price”) that is less than their face amount by more than one quarter of one pereent limes 1he number of
complete years to maturity, the Bonds of such maturity will be treated as being issued with “original issue discount.” The amount
of the original issue discount will equal the excess of the principal amount payable on such Bonds at maturity over its 1ssue Price,
and the amount of the original issue discount on the Bonds will be amortized over the life of the Bonds using the “constant yield
method” provided in the Treasury Regulations. As the original issue discount accrues under the constant yield method, the
heneficial owners of the Bonds, regardless of their regular method of accounting, will be required to include such accrued amount
in their zross income as interest, This can result in taxable income to the beneficial owners of the Bonds that exceeds actuai cash
distributions to the beneficial owners in a taxable year.

The amount of the original issue discount that accrues on the Bonds each taxable year will be reporied annually to the IRS and to
the beneficial owners. The portion of the original issue discount included in each beneficial owner's gross income while the
beneficial owner holds the Bonds will increase the adjusted tax basis of the Bonds in the hands of such beneficial owner.

PREMIUM , ., 1T a beneficial owner purchases a Bond for an samount that is greater than its stated redemption price at maturity, such
beneficial owner will be considered to have purchased the Bond with “amortizable bond premium® equal in amount to such excess.
A beneficial owner may elect to amortize such premium using a constant yield method over the remaining term of the Bond and
may offset interest otherwise required to be included in respect of the Bond during any taxable year by the amortized amount of
such excess for the taxable year, Bond premium on a Bond held by a beneficial owner that does not make such an election will
decrease the amount of gain or increase the amount of loss otherwise recognized on the sale, excl demption or reti

of a Bond, However, if the Bond may be optionally redecmed after the beneficial owner acquires it at a price in excess of ils stated
redemption price at maturity, special rules would apply under the Treasury Regulatioss which could result in a deferral of the
amortization of some bond premium until kater in the term of the Bond. Any election to amortize bond premium applies io all
taxable debt instruments held by the beneficial owner on or after the first day of the first taxable year to which such election applies
and may be revoked only with the consent of the IRS.

MEDICARE CONTRIBUTION TAX . . . Pursuant to Section 1411 of the Code, as enacted by the Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act of 2010, an addilional tax is imposed on individuals beginning January 1, 2013, The additional tax is 3.8% of
the lesser of (i) net investment income (defined as gross income from interest, dividends, net gain from disposition of property not
used in a trade or business, and ceriain other listed ftems of gross income), or (i) the excess of “modified adjusted gross income™
of the individual over $200,000 for unmarried individuwals ($250,000 for married couples filing a joint return and a surviving
spouse). Holders of the Bonds should consult with their tax advisor concerning this additional tax, as it may apply to interest earned
on the Bonds as well as gain on the sale of s Bond.

DISPOSITION OF BONDS AND MARKET DMSCOUNT... A beneficial owner of Bonds will generally recognize gain or loss on the
redemption, sale or exchange of a Bond equal 1o the difference between the redempdion or sales price (exclusive of the amount paid
for accrued interest) and the beneficial owner’s adjusted tax basis in the Bonds, Generally, the beneficial owner's adjusted tax
basis in the Bonds will be the beneficial owner's initial cost, increased by the original issue discount previously included in the
beneficial owner’s income to the date of disposition. Any gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term
or shoti-term, depending on the beneficial owner's holding periad for the Bonds,

Under curvent law, a purchaser of a Bond who did not purchase the Bonds in the initial public offering (a “subsequent purchaser™)

Iy will be reguired, on the disposition of the Bonds, to recognize a5 ordinary income a portion of the gain, if any, to the
extent of the accrued “market discount.” Market discount is the amount by which the price paid for the Bonds by a subsequent
purchaser is Tess than the sum of [ssue Price and the amount of original issue discount previously sccrued on the Bonds, The Code
also limits the deductibility of interest incurred by a subsequent purchaser on finds borrowed to acquire Bonds with market
discount. As an altemative to the inclusion of market discount in income upon disposition, a subsequent purchaser may elect to
include market discount in income cunently as it accrues on all market discount instruments acquired by the subsequent purchaser
in that taxable year or thereafter, in which case the interest deferral rule will not apply. The re-characierization of gain as ordinary
income on a subsequent disposition of Bonds could have a material effect on the market value of the Bonds.

LEGAL DEFEASANCE.. . IT the City elects to defease the Bonds by depositing in escrow sufficient cash and/or obligations to pay
when due outstanding Bonds (a “legal defeasance™), under current tax law, a beneficial owner of Bonds may be deemed to have
sold or exchanged its Bonds. In the event of such a legal defeasance, a beneficial owner of Bonds generally would recognize gain
or loss in the manper deseribed above. Ownership of the Bonds after a deemed sale or exchange 13 a result of a legal defeasance
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may have tax consequences different from those described above, and each beneficial owner should consult its own tax advisor Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
regarding the consequences (o such beneficial owner of a legal defeasance of the Bonds. September 30, 2020

l;.aff:n;ﬁr Mnmﬂ;.g‘]j NG,..;J;d::rr hsocl:ion 3406 of the Code, a beneficial owner of I:lhe Bom]i; utho is ahll.lnILled Etatcs person, as At September 30, 2020, the aggregate debt service payments for long-term debt through the final year
efined in section 7701(a)(30) of the Code, may, under certain circumstances, be subject to “kackup withholding® on payments of e T 5

current or acerued interest on the Bonds,  This withholding applies if such beneficial owner of Bonds: (i) fails to furnish to payor of maturity for the Clty’s water and wastewater system were as follows:
such beneficial owner’s social security number or other taxpayer identification number (“TIN"}; (ii) furnishes the payor an incorrect

TIN; (iii) Fails to report properly interest, dividends, or ether “reportable payments™ as defined in the Code; or (iv) under certain Fiscal Water and Wostewater Sysfem Revenue Bonds
circumstances, fails to provide the payor with a certified statement, signed under penalty of perjury, that the TIN provided to the Year Frincipal Inferest Total
payor is correct and that such beneficial owner is not subject 1o backup withholding,
2021 $ 5120000 $ 1.3BB455S  $ 4508455
Backup withholding will not apply, however, with respect to payments made to certain beneficial owners of the Bonds. Beneficial
owners of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding their qualification for exemption from backup withholding 2082 H=15000 121404 6509.084
and the procedures for obiaining such exemption. 2023 5.445.000 1,061,202 6,506,202
2024 5,620,000 882,439 6,502,439
\tn; I}LILBI(I‘UL.;]N hwn!:m ';n No:nz:]n;am n:;:m INDIVIDUALS AND ITDII.EICI{'{ Cubnmmm?:]s.,lfnder s:cnmso:-'-tt I and 2025 5,140,000 703,150 5,843,150
1442 of the Code, nonresident alien individuals a reign corporations are generally subject to withholding at the rate of 30% on
periadic income items arising from sources within the United States, provided such income is not effectively connected with the i 445,000 545598 4,670,578
conduct of a United States trade or business. Assuming the interest received by the beneficial owners of the Bonds is not treated 027 3,900,000 409,031 4,309,031
as effectively connected income within the meaning of section 864 of the Code, such interest will be subject to 30% withholding, 2028 2,315,000 313748 2,628,748
OF any I]uv_tfcr rate §pcc“.iﬁbd inan in?ume tax rreal)': unless such income is treated as ?aprniio interest. I?trnst wi!1 be treated as 2029 2,580,000 247 DEA 2627088
portfolio interest ift (i} the beneficial owner provides a statement to the pavor cerfifying, under penalties of perjury, that such
beneficial owner iz not a United States person and providing the name and address of such beneficial owner; (i) such intorest is 2030 2,055,000 185,141 2.240.141
treated as not effectively cotnected with the beneficial awner’s United States trade or business; (iii) interest payments are not made 2031 1,090,000 137.278 1.227.278
o a person within a f'f:ln:igr_l country which the [_RS has included on a list of countries having pm}rislm\s J'n:'adnlaqmle o prevent 2032 850,000 103,280 953,280
Uniited States tax evasion; (iv) interest payable with respect to the Bonds is not deemed contingent inlerest within the meaning of 2033 880,000 74736 G54 754
the portfolio debt provision; (v) such beneficial owner is not a controlled foreign corporation, within the meaning of section 957 of . 4 +
the Code, and (vi) such beneficial owner is not a bank receiving interest on the Bonds pursuant to a loan agreement entered into in 034 610,000 S0.912 660,912
the ordinary course of the bank's trade or business. 2035 430,000 32014 662014
v - o . " 2036 450,000 12,256 662,256
Assuining payments on the Bonds are treated as portfolio interest within the meaning of sections 871 and 881 of the Code, then no 2037 140,000
backup withholding under section 1441 and 1442 of the Code and no backup withholding under section 3406 of the Code is required 3 / 1832 161,832
with respect to beneficial owners or intermediaries who have furnished Form W-B BEN, Form W-8 EXP or Form W-8 IMY, as 2028 160,000 1,144 161,144
applicable, provided the payor does not have actual knowledge that such person is a United States person. 039 710,800 397 711,192
FOREIGN ACCOUNT TAX COMPL[ANCE AcT_,._Suqtiuujs 1471 lhrcmgh_ 14_?4 of the l_:‘.m_ie impose a 30% withholding tax on ::main Tolal $ 47155800 $ 7363942 § 54519742
types of pavments made to a foreign financial institution, unless the foreign financial institution enters into an agreement with the
LLS. Treasury to, among other things, undertake to identify accounts held by certain United States pevsons or 1.8, -owned entities, o X P 7
annually report certain information about such accounts, and withhold 30% on payments to account holders whose actions prevent At S._ep’rember 30, 2020, long-term debt is being repaid solely fro_m girport revenues. Aggregate debt
it from complying with these and other reporting requirements, or unless the foreign financial institution is otherwise exempt from service payments for long-term debt through the final year of maturity for the City's municipal airport were
those requirements, In addition, the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA") imposes a 30% withholding tax on the s follows:
same types of payments 10 a non-financial foreign entity unless the entity centifies that it does not heve any substantial U.S. owners
or the entity furnishes identifying information regarding each substantis| United States owner. Failure to comply with the additional Fised Cerfificates of Obligation

certification, information reporting and other specified requirements imposed under FATCA could result in the 30% withholding —
tax being imposed on payments of interest and principal under the Bonds and sales procesds of Bonds held by or through a foreign fear Principal Inferest Total
entity. Prospective imvestors should consult their own tax advisors regarding FATCA and its effect on them,

2021 3 170000 § 21830 % 201,830
REPORTING OF INTEREST PAYMENTS. ., Subject to certain exceplions, interest payments made to beneficial owners with respeet to 2022 175,000 23,375 198,375
the Bonds will be reported to the [RS. Such information will be filed cach year with the IRS on Form 1099 which will reflect the
name, address, and TIN of the beneficial owner. A copy of Form 1099 will be sent 1o each beneficial owner of a Bond for U5, 205 e ars 132972
federal income tax purposes. 2024 195,000 4875 199875
Total $ 725000 % 74455 % 799,455

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Ordinance, the City has made the following agreement for the benefit of the registered and beneficial owners of the Bands.
The City is required 1o observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to pay the Bonds, Under the
agreement, the City will be obligated to provide certain updated fingneial information and operating data annually, and timely
notice of certain events, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the *“MSRE™),

ANNUAL REPORTS. . . The City will provide annually to the MSRB (1) within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending
in or after 2021, financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general type of infoimation contained in
Tables 1 through 3 and (2) within twelve months afler the end of each fiscal year ending in or afier 2021, audited financial statements
of the City. Any financial statements so provided shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles deseribed in
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

At Sepfember 30, 2020, changes in long-term debt for the City's business-type activities were as follows:

W ater and waslewater
Revenue bonds
Series 2010
Series 2011

Serles 2011A

Series 2013
Series 2014
Series 2015
Series 2016
Series 2017
Series 2017A
Series 2019
Sefies 2009

Total revenue bonds
Bond premiums/discount s
Tolol water and wastewater
Municipal gGirport:
Certificate of obligation
Series 20044
Totd municipal airport
Total change inlong-term debt -
business-type activilies

Bolonce Balance
October 1, Barrowings Payments September 30, Due Within
2019 orincrease  or Decrease 2020 One Year

$ 3110000 % - % [240000) § 2870000 % 250,000
1,965,000 = [585,000) 1,380,000 610,000

5,505,000 % 15.905,000} - -
8,870,000 - [1,320,000) 7,570,000 1,340,000
2,800,000 = (240.000) 2,560,000 240,000
3,475,000 - (385,000} 3,090,000 390,000
16,265,000 E (1.085,000) 15,180,000 1,110,000
4,330,000 - (390,000) 3,940,000 320000
2,755,000 = (50,000) 2,705,000 55,000
3,730,800 - {140.000) 3.570.800 140,000
B 4,290,000 - 4,290,000 555,000
53225800 4,290,000 (10,360,000] 47,155,800 5,120,000

3,752,233 262,200 (446,755] 3.3467.478 -
56,978,033 4,552,200 {11.004,755) 50,523,478 5,120,000
885,000 - {140,000 725,000 170,000
885,000 - [140.000) 725,000 170,000
$57.843,033  $4,552.200  §[11.166.755) § 51248478 $5.290,000

In April 2020, the City issuad $4.290,000 in Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2020, $5,125,000 was used to advance refund the ouistanding Series 2011A Water and Wastewater
System Revenue Refunding and Improvermnent Bonds leaving no remaining cutstanding principal as of
September 30, 2020. As aresult, the fully refunded bonds are considered defeased, and the liability for
those bonds has been removed from the government-wide statements. The refunding resulfed in a
decrease in the City's debt service payments of $670,409, which resulted in an economic gain (difference
between the present value of the debt service payments of the old debt and new debt) of $309.350.
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Appendix B, or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant 1o state law or
regulation. I audited financial statements are not available within 12 months afier the end of any fiscal year, the City will provide
unaudited financial statements by the required time, and audired financial statemenis when and if such audited financial statements
become available.

The financial information and operating data to be provided may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included
by specific reference 1o any document available to the public on the MSRE's Internet Web site identified below or filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), as permitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (the "Rule”).

The City's current fiscal year end is September 30. Accordingly, the City must provide updated information included in the above-
referenced tables by March 31 in each year, and audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year (or unaudited financial
stalements if the audired fi ial ts are not yer available) must be provided by September 30 in each year, unless the City
changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRE of the change (and of the date of the new fiscal
year end) prioe to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data,

NoTICE oF CERTAIN EVENTS. .. The City will also provide timely notices of certain events to the MSRB, The City will provide
notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds to the MSRB in a timely manner {but not in excess of ten business
days afier the occurrence of the event): (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if
material, (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit
enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) ad verse
1ax opinions, the issuance by the Intemal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of teability, Notices of Proposed
Issue (RS Form 5701-TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status ofthe Bonds, or other material
events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) Bond calls, if
material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if
material; (1 1) reting changes: (12) bankruptey, msolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, which shall occur as deseribed
helaw: (1) the consummation of a merger, consalidation, or acquisition mvolving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of
its assets, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a-definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of 2 definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; (14) appointment of
a successor or additional paying agent/registrar or the change of name of a paying agent/registrar, if material; (15) incurrence ofa
Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedics, priority rights, or other similar
terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect secusity holders, il material; and (16) defaull, event of acceleration,
termination event, modification of terms, or ather similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which
reflect financial difficulties. In addition, the City will provide to the MSRE, in a timely manner, notice of any failure by the City
to provide the required annual financial information described above under - Annual Reports” and any notices of events in
accordance with this section.

For these purpeses, (A) any event described in {12) in the i liately preceding paragraph is idered to occur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United Stales
Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of ization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, and (B) the City intends the
wards used in the immediately preceding clauses (15) and (16) and in the definition of Financial Obligation above to have the
meanings aseribed to them in SEC Release No, 34-83885 dated August 20, 2018,

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION, . . In connection with its continuing disclosure agreement entered into with respect io the Bonds,
the City will file all required information and documentation with the MSRB in electronic format in accordance with MSRB's
guidelines, Access to such flings will be provided, without charge to the general public, by the MSRE at WIWW.Bmma.msrh.org.

LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMENTS, . . The City has agreed to update information and to provide notices of certain specified events
only ay described above. The City has not agreed to provide ather information that may be relevant or material to a complete
preseniation of its financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that is provided,
excepl as deseribed above. The City makes no representation or warranty coneerning such information or conceming its usefulness
to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. The City disclaims any contractual or tort liability for damages resulting
in whole or in part from any breach of its continuing disclosure agr or from any staterment made pursuant fo its agreement,
although registered and beneficial owners of Bonds may seek # writ of mandamus to compel the City to comply with its agreement,

The City may amend its continuing disclosure agreement from time 1o lime to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a
change in lezal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, if (i} the
apreement, as amended, would have permitted an Initial Purchaser to purchase or sell Bonds in the offering described herein in
compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as
well as such changed circumstances, and (11 either (a) the regisiered and beneficial owners of a majority in aggregate prine ipal
amount of the outstanding Bonds consent to the amendment or (b) any person unafTiliated with the City {such as nationally
recognized bond counsel) determines that the amendment will not materially impair the interests of the registered and beneficial
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owners of the Bonds, The City may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends
or repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are
invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an Initial Purchaser from lawiully
purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offesing of the Bonds. I the City so amends the agreement, it has agreed to include
with the next financial information and operating data provided in accordance with its agreement described above under *Annual
Reports” an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial
information and operating data so provided,

COMPLIANCE WITH PRIOR UNDERTAKINGS. . . During the last five years, the City has complied in all material respects with all
continuing disclosuie agreements made by it in accordance with the Rule,

OTHER INFORMATION
RATINGS

The Bonds have been rated “AA" (positive outlook) by Fitch Ratings, Inc. (“Fitch”) and * AA-" (stable outlook) by S&P Global
Ratings, a division of S&P Global [nc. (“S&P™). An explanation of the significance of such matings may be obtained from the
company furnishing the rating. The ratings reflect only the respective views of such organizations and the City makes no
representation as to the appropristeness of the ratings, There is no assurance that such ratings will continue for any given period
of time or that they will nol be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating companies, if in the judgment of either or
both companies, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such ratings, may have an adverse effect
on the market price of the Bonds.

LITIGATION

It is the opinion of the City Attomey and City Staff that there is no pending litigation against the City that would have a material
adverse Ffinancial impaet upon the City or its operations,

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF BONDS FOR SALE

The sale of the Bonds has not been registered under the federal Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the exemption
provided thereunder by section 3(a)(2); and the Bonds have not been qualified under the Securities Act of Texas in reliance upon
various exemptions contained thergin; nor have the Bonds been qualified under the securities acts of any jurisdiction. The City
assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Bonds under the securities laws of any jurisdiction in which the Bonds may he
sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of responsibility for qualification for sale or other
disposition of the Bonds shall not be construed as an inferpretation of any kind with regard o the availability of any exemption
from securities registration provisions.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS ANP ELIGIBILITY TO SECURE PUBLIC FUNDS IN TEXAS

Section 1201,041 of the Public Security Procedures Act (V. T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 1201, as smended) provides the
Bonds are (i) negotiable nstruments, (i) investment gecinities to which V. T.C.A., Chapter &, Business and Commerce Code, as
amended, applies and (iii) legal and authorized investments for insurance companies, fiduciaries or trustees and sinking funds of
municipalities or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State. The Texas Finance Code also contains provisions
that, subject o a prudent investor standard, provide for the Bonds to be legal invesiments for state banks, savings banks, trust
companies with capital of one million dollars or more, and savings and loan associations, For the Bonds to be an eligible investments
for municipalities, political subdivisions or public agencies of the State, the Public Funds Investment Act, V.T.C,A., Government
Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, provides that a rting of not less than “A™ or its equivalent as to investment quality must be
assigned by a nationally recognized i rating agency., Furthermore, the Bonds are eligible 10 secure the deposits of any
public fands of the State, its agencies and its political subdivisions and are legal security for those deposits to the extent of their
market value.

The City made no investigation of other laws, rules, regulations or investment criteria which might apply to such institutions or
entities or which might limit the suitability of the Bands for any of the foregoing purposes or limit the authority of such in
or entities to purchase or invest in the Bonds for such purposes.

LEGAL OrisioNs

The City will furnish to the Initial Purch a plete transciipt of p lingzs incident to the authorization and issuance of the
Bends, including the unqualified approving legal opinion of the Attorney General of Texas approving the Initial Bond and to the
effect that the Bonds are valid and legally binding special obligations of the City, and based upon examination of such transeript
of proceedings, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, to like effect. The customary closing papers, including a centificate
to the effect that no litigation of any nature has been filed or is then pending to restrain the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, or
which would affect the provision made for their payment or security, or in any manner questioning the validity of said Bonds will
also be fumished by the City. Bond Counsel was not requested to pasticipate, and did not 1ake part, in the preparation of the Official
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
MNotes o the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities

Long-term debt in the business-type activities column of the govemment-wide Statement of Net Position
consists of general obligation refunding bonds, water and wastewater systern revenue bonds, cerfificates
of obligation bkonds, ond unamortized bond premivms/discounts.  Bonds  issued  for
business-type activities are secured by o pledge of the property tax levy of the City, but are
self-supporfing obligations which are paoid from the respective net revenues of each activity, Bond
proceeds are used to fund additions and improvements to the City's water and wastewaler system, solid
waste systemn, municipal golf courses, and municipal airport,

Al September 30, 2020, long-ferm debt for the City's business-type activities consisted of the following:

Inferest Yearof  Yearof Criginal Amount
Rate % Issue Maturity Arnount Cutstanding
W ater and wast ewaler;
Revenue bonds
Series 2010 0.0-2.587 2010 2030 § 4995000 $ 2870000
Saries 2011 20-4.25 2011 2031 8,940,000 1,380,000
Series 201 14 2.0-5.0 2011 2031 11,020,000 -
Series 2013 2.0-40 2013 2024 14,045,000 7.570.000
Series 2014 0.0-1.5%0 2014 2030 4,000,000 2,560,000
Series 2015 22540 2015 2027 4,155,000 3,090,000
Series 2016 20-5.0 2014 2036 17,625,000 15,180,000
Series 2017 0.00.8 2007 2030 5.110.000 3,240,000
Series 2017A 2040 2017 2036 2,755.000 2,705,000
Seres 2019 0.0-0.49 2019 2039 3,730,800 3.570.800
Series 2020 5.00 2020 2031 4,290,000 4,290,000
Total bonds payable - water wast ewal er 47,155,800
Unamortized bond premiums/discounts 3,367,478
Total long-term debt -water wastewater £0,523.478
Municipal airpaort:
Cerfificales of obligation bonds
Series 20044 22550 2004 2024 2,120,000 725,000
Tolal long-term debt - business-type acfivifies $ 51.248.478
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

MNotes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

Fiscal Total
Year Frincipal Interast Total

2021 $ 34,875.000 $ 14,342,285 $ 51.217.285
2022 36,200,000 14,130,639 50,330.63%
2023 28,620,000 12,108,261 40,728,261
2024 29,100,000 11,036,385 40,136,385
2025 22,705,000 10,052,470 32,757,490
2026 27,275,000 9,138,281 36,413,281
2027 20,710,000 8,243,463 28,953,663
2028 18,080,000 7.459.276 25539274
2029 18,630,000 6,720,907 25,350,907
2030 17,840,000 6,001,850 23,841,850
2031 18,165,000 5303478 23,468,478
2032 17.950.000 4,613,752 22,563,752
2033 18,455,000 3,908,409 22,563,409
2034 18,570,000 3,165,328 21,735.328
2035 14,225,000 2487719 16712719
2036 12,925,000 1,901,553 14,826,553
2037 10,425,000 1,384,448 12,007 448
2038 #.510,000 933,270 10,443,270
2039 9,950,000 493,089 10,443,087
2040 5325000 133,977 5,458,977
$ 389,935,000 $ 125,559,060 § 515494060
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Statement or the Motice of Sale and Bidding Instructions or the Official Bid Form, and such firm has not assumed any responsibility
with respect thereto or undertaken independently to verify any of the information contained therein, except that, in its capacity as
Bond Counsel, such firm has reviewed the information appearing under the captions and subcaptions “PLAN OF FINANCING -
Refunded Obligations”, “THE BONDS" (except for the subcaptions “Book-Entry-Only Systemn™ and “Registered Owners'
Remedies™), “SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE" “TAX MATTERS” and “"CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION” {except for the subcaption “Compliance with Prior Undertakings™) and the subeaptions
“Legal Investments and Eligibility to Secure Public Funds in Texas", “Registration and Qualification of Bonds for Sale™ and “Legal
Opinions” (except for the last sentence of the first paragraph thereof) under the caption “OTHER INFORMATION™), and such
firm is of the opinion that the information relating to the Bonds and the legal issues contained under such captions and subcaptions
arc accurate and fair descriptions of the laws and legal issues addressed therein and, with respect to the Bonds, such information
conforms to the Ordinance. The legal fee to be paid Bond Counsel for services rendered in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds is contingent on the sale and delivery of the Bonds. The legal opinion will accompany the Bonds deposited with DTC or
will be printed on the Bonds in the event of the discontinuance of the Book-Eniry-Only System. Certain legal matters will be
passed upon by West & Associates, L.L.P., Dallas, Texas, as Disclosure Counsel for the City, whose fee is contingent on the sale
and delivery of the Bonds,

The legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment of the attorneys
rendering the opinions as to the legal issves explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the attorney does not become
un insurer or guarantor of that ex pression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of
the parties to the transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out
of the transaction

CYBERSECURITY

The City has taken several steps to ent and protect i ion systems and information of the City. The City's dedicated
Chief Information Officer is certified in cybersecurity matters and rﬁpﬂn‘nble for carry ing out information security responsibilities.
Some of the City's security operations include regular staff cyber training, periodic syster tests and audits, authorizing information
access commensurate with classification level and sensitivity, and routine replacement of software and related information
equipment. In addition, to help protect the City against claims and exp due to & eyb ity incident, the City maintaing
cyber insurance. The City prioritizes the ability to identify, protect, detect, respond and recover from cyber events and incidents
from nation state actors, organized criminals, hactivist groups and insider threats.

AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL DATA AND OTHER INFORMATION

The financial data and other information contained herein have been obtained from City records, audited financial statements and
other sources that ace believed 1o be reliable. There is no guarantee that any of the assumptions or estimates contained herein will
be realized. All of the summaries of the statutes, documents and resolutions contained in this Official Statement are made subject
to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents and resolutions. These summaries do not purport to be complete statements of
such provisions and reference is made to such documents for further information. Reference is made to original documents in all
TESPECES,

FiNANCIAL ADYVISOR

Hilltop Securities Inc. is employed as Financial Advisor 1o the City in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The Financial
Advisor's fee for services rendered with respect to the sale of the Bonds is contingent upon the issuance and delivery of the Bonds.
Hilltop Securities Inc., in its capacity as Financial Advisor, has not verified and does net assume any responsibility for the
information, covenants and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect fo the federal income tax status of
the Bongds, or the possible impact of any present, pending or future actions taken by any legislative or judicial bodies. In the normal
course of business, the Financial Advisor may from time to time sell investment securities to the City for the investment of bond
proceeds or other funds of the City upon the request of the City.

The Financial Advisor to the City has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Financial
Advisor has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to the City
and, as applicable, to investors under the federal securities laws as applisd to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but
the Financial Advisor does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS

Samnuel Klein and Company, independent certified public accountants, in conjunction with Public Finance Partners LLC, will
deliver to the City on or before the settlement date of the Bonds, its verification report indicating that it has verifled the mathematical
accuracy of the mathematical computations of the adeguacy of the cash and the maturing principal of and interest on the Escrowed

Securities, to pay, when due, the maturing principal of, interest on and related call premium requirements, i any, of the Refunded
Obligations.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Samuel Klein and Company, CPA's and Public Finance Partmers LLC relied on the accuracy, completeness and reliability of all Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
information provided by, and on all decisions and approvals of, the City. [n addition, Samuel Klein and Company, CPA’s and Septemier 30, 2020
Public Finance Partners LLC have relied on any information provided by the City's retained advisors, consultants or legal counsel,

Fiseal Tesx and Tow Increment Bonds [Tis) Salss Tax Rev erue Bonds-Crime Confrol
FoRwWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS DISCLAIMER Year Frincipal nlorast Tetal Principal Inferest Total
The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information previded by the City, lhnl are not purely h Bluncul ] 3 2475000 % 553378 3§ 3228378 % 5550000 § 1,641,740 §  T.R1.740
are forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the City's expectations, hopes, i ar 2022 2170.000 202512 2452912 5,245,000 7T AT 6042677
the: future. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, ﬁll forward-looking sw[emems mciurjecl in 023 540,000 148,333 488,333 - » .
this Official Statement are based on information available to the City on the date hereof, and the City assumes no obligation 1o 024 555,000 136,834 591 B34 z : £
:Jop;j;t:ga:‘);im f::rward-lookmg statements, The City's actual results could differ materially from those discussed in such forward - 2025 565,000 123,450 4EE.450 .- 3 ;
! ements. 202 5220000 58,208 5278203 - -
The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and are inherenily § 11725000 % L3030 % 13028110 % 10795000 § 2439417 13234417
subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying
ptions and esti and possible changes or develop in social, economic, business, industry, market, legal, and
regulatory circumstances and conditions and sctions taken or omitted to be taken by third parfies, including customers, suppliers, Fiscdl Soates TaRREYanos BoidCRalk Ve Solas Tox Revenus Bonds-EPIC
business partners and competitors, and legislative, judicial, and other governmental authorities and officials. Assumptions related Year Frincipd] Terest T e rh Gt Tota
to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, fulure economic, competitive, and market conditions and
future bnlslme&s decisions, all af‘wh!ch are difﬁuul! or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond the wnl.rol 2021 § 2050000 § 496968 3 2546968  § 2285000 § 3177382 % 5462342
of the City. Any of such assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-leoking ye] 2170000 448418 2568418 2,375,000 084,162 5.459.142
statements included in this Official Statement will prove to be accurate. 2023 2,190,000 401203 2.591.203 2475000 2 e s
T r— 2024 2,270,000 341,118 2411118 2,575,000 2886162 5.461,162
2025 2,380,000 275203 2,635,203 2,680,000 2781062 5461062
After requesting competitive bids for the Bonds, the City accepted the bid of Robert W. Baird (the “Initial Purchaser™) to purchase 2026 2.450.000 213493 2663493 2.785.000 24T75.447 544D 44T
the Bonds at the interest rates shown on page 2 of the Official Statement at a price of 99.395830% of par. The Initial Purchaser w027 1.170.000 144,038 1,335,038 2,895,000 2567.509 5,462,500
can give no assurance that any trading market will be developed for the Bonds after their sale by the City to the Initial Purchaser. 2028 370,000 142,438 512,438 3,010,000 2,449,919 5,459,217
The City has no control over the price at which the Bonds are subsequently sold and the initial yield at which the Bonds will be 2029 365,000 127,338 512,338 3.1 40,000 2,323,165 5,463,165
priced and reoffered will be established by and will be the sole responsibility of the Initial Purchaser. 2030 400.000 111,638 511,638 3.275.000 2.187,743 5462743
2031 420,000 95228 515235 3425000 2035914 5440014
CERTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT 2032 435.000 78,138 513,138 3.590,000 1.843,185 5,458,185
) ) ) o ) ) R 2033 455,000 60.338 515,338 3770000 1,492,208 5,462,208
At the ti mc_nfpaym?ﬂl for and delivery of the Bonds, 1|1g City will furnish a certificate, executed by a proper officer, acting in his 2034 470,000 £3.400 513.600 3,955,000 1,507,503 5.462.503
or her official capacity, to the effect that to the best of his or her knowledge and belief: () the descriptions and statements of or 2035 485,000 28,081 513081 4,145,000 1313.832 S4SBA
pertaining to the City contained in its Official Statement, and any addenda, supplement or amendmen thereto, on the date of such 2036 505,000 1000 215100 4'35513(:] 1'105'153 & 4;0 ez
Official Statement, on the date of sale of said Bonds and the acceptance of the best bid therefor, and on the date of the del ivery, Sy i - . 3 pulkiion e
were and are true and correct in all material respects; (b) insofar as the City and its affairs, including its financial affairs, are : Ao BBne, Brin0048
concerned, such Official Statement did not and does not contain an untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit to state a material 2004 - B 3 4815000 643,970 5.458.370
fact required to be stated therein or v to make the st therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they 2039 . - N 3.065.000 395,389 5.440,389
were made, not misleading; (¢} insofar as the descriptions and siatements, including financial data, of or pertaining to enfities, other 2040 = = - 5,325.000 133977 5458977
than the City, and their activities contained in such Official § are d, such stat and data have been obiained
from sources which the City believes to be reliable and the City has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any material respect; § tAssa0 4 3039.350 3 A0, ¥ 70.520.000 $ 38696372 3_109.216372

and (d) there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition of the City since the date of the last audited financial
statements of the City,

TheOrdinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds has approved the form and content of this Official Statement, and any addenda,
supplement or amendment thereto, and suthorizes its further use in the reoffering of the Bonds by the Initial Purchaser,

/st Caryn Riggs
Chief Financial Officer and Pricing Officer
City of Grand Prairic, Texas
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SCHEDULE OF REFUNDED OBLIGATIONS
In November 2019, the City issued $19,475,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019,

$21,545,000 was used to advance refund the outstanding Series 2011 and Series 201 1A Combination Tox

Sules Tax Revenue Bonds, Tauble Series 2015
and Revenue Cerlificates of Obligation bonds; and the Series 2011 and Series 201 1A General Obligation

Original Original Interest Kttt Dats and Price of
Refunding and Improverment bonds, leaving no remaining outstanding principal as of September 30, Datzd Daie Maturity Dite Rates Refunded Rmmp::u;n
2020, As o result, the fully refunded bonds are considered defeased, and the liability for those bonds has piFers g P VAR e
been removed from the government-wide statements. The refunding resulted in a decrease in the City's ! il . HAIE000 L re
debt service payments of $2,195,440, which resulted in an economic gain (difference between the 11112028 +071% 3,010,000 1/1/2025 (@ Par
present value of the debt service payments of the old debt and new debt) of $1,981,602. 11112029 4171% 3,140,000 14142025 @ Par
) 1712030 4271% 3,275,000 17112025 @ Par
fstonding Bo t De edse o _ ) neear Y 4782% 3,425,000 10112025 @ Par
Al September 30, 2020, certain outstanding debt of the city was considered fo be defeased. The following b W e e s G
table details such outstanding defeased debt: : = i
12033 0 4782% 3,770,000 1/1/2025 @ Par
Defeased Debt ui2oss 'V 478 3,955,000 17112025 @ Par
Type of Chligation Outstanding 1ess M 4782% 4,145,000 17172025 @ Par
o 12036 ® 5,032% 4,355,000 1712025 @ Par
General cbligation iefunding bonds _$ 200000 — SN 5000 1112025 @ Par
Total dobl defeasemisn $ 260,000 12038 0 5032% 4,815,000 11112025 @ Par
- mene ¥ sm% 5,063,000 112025 @ Par
. 1 2 $
Al September 30, 2020, the aggregate debt service payments for leng-temm debt through the final year i L0z < 3RS 000% 172025 @ Pas
of maturity for the City's governmental activities were as fallows: 355,345,000
F:cul — General IC‘:ZI"QD:iOH Bonds - — Carfilicaies of 3“9":“’“ Bords — {1} Represents a scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption of a term bond with a final maturity of January 1, 2035,
icad ieipd Vidinheil aviue el aren L {2) Represents a scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption of'a term bond with a final matusity of January 1, 2040,
202 $ 8325000 % 2,430,143 § 11255143 % 13.490.000 3 B.L42.674 3 21532474
2022 B8.570,000 2D47.500 10,437,500 15,700,000 TAERFTO 23149970
2023 7410000 | 706,175 16175 14,005,000 6865388 22870388
2024 7,095,000 1400075 BAISO7S 16,605,000 6272196 22877.196
2025 £,185,000 11444 1276644 10,915,000 3761131 16.676,131
2024 5.B80,000 840,119 £720119 10,540.000 5,350,819 14290819
2027 5,390,000 575088 5945088 11,255,000 4935028 14,190.028
20286 3,005,000 370363 3375343 11,495,000 4. 496,556 14,191,554
202y Z.760,000 226,513 3,184,512 12,145,000 4043891 16,188,891
2030 1.560.000 122,406 1,682,603 12,405,000 3577864 16,184 868
2031 1 240.000 41,757 1,301,757 13,080,000 3070,569 16190567
2032 375.000 26,854 401,855 ¥3.550,000 2640573 16,190,573
2033 385,000 13,304 378308 14,045,000 2,142,557 14,187 587
2034 | 55,000 3197 158197 13,970,000 1,611,028 15,501 028
2035 - - - % .595,000 1,145,804 10,740,804
2036 . = - 8,045,000 784,300 8851 300
2037 N = - 6,045,000 504,100 6,547,100
2035 - - - 4,695,000 285,200 4,784 300
2037 - - - 4,885,000 97700 4982700
} 52055000 3 10,935,359 $ &9.990.355% £ 219,305,000 F 69145452 3 288450452
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At September 30, 2020, changes in long-term debt for the City's governmental activities were as follows:

Bolance Balonca
Octoberl, Borrowings Payments Seplember 30, Due Within
017 of Increase of Decrocie 2020 One Year
General ebligalion Sonds;
Series 201 1 $ 430000 3 = § (430000 % - H -
Seres 20114 11,845,000 - 11,845,000 - -
Saries 2012 4,745,000 = 1625,000) 4120000 645,000
Senes2013 AT70.000 = 440,000 330,000 310,000
Sanes 20134 1,800,000 - 120,000} L710.000 5000
Séfies 2015 7.855,000 ~ (790,000} 7045000 1,050,000
Series 2016 25,465,000 - {3.090,000¢ 23375000 2935000
Senes 2020 - 19.475.000 & 19,475,000 3790000
Tol of generdl obligalicn bonds A0820000 19.475.000 (21,240,000 55,055,000 BA25.000
Combination lax and revenus
certificates of collgalion
Series 201 | 4375000 - (4,375,000 - -
Series 20114 5155000 - [5.1 55,000 - =
Series 2013 6715000 - [385.000] 4,320,000 405,000
Saries 20134, 755,000 - [475,000) 9.2680,000 500,000
Serlag 2014 18.565.000 - [2,025,000) 14940000 2125000
Serins 2016 23,745,000 - [1.300.000) 22445000 1345000
(This Page Intentionally Blank) Sevier 2014 30,040,000 - | 1.840.000) 261 80,000 1715000
Serias 2017 F3.275.000 - {2.340.000) 25,915,000 3500000
Sertes 2018 40,605,000 - { 1,755,000} 38810,000 1565000
Saries 20154 F4.910.000 = 11,800,000 33,110,000 LEFS000
Series 23198 34.305.000 - = 344,305,000 -
Total combimation lax and revarue
cerlificoles of obigation 241865000 - 122.540,000| 219,305,000 13 450,000
Taw increment and pubic
Imprav arrenl dislfic dabl
Series 2000 TIRE | A 580,000 - [1.420,000] 3, 10,000 1525000
Serles 2011 TIRT | 80,000 - [B0.000] - -
Series 2013 TIRT ) 435000 = [435.000) b -
Series 7015 TIRT | 225,000 - |225.000] a =
Serles 2015 PID S 450,000 - {70,000) 0,000 70,000
Sories 2014 -TRZ 1 2,110,000 - [1.030.000) 1,080,000 1,080,000
Serles 2017 - FID 7105000 - = 7105,000 =
Tobal tow incrernent and pubic 14.588000 . 12.240,0000 11725000 2675000
Sclestax rev erwe debl:
Crirme Conbrol
Serles 2008 15880000 - (5,085,000} 10795000 5,550,000
Tatal Crime Confrol 15880,000 - {5.085.000} 10,795,000 5,550,000
Perk Vernue
Series 200% subcrdinale 7370000 - [1.030,000] &,740,000 475,000
Sevies 2013 4.550,000 - 1690,000] 5860000 1.290.000
Saries 2014 Pork Werue S 205000 . |270.000) 5,735,000 265000
Total Pork Verue 20,525,000 - | 1550,000) 18.535.000 2050000
EFIC
Sarles 2015 BPIC 72715000 - {2.195,000) 70.520.000 2,785000
Toled EPIC 72715000 - (2,195,000} 70520000 2,285000
Tolol chonge in long temn debl 426,790,000 19.475.000 |56,330,000) 369 735,000 34 875000
Unomortized bond prermiums idiscounts 26528815 2.734.530 [3,173,725) 26,089,620 -
Tolal change In long-ferm debl -
governmendal aciviies § 453318815 § 23009530 4§ (5%.503.725) § A1L024520 § 34875000
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At September 30, 2020, long-term debt for the City's governmental activifies consisted of the following:

Interest Yeor of Yearof Crigiral Amouni
Reite % Issue waturily Amount Cutstanding
General obligalion bonds:
Series 2011 20-53 201 2031 11550000 § -
Seres 20114 20-50 2001 2025 30950,000 -
Jeres 2012 10-20 2012 2028 27,400,000 4,120,000
Sefies 2013 1.5-325 2003 2003 1005 75.000 3,310,000
Series 201 34 30-4.125 2004 2034 2220000 1,710,000
Seres2015 175-50 06 2027 10:270,000 7065000
Seres 2016 3050 04 2033 33810000 23,375,000
Senies 2020 500 2020 20 19475000 19,475,000
Total genersl obiigation bonds 59055000
Combination tax and rev enue cerificates of obligation
Seres 2011 2053 201 2031 6,305,000 -
Series 2011A 20-4.0 2001 2031 7.430,000 -
Series 2013 20325 m3 033 BB30000 6320000
Seres 2013A 20-4.125 2014 2034 11945000 9,260,000
Series 2004 3050 25 H34 26,125,000 16940000
Series 2015 20-5.0 2014 2035 29 380,000 22,445,000
Series 2016 20-4.0 2016 2036 33,705.000 26,180,000
Series 2017 22550 2017 2057 34,515,000 29.915000
Series 2018 20-450 oe 2039 40,605,000 33,810,000
Serles 20194 20-50 oy 2039 34,910,000 33.110000
Series 20198 1530 0% 2034 34305000 34,305,000
Total combination fax andrevenue cedificoles of obligotion 219,305.000
Tax increment and puilic improvemant distict deil
Series 2000 TIRZ N JImonth LIBOR +.31% 2000 022 17.900.000 3,160,000
Series 2011 TIRT 1 2053 2001 2020 £55.000 =
Series 2013 TIRZ 1 20-3.25 2013 2020 2820000 -
Serfes 2015 TIRZ 1 175050 2014 2027 BP5000 -
Series 2015 PIDS 20-50 2014 2035 540,000 380,000
Series 2016 TIRL) 3050 2014 2030 3,135,000 1,060,000
Series 2017 PID 1525 a9 2026 7,105,000 7,105,000
Total lex increment and public improy ement dishric! debl 11,725.000
Soles fax revenus debl
Series 2008 Crime Control smo LBORT 62075410 2008 itpsd 54,800,000 10,772.000
Talol Crime Control 10,795,000
Series 2007 Pork Venue subordinate 377 2009 2027 13,390,000 4,740,000
Series 2013 Pork Venue 2040 20013 2027 11,060,000 5,860,000
Series J01& Park Venae 2040 2018 2038 5,730,000 5,935,000
Totol Park Venues 18,535.000
Sales |ox rev enve debl
Series 2015 BPIC 3.721-5032 2015 2040 T4 825000 70.520.000
Tolal EFIC 70,520,000
Total general obligalion diet 389,735,000
Unarmnortized bond premivms fdacounts __ 26089620
Total long-term debt - governmental activilies 3 416,024,620

62

APPENDIX A

GEMERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
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Below is a summary of the changes in noncurent liabilities of the City's primary govermment and
component unifs:

Bolonce Bolance
Cclober |, Berrowings Poyments Seplember 30, D Wt bin
2019 of Increase o Decrease 2020 One Yeor
Frimory gowvernment:
Govemnmenta octivities:
General obligotion bonds 3 0820000 $ 19475000 F (212400000 $ 5055000 § BAZS.000
Combinofion fox and revenue
certificates of sbligatlon 241,845,000 - 122,560,000) 219,305,000 12,490,000
Tax Increment and public
district bonds 14,985,000 - [5,260.000) 11,725,000 2675,000
Sales lax revenue bonds - Epic 72,715,000 T [2.1%5.000) 70,520,000 2285000
Sales fax revenue bonds - Crime 15,880,000 n [5.085.000) 10.7%5.000 5,550,000
Sales fax revenue bonds - Park Venue 0,525,000 - [ 1.FF0.000) 18,535,000 2050,000
Issuance premiums/discounts, net 26,528,815 2,734,530 [3.173.725) 26,057 420 -
Total kong-term delol 453,318.815 22,209,530 (59.503,725) 416,024,520 34875000
Compensoled absences 18,353,730 10,992,831 (8.292.304) 21,064457 9.005,253
Other post-employment benedits iobility 55,519,083 B,4692822 (3.524,324) 60,687 581 -
(This Page Intentionally Blank} Net pensionlicbifty #haS S 5541103 [89.047.264) 59,113,740 i
Environmental remediation labllity 77,037 5 [56.137] 20500 20,500
Cther ligbilifies 1,300,144 - 1140,777) 1439387 140,776
Taotal govermmenial aclivities 620,129,182 $8.506.216 | 161,584,533) 558,050,865 44061929
Business-lype aclivilies:
Canlificales of obligation B65.000 - [140.000] 725000 170,000
‘Waler ond waoslewaler revenue bonds 53,225,800 4,290,000 (10,340,000 47.155.800 5.120.000
Obtgalions under capitol l=oses - - - - :
lssuance premiurs/discount s, net A,752,233 242200 [646,755) 3,367 678 e
Totaol long-term dekd E7.Bs3033 4,552,200 [17.144,755) 51,248,478 5,290,000
Compensaled absences 472012 371,254 [373,855) 450411 444294
Oiher post-amployment benelits Sability 5.BA5150 74,371 [303.538) 6,275,983 -
Mt pansion liablliky PE1E,144 4,502,017 [%.448.074) 4,470,085
Closure and pest closuwe Babilily 8,232,659 408,247 ¥ 8,548,746
Total business-type activities B2,069.038 10.556.089 121.512.22.4) 71112903 5.754.294
Tolal primary gevernment § 702198220 § 109042305 3 (1B20YET57) § 429163748 $ 49814223
Companent unit octivities:
Housing finance Corporation;
Hotes payablefdeveloper loan 3 3,540,524 k3 41,759 3 (40,613 % 3.521.670 % 43,148
Revanue bonds 7,160,000 - {255,000] 4,905,000 245,000
Sulordinat e rev enus bonds 4,550,000 7 - 4,550,000 -
Tobal companent unlls 3 15250524 % 41,759 § 1315413] § 149764670 § 328,148
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G. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue is a liability for resources obtained prior to revenue recognition. Below is o summary of
the City's unearned revenue as of September 30, 2020.

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

Prepaid pipeling lease % 884,131 % 124555 % 1.008.684
Prepaid arrangements - Cemetery Fund 1.817,43% - 1,817,439
Urspent grant funds - Texas W ater Development Board - 905,606 905,606
Prepaid rental deposits - Parks 178,789 - 178,789
Park Venue Fund deposits on events to be held 271 - 27
Unspent grant funding 107,380 - 107,380

Tolal unearned revenue $ 2988010 § 1.030041 $ 4018171

H. long-Term Obligations

Compens: bsences an temployment Benefit

Governmental activities record liabilifies for compensated absences and refiree postemployment costs
at the govemment-wide financial statement level, Generally, these licbilities are paid from the General
Fund. Liabilifies for business-type aclivities are recorded and liquidated in the fund that incurs the liability.

Long-Term Debt

Govemmental Activities

Long-term debt in the governmental activities' column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
consists of general obligation bonds [including refunding), certificates of obligation bonds, sales fax
revenue bonds, and unamortized bond premium/discounts. The cerfificates of cbligafion bonds include
bonds issued in 2010 for Tax Increment Financing Zones No. 2 project,

General obligalion bonds and certificates of obligation provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of capital equipment and facifties. General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge
of the general taxing power for the payment of the debt obligations of the City. General obligation bonds
and certificates of obligation reqguire the Cily fo compute, at the time other faxes are levied, the rate of
tax required 1o provide (in each year bonds are outstanding) a fund to pay interest and principal of
maturity.

40

LocaTion

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City™), is centrally located amid the estimated 6 million people in the Dallas’Fort Worth
Area. The City, with an estimated population of 200,640 for 2022, stretches 28 miles long by about eight miles at its widest point.
The City vovers aboul B square miles,

TRANSPORTATION

The City has access 1o four major interstate highway systems - 1-20, 1-30, 1-35 & 1-45 - five state highway systems - SH 360, SH

180, SH 303, $H 161, Loop 12 and FM 1382 - and 1S, 287 all vun through the City, or are within 15-30 minutes of the City’s
boundaries.

% IH 20: an eight-lane cast-west expressway that passes through south of the City, linking the City to Dallas and Fort Worth.
West of Fort Worth, IH 20 leads fo Abilene and Odessa. Eastward destinations on 131 20 are Tyler, Longview and
Shrevepore, La.

® M 30: a six-lane east-west expressway that passes through north of the City and also links the City to Dallas and Font
Worth, IH 30 links to TH 20 in west Fort Worth, Eastward destinations on |H 30 are Greenville, Texarkana and Arkansas.

B SH 360: o six-lane north-south expressway running along the western edge of the city, a key route to Dallas-Fort Worth
International Abrport,

¥ President George Bush Turnpike: a four and six-tane tollway from 1-20 in the City making a northerm outer loop around the
Dallas Metrapalitan Area to 1-30 in Garland, Texas.

The City's Municipal Airport serves small piston planes to large business turboprop aircrafi and helicopters. The airport has a
4.000-foot-long, 73-foot-wide lighted, concrete runway, repair service and cargo handling, a helipad, dining facilitics, and support
facilitias for training, private avistion and buginess lying activities, The airport is designated in the FAA National Plan of Integrated
Airport System and the Texas Aeronautical Facilities Plan. Hangar space is available for nearly 233 aircraft, with tie-down space
and FBO services available.

The Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport, the 3" busiest airport in the world in 1rms of operations (10 in terms of passengers),
fies about five miles north of the City's northern border, 1n 2020 it served 47 million passengers and provided service to |78
domestic and 34 intemational destinations [www.dfwairport.com).

POPULATION

The estimated population for 2022 is 200,640, From the 1990 Census to the 2010 Census, the City's population increased 3%
percent,

DEMOGRAFHICS

2010 Census estimates of the City Non-Hispanic population breakdown were 29.1 percent white, 19.6 percent black, 6.5 percent
Asian and Pacific Islander, 0.4 parcent American Indian, 1.7 percent other; Hispanic of any race comprises 42.7% of the population,

Age distribution estimates of residents, according to the 2010 Census, are 64.7 pereent ages 21 and older, 5.9 percent older than
65, and 10.9 percent younger than 8.

The 2010 median houschold income was estimated to be $51,368 (dmerican Community Survey Census),

INDUSTRIAL BASE

Wholesale trade (distribution), manufacturing and retail trade companies ave the largest industrial sectors in the City.



INDUSTRY PROFILE

Industry Percent of Total gross salkes
Wholkssale Trade 32.42%
Manufacturing 24.62%
Retail Trade 21.8%%
Construction 9.12%
Accommodation/Food Services 230%
Admin/Sup port/Waste M gmt/Remediation Services 2.03%
Orther Services (except Public Administeation) 197%
Real Estate/Rental Leasing 1.18%
Transportation/Warchousing 0.91%
Professional/Seclentific/Technical Services 0.90%
Arts/Entertainment Recrestion 0.70%
Information 068
Agriculture/Forestry/FishingHunting 0.48%
Finance/Ins urance 0,.25%
Educational Services (.18%
Health Care/Social Assistance 13%

Source: Texas Compiroller,

LAROR FORCE

Year Civilian Labor Force Emp loy ment Unemp loy ment Unemploy ment Rate

017 08,782 95,044 3,738 3.8%

018 100,962 97,210 3,752 3%

019 101,390 97,781 1,609 3.6%

2020 100,856 92918 7.938 19%

o O 102,479 06,180 6,300 6.1%
Source: Texas Employment Commission.
{13 Dataas of October 2021.
EMPLOYERS

Estimated
Company Product-Service Fpl

Grund Prairvie Independent School Distriet Administration of Education Programs 4,000
Lockheed Martin M issiles and Fire Contral Rescarch and Development in the Phy sica, Enginesring and Life 4,000
Poly-America Inc. Unsupported Plastics Film and Sheet {except Packaging) 2,000
City of Grand Prairic Public Administeation 1,614
Bell Helicopter-Textron Helleopter akeeraft manufaciuring 1,200
Lear Seating M anufascturing 1,108
Lone Star Purk at Grand Prairie Ravetracks 450
Farterra Pipe & Products, Inc, Conerete Pipe M anufacturing 950
Repuhlic Mat ional Distributing Wine and Distilled Alcoholic Beverage Wholesalers OO
Flaw-N-Gate Auto Accessory Manufacturing 00

* Source: City

A-2
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Significant transfers from Business-Type Activities to Governmental Activities:

» §150.000 from Water and Wastewater Fund to IT Acquisition Fund for technology services

«  $1,264,308 from Water and Wastewater Fund to Street Maintenance Fund for payments in lieu of
property foxes

*  $497,500 from Water and Wastewater Fund to Grants Fund for project funding

» $200,000 from Sclid Waste Fund to Street Maintenance Fund for capital project funding

s §98,354 from Solid Waste Fund to Street Maintenonce Fund for payments in lieu of property taxes

+  $4,860,000 from Storm Water Utility Fund te Storm Drainage CIP Fund for capital project funding

»  $48,000 from Airport Fund to Copital Lending Reserve for repayment of interfund loan

Other significant transfers made between governmental funds included the following:

*  $4.598,102 from General to Park Venue, along with other sources, for fiscal operations
*  $1,240,000 from General to IT & Equipment Acquisition funds [annual appropriation)
«  $1,017.829 from General to Grants to fund matching requirements related fo operating grants

«  $5,304,000 from the General Fund to the Copital Reserve and Capital and Lending Funds for future
capital needs and improvements

# 3$1.000.000 from the General Fund to the Other CIP Funds for future caopital needs and
improvements

s $6,641,426 from the Streets CIP Fund to the Grants Fund to fund the City's portion of federal and
state funded projects

+ $1.000.000 from Epic Sales Tax Fund to Epic 2 CIP for capital project funding

* $3,500,000 from Fork Venue to Park Capital Fund for improvements fo infrostvcture and
equipment at city wide parks

*  $200,000 from Lake Parks to Lake Parks CIP for improvemenls to park amenities

«  $2.500.000 from Capital Reserve and Capital and Lending Funds to EPIC 2 CIP for building
improvements & equipment

+  3876,716 from the Park Venue CIP Fund fo the Grants Fund to fund the City's portion of federal

and state funded projects
F. Deferred Qutilows/Inflows of Resources

i Infl f Resources - Unavailable Revenue
The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from the following sources:

Generol Debt Service
Fund Fund Total
Property toxes § 1928476 $ 720013 F 2,648,489
Ambulance 255,727 - 255,727
Total $ 2,184,402 3 720013 F 2904414

In the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, these amounts were reported as revenue in the period
in which they were earned.
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At September 30, 2020, transfers between the City's governmental activities and the City's business-type

activities consisted of the following:

Transters In
General Sectiond Streals Grants Dkt Eplc 2
Transters Qut Fund Fund CIP Fund Furd ServiceFund  CIF Fund
General Fund 3 $ - % 2 $ 107e § - $ -
Secilon Fund - 3 - B 20,833 -
$treets CIP Fund - - - 6,641,426 -
Gronfs Fund = - - -
Debt Service Fund = - = -
Menmaojer Government al Funds - - 884,000 BBETIE 3,500,000
Internal Service Funds = - il =
‘Water & Wastewater Fund = 497,500 -
Solid Woste Fund - - E: =
Nanmoior Enterprise Funds ] = = 4 5
Tolal § = 3 - § BBAOOD 3 P.043471 20833  § 3.500.000
Transfers in
Monmajor ‘Waler Cther Internal
Govemmental Wostewater Woste Monmajor Service
Tromsters oul Funds Fund Enterprise Funds Fund Tolal
Ganeral Fund § 148488238 3 894000 § - ¥ $ - $18.742.667
Section 8 Furd = h = - 20,833
Sireels CIP Fund 43,000 - - - &,704,426
Grants Fund 53789 3.530 - - - 57319
Deb! Service Fund - 2 - 17.955 17,955
Menmgjor Govamnmenial Funds &733,708 116,000 - 1,253,678 15,375,502
Intemal Service Funds 230219 = = 230219
Water & Waslewaoler Fund 1,414,308 - - - - 1,911,808
Sclicd Woste Fund 298,354 - - 296354
Monmaior Enferprise Fundls 4,508,000 . - 4 - 4,708,000
Total } 30547616 $H1015530 % - 1 1271633 % $44,267 083

Significant transfers from Governmental Activities 1o Business-Type Activities:

«  $894,000 from General Fund to Water and Wastewater Fund for capital projecis
»  $100,000 from TIF Fund to Water and Wastewater Fund for Stadium Drive construction work

RECREATION

Recreational facilities include the 7,500-acre Joe Pool Lake, championship-leve] Tangle Ridge Golf Club, Lone Star Park st Grand
Prairie and more than 52 public parks on 4,900 acres.

Parks and Recreation facilities include an extreme skate park, two multipurpose recreation centers, an active adult center,  senjor
center, indoor pool, three outdoor pools, five softball and baseball complexes, two polf courses, 32 tennis courts, a soccer complex,
a central park, PlayGrand Adventures and the recently acquired two lake parks on Joe Pool Lake.

Ripley's Believe It Or Not, The Palace of Wax and Trader's Village in the City are popular entertainment and shopping locations.
Mearby are $ix Flags over Texas in Ardinglon and zoos, art symphonies and ballet in Dallas and Fort Worth.

One of three Class | horse-racing tracks in Texas, Lowe Star Park at Grand Prairic opened for live races in April 1997, The track’s
simuleast pavilion opened in mid-1996.

Professional Sports: the Dallas Cowboys of the National Football League, the Texas Rangers of Major League Baseball, the Dallas
Mavericks of the National Basketball Association, the Dallas Stars of the National Hockey League, and the FC Dallas of Major
Leapue Soccer. All have home games within 5-25 minutes of the City,

NCAA-event schools: Southemn Methodist Lini

ity and Texas Christian University in Dallas and Fort Worth,

Cedar Hill State Park, just south east of the City, offers 355, mastly wooded campsites in the Dallas-Fort Worth hill country.
Amang park facilities are two lighted fishing jeules and boat access to Joe Pool Lake.

Epucamion

Seven public universities and eight independent universities, including health related education facilitics, in the region totaled
enrollment of 157,923 in 2020 (source: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Boand). The universities, among them University
of Texas campuses {Arlington and Dallus), offer proprams from engineering to business and degrees from bachelor's to medical
doctorates.

The Dallas and Tarrant counties public community colleges - the nearest of them Mountain View in Dallas, North Lake in Irving,
Cedar Valley in Lancaster, the Southeast campus of Tarrant County College in Arlington, and El Centro in Dallas - counted over
186,244 students in 2020 (source: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board). Additionally, three technically oriented post-
secondary schools are within 30 minutes of the City,

In addition to lhar degree pmgrnm{, many of these colleges and universities offer business consulting, employee traiming specific
o a pany’s skill d ity health care services, economic and land development research, computer and
information services and library facilities open to the community.

Grand Prairie Independent School District {the “GPISD") and the Arington Independent School District (the “AISD™) predominate
among the six school districts with boundaries in the City.

GPISD comprises 20 elementary schools, six middle schools, two ninth grade centers, Four senior high schools, one altemative
edueation sehool and one early childhood center. Students whose residences are on the Dallas County side of the City attend
GPISD.

Students who reside in Tarrant County and Grand Prairic attend AISD, which comprises of nine high schools, 13 junior high
sehools, and 52 elementary schools (six in the City). AISD has no junior high schools or high schools in the City,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Motes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

For the year ended September 30, 2020, cost reimbursements were as fallows:

Fund Amount
W ater and wostewater funds $ 4305622
Solid waste funds 449,742
Stormwater funds 100,305
Adrport fund 76,479
Other nonmaior govermmenial funds 262,229
Total to general fund b 5.194.377

Franchise Fees

The City's enterprise funds, which use public right-of-way, pay franchise fees to the General Fund as if
they were organizations separate from the City. These fees are not taxes, but are compensation to the
City for the use of the City's right-of-way. These payments, 4% of gross revenues, are reported s interfund
services provided and used rather than interfund transfers, and are reported as revenue (fronchise fees)
in the General Fund and expenses in the enferprise funds.

Far the year ended September 30, 2020, franchise fees paid to the General Fund were as follows:

Fund Amount
Water and wastewater funds $ 3085068
Solid waste funds 386,274
Storm water funds 308,279
Tolal $ 3779421

Interfund Transfers

Interfund fransfers are made to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2) move restricted amounts
from borrowings to the debt service fund to establish mondatory reserve accounts, 3) move unresticted
revenues to finonce varous programs that the government must account for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds
for various grant programs, and 4) make payments in lieu of property taxes.

Two of the City's enterprise funds, the Water and Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund, make
payments in lieu of property taxes to the Street Maintenance Fund, which is a Normdjor Governmental
Fund to provide funding for street repairs. The payments are calculated by applying the City's property
tax rate to the net book value of the enterprise funds' capital assets. Since the calculation methodology
is not the same as that applied to smilar activities In the private sectorin several respects, these payments
are recorded as transfers infout rather than as operating revenues/expenses.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Motes to the Basic Financial Statements
september 30, 2020

At September 30, 2020, o summary of changes in capital assets of the Housing Finance Corporation was
as follows:

Balance Trarsfers/ Balance
January 1, Additions/ Disposals/ December 31,
2020 Completions Reclasses 2020
Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land $ 1612851 $ - $ 7 $ 1412851
Total non-deprecicble copil ol assets 1,612,851 = - 161285
Depreciable capltal assets:

Buildings 20,885,524 574,091 [373.251) 21,086,344

Less accumulct ed depreciation {9.,653,405) [1,006,537) 373,251 (10,286,671)
Total depreciable copital assets, net 11,232.119 [432.446) = 10.799.673
Housing Finance Cerporation

assets, net $ 12844970 5 [(432446) $ = § 12,412,524

E. Interfund Transactions

I und Receivables and Po

interfund receivables and payables are reported in the City's financial statements as due to/from other
funds. At September 30, 2020, interfund balances existed between the Capifal Lending Reserve Fund and
the Park Venue CIP Fund for $90.953 and between the Capital Lending Reserve Fund and Epic
Center/Sales Tax Fund for $3,002,683. In May 2014, citizens approved a quarter-cent sales tax to construct
The Epic Center. Through an inferfund borrowing agreement approved by the City Council, funds were
loaned to the Epic 2 CIP Fund to begin planning for this project. A porfion of the funds loaned remain
outstonding at September 30, 2020,

Al September 30, 2020, interfund balances existed between the Red Light Safefy Fund and the Generol
Fund for $356,283,

Cost Rei T n

The cost of the City's central general and administrative services is allocated to the designated specicl
revenue and enterprise funds, These costs are reported as interfund services provided and used rather
than interfund transfers. Interfund services provided and used are amms-length fransactions between
departments or funds that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they were with an
exlernal organization. The distinguishing aspect of interfund services provided and used are that each
department or fund both gives and receives consideration.

Cuost reimbursements for general and administrative services (indirect costs) are recorded as general and

administrative revenue in the City's General Fund. Indirect costs are recorded as general and
administrative expensas in the funds receiving these services.
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPTS FROM THE
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020
The infarmation contained in this Appendix consists of excemts from the City of Grand

Prairie, Texas Annual Financlal Report for the Year Ended September 30, 2020 (the
“Report™), and is not intended to be a i of the City's financizl condition,

Reference is made 1o the complete Report for further information.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Staterments
September 30, 2020

Balance Transfers/ Balance
October 1, Disposals/ September 30,
Business-Type Activities 2009 Additions Reclassification 2020

Mon-deprecioble capilal assets;

Land $ 4,831,334 $ 273888 3 - § 5108222

Corstruction in progress 28,648,888 14,076,324 [8,417.4469) 34,107,743
Total non-depreciable capital assets 33,480,222 14,350,212 (8,417,469} 39,212,965
Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings 19,790,824 303,167 {185,004) 19,908,987

Equipment 25,178,492 3,884,148 (954,851) 28,107,787

Infrastructure 387 369,747 177.500 14,134,065 401,681,312
Total depreciable capital assets 432,337,063 4,364,813 12,994,210 449,698,084
Less accumulof ed depreciation for:

Buildings 9.351,323) (624,844) 185,001 19.791,166)

Equipment (12.379,743) 2.656.431) 982,214 114,053,960

Infrastructure [207,502,728) {14,931,558) 2,375,448 {220,058,838)
Total accumuloted depreciation (229,233,794} 118.212,833) 3,542,663 [243.503.964)
Total deprecioble capital assets, net 203,105,269 [13.848.020) 14,534,873 205,794,122
Total c apitol assets, net $ 234,585,491 $ 502,192 § 7919404  § 245007087

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental and business-type activities as follows:

Governmantal aclivities: Business-tyoe aclivilies:

Support services 3 4171389 W oter and wostewal er ¥ 14,426,053
Pubalic safety services 8,336,730 Solid woste 1,675,747
Recraation ond lsisure services B.496.741 Cther business-type:
Development services 22,620 444 activities 2,111,083
Intermdl services funds (see note below) 255432

Total business-type activifies § 18212833
Tolal governmental acfivifies § 43,880,758 -

Capital assefs held by the government's intemal service funds are charged to various functions based on
their usage of the ossets,

At September 30, 2020, a summary of changes in capital assefs of the Sporis Corporation was as follows:

Balance Transters/ Balance
October 1, Additions/ Disposals/ September 30,
2019 Completions Reclasses 2020
Equipment $  3l0o7s § = $ = $ 30078
Less accumulated depreciation (310,078) - - [310.078|
Total b = b = 3 = 3§ =
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Motes to the Basic Financial Staterments

September 30, 2020

Assets were resiricted for the following purposes:

Governmental Business-Type
Purpose Activities Activities
Custorner deposits $ 38,000 § 5203046 § 5241046
Deabt service 2,489,225 6,562,083 ©.051.308
Caopital projects 103,301,790 55,676,204 158,777.974
Support sarvices = = =
Public safety 13,288,354 13,288,354
Recreation and leisure 13,713,025 13,713,025
Development services 19,872.460 - 19.677.460
Cther specific purposes 2,671,337 = 2,471,337
Total restricted assets $ 155,381,191 $ 67,441,333  § 222822,524

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2020 waos as fallows:

Balance Tramsfers/ Balance
Octaber 1, Disposals/ September 30,
Govemmental Activities 2019 Additions Reclassification 2020

Mon-deprecioble capital assets:

Land $ 46708853 $ 438,454 L1 10,400 § 47157907

Canstruction in progress 148,140,079 51,801,634 (39.782,867) 180,158,846
Total non-deprecioble capital assets 214848932 52,240,288 [39.772.467) 227316753
Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings 231755795 1,153,874 24,110,845 257,020,516

Equipment 126,745,099 4,251,315 (604,432) 130,391,982

Infrastruciure 632,995987 6,437,938 5407.118 644,841,043
Total depreciable capital assefs 991,494,881 11.843.129 28,913,531 1.032,253,541
Less accumulated depreciation lon

Buildings [B5.788.647) (8.,470.544) 149,359 (94.109,832)

Equipmen! (76,376,066) (10,232,057) 2,950,575 |84,377,548)

Infrastruciue |358.457.028) (24.478,157) 5,748,139 [377,187,048)
Total accumudated depreciation (520.641,741) (43.880,758) 8,848.073 [555.674,426)
Total depreciable capital assets, net 470,855,140 (32.037.629) 37,761,604 476,579,115
Total capital assets, net § 485,704,072 $20,202,659 % |2.010.863) § 703,895,868

54

weaver -

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accomponying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each maijor fund, and the agaregate
remcining fund information of City of Grand Praifie, Texas (the Cify) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2020, and the related notes fo basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentafion of these financial
staternents in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial staterments that are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We did not audit
the component unit financial statements for the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (a discretely
presented component unit]. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors in cccordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, whose report thereon has
been fumished to us. and our opinion. insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Grand Prairie
Housing Finance Corporation is based on the repert of other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with audifing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compiroller Generdl of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements cre free from material
misstalement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiol statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In moking those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appraopriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
intemal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the cudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient dnd appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Weaver and Tidwell, LLP.

2300 North Field Street, Suite 1000 | Dallas, Texas 75201
Main: 972.490.1970

CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM



The Honerable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Opinions

In our opinion based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereot for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

vired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally occepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budget to actual schedules for the General Fund and Section 8
Fund, Schedule of Changes in Postemployment Benefits-Refiree Health Plan, Schedule of Changes in
Fostemployment Benefits-Texas Municipal Retirement Systemn, Schedule of Contributions-Texas Municipal
Retirement System, and Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios- Texas Municipal
Retirement System listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reperting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with audifing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of monagement about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s rasponses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section. combining ond individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additicnal
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, as listed in the table of contents, is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and ofher records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly fo the underlying occounting
and ofher records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial staternents
thernselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The infroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them,

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Septemiber 30, 2020

B. Receivables

At September 30, 2020, receivables, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,
consisted of the following:

Honmgar Indesniol Total
Goverrmantal AClivities Gesnerol SecilonB Gronly Debd Sarvica  Govemnrenial Service Gavemmental
Recelvobies
Property 1oxes § 2463941 % - ] . 3§ - L3 - § - 3 3B0EI2
Soles taxes 5301547 E: . i 5294842 E 12.596,789
Fronchise lees 2393307 - . - 2.7 . 2455.51%
Other 3752804 431 190535 5517 B8G.AT7 551 4825573
Tol ol recetvables. gross 151119599 43 190,834 5517 7.736,581 w1 23686813
Leds
Allgwance for uncollectibles {1 445,447) g - - . - (1.747.397)
Talol receivables, nel 513666252 % 431§ 19083 & 5517 § 722653 3 O3 208046
Water Solid Other Total
Business-Type Activities: Wastewaler Waste Nonmajor Business-Type
Receivables:
Trade accounts 10723180  § 1794174  § 934467 § 13451821
QOther - 16,680 - 14,680
Total receivables, gross 10,723,180 1,810,854 934,467 13,468,501
Less:
Allowance for uncollectibles 4867 855) (1,227,045) (257 478) |6.352,378)
Total receivables, net § 5B55325 § 5B1E09 $ 47é9BS § 7014123
C. Reshicted Assets
Al Septermbber 30, 2020, restricted assets consisted of the following:
Govemmental Business-Typa
Aclivilies Activities Total
Cashand cash equivalents $ 12,099.512 b 2956506 § 15056418
Investments 143,281,679 44,484,427 207,768,106

$ 155381191 $ 67,441,333 § 222822524




City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2020

The asset mix of the City's portfolic is expressed in terms of maximurm commitment so as to allow flexibility
to foke advantage of market conditions, The asset mix requirements are as follows:

Fo Moirmum
1. U.S, Treasury bills and notes 100
2. 1.5, agency or instrumentality obligations (eoch type) 252
3. Repurchase agreements 20
4, Municipal securities (total) 40
5. Municipal securities (out-ofstate) 20
6. Certificates of depasit (per institution) 20
7. Money market mutual fund 50°
8. Public funds investment pool 50

a Tolal ogency nvestments fimited to no more than 100% of the fotdl portfolio.

b State law allows up 1o 80% of monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds. The Cily limits #s exposwre to 50% o
reduce nisk.

In exddition, the City may invest in colable securifies bul sholl imit the total amount to no maore hon 50% of the portfoio. The City
dicl not invest in any secuities different from the categaries menfioned above during fhe 2019-2020 fiscal year.

Grand Praiie Sports Facilities Development
The Carp has recurring fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The Corp's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are os follows:

Fair Volue Megsurement s Using
Guoled Prices Significant
in Active Qikar Significant W eighted
Markets for Observable  Unabservoble  Averoge
September 30, Idenfical Assels Inputs Inpuis moturity
2020 [Level 1) (Lavel 2) [Leveld 3} (Days) Credit Risk
Comh 3 FENES 3 - 1 - $

Irwesimnants measwred of amortized casl:
I estrent Pools:
TexFool 7.017.192 o = - ! AAAT
Investmenis by falr value level:
U5 govemmen! agency secwities:
FHLE 2023.379 - 2023379 - 93 AbA

Tolal $ 11138736 % - § 2023377 §

The Sports Comporation is authorzed to invest in obligations of the U. §. orits agencies and instrurmentalifies,
certain repurchase agreements, municipal securities with a roting of af least A, collateralized or insured
cerlificates of depaosit, and SEC-registered, no-lood money market mutual funds comprised of securities
allowed under the Public Funds Investments Act and public funds investment pools. At year-end, al
investments of the Sporls Corporation were held by the Sperts Corporation's agent in the Sports
Corperation's name. The fair value of investments owned at September 30, 2020 was $2.019,192in the
Public Funds Investment Pool [TexPool) and $1,998,418 in U.S. agency insfrumentalities.

52

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Qther Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemnmenf Auditing Standords, we have alo issued our report dated
March 11, 2021, on owr corsideration of the City's intemal control aver financial reporfing and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our festing of intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That repert is an integral part of an cudit performed in
accardance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's intemal control over financial
reporting and complicnce.

Laawen and Diduwets LEL.
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, LL.P

Dallas, Texas
March 11, 2021



R and
Xaike

Dream Bia Play Hard

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Vi fic
The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, the Public Funds Invesiment Act (Act), to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That pelicy must be written, primarily fo emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; address 1) investment diversification, yield, and maturity, and 2] the quality and
capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing entity's funds may be invested; and. the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment owned by the entity,

The City Council has adopted investment policies (palicies) which are in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, where applicable. The policies identify authorized investments and investment terms,
collateral requirements, safekeeping requirements for collateral and invesiments and certain investment
practices.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as
part of the audit of the basic financial statements disclosed that in the areas of invesiment practices,
management reporfs and establish appropriate polices. Authorized investments include obligations of
the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities (except for morigage pass-through securities),
repurchase agreements, municipal securities, public funds investment pools. SEC regulated money
market mutual funds and collateralized or insured cerfificales of deposit. The City adheres fo the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City are in accordance with local
policies.

The investment policies require that repurchase agreements be made pursuant to a master agreement,
the collateral is a U. 5. Treasury bill, note or bond; the security is held in safekeeping by the City's custodial
agent; and the investment is transacted “delivery vs. payment" so that the City's interest in the underlying
security is perfected. The City does not invest in reverse repurchase agreements. No City monies were
invested in repurchase agreements at September 30, 2020.

Investment Risk
Interest rate risk — In accordance with its investment palicy, the City manages its exposure to declines in
fair values by limiting the weighted average maturty of its investments portfolio to less than
twelve months.

Credit risk — State law limifs investments in commercial paper if the commercial paper is rated not less
than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least two nationally recognized credit rafing agencies orone
nationally recognized credif rating agency and is fully secured by an irevocable letter of credit issued by
d bank organized and existing under the laws of the United States ar any state. The City's policy doss not
dllow investrments in commercial paper.

Concentration of credit risk - Investments shall be diversified to reduce the risk of loss resulting from over-
concentration of investments In a specific maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securifies.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

The City has recurring fair value measurerments as presented in the table below, The City's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are as follows:

Fair Value Measunements Using:

Quoted Prices Sigrificant
in Active Obher Signilicant ‘Weighled
Markels led Dbservable Uncbsarvable  Awveroge
September 30, Idenlical Assels Ingiuts Inguds taturity
2020 [Level 1) [Leval 2] Level ) [Doys) Credil Rist
Cosh 3 18074414 ¥ - k] 5 3
kvt ments measured at amortited cost:
Irvesiment Fools:
TexPaal 125.551.868 - . - 1 AAAT
Inwestment s measured of nel osset vaive [NAV)
vestmert Pools:
Texsior 304g.698 - - - 1 AbAm
Trv ast ments by fair volue level:
1.5, govemment agercy securifles;
L5 Treasurles 5,142,100 » 5,162,100 s 592 A
Mumicipol boncs 51,733,440 . 51,733,440 - 533 AbA
FAMCA 31,419,000 - 31.417.030 - 582 motRated
FFCB &1.014.987 - 41,016.987 = 395 ARA
FHLB 534519585 - 53451955 - 497 AR
FHLMC 876,751 - B976951 - 289 AAB
FrapAA, 16,260,250 - 14,263,230 = 353 AMA
Tefal § 374506471 $ = $228.223493 % -

The amounts for TexStar and TexPool |pooled investments) are reported os cash eguivalents in the
Statement of Net Position.

The TexPoal investment pool is an extemnal investiment pool measured at amortized cost. In order fo meet
the critera to be recorded at amortized cost, the investment pool must transact at a stable net asset
value per share and maintain certain maturity, quality, liquidity and diversification requirements within the
investment pool. The investment pool transacts at a net asset value of $1.00 per share, has weighted
avernge maturities of sixty days of less and weighted average lives of 120 days or less. Investments held
are highly rated by naotionally recegnized statistical rating erganizations, have no more than 5% of
portiolic with one issuer (excluding U.S. government securities) and can meet reasonably foreseeable
redemptions. TexPool has a redemption notice peried of one day and may redeem daily. The investment
pool's authority may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of
frading on majar securifles markets, general banking moratorium or national state of emergency that
affects the pool's iquidity.

The TexStar investment pool is an external investment pool measured at NAY . TexSfar's strategy is to seck
preservation of principal, liquidity and current income through investment in a diversified partfolio of short-
ferm marketable securities, The City has no unfunded commitments reloted to the investment pools.
TexStar has a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem daily. The investment pool's
authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of frading
on major securities markets, general banking moratorium or national or state emergency that affects the
pool's liguidity.

U.5. Government Agency Securities classified In Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using o

matix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to
benchmark guoted prices.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Chaopter 2257 Collateral for Public Funds of the Government Code requires that all depaosits in financial
institutions be fully collateralized by U.5. Government obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or
direct obligations of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities that have a market value of not less than
the principal amount of the depaosits, The above book balance includes menies held in escrow, pushing
the bock bdlance above the collateral value. Per Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, and BNY Mellon's contractual
obligation to the City, the collateral value held in the City's name af September 30, 2020 was $9,207,300,

Grand Prairie Sporfs Facilities Development

At September 30, 2020, the camying amount of the Sports Corporation's deposits included in cash and
cash equivalents wais $91,736 while the bank balance of the Sports Corporation's deposits was $91,736.
The bank balance was entirely covered by collateral held by the Sports Corporation’s agent in the Sports
Corporation's name.

rail il
The bank balance of HFC at December 31, 2020, including restricted cash, totaled $2,034,003 all of which
was covered by FDIC insurance and collateral held by the depository Institution in HFC's name. HFC's
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents had a balance of $576,342, Restricted cash of $102,289 (tenant
security depasits) represents cash held on deposit by HFC for insurance proceeds received for domages
to federally funded assets. The liability is recorded until final disposition of the proceeds is requested by
HUD. Other assetsinclude reserves of $140,275 and bonds held by o trustee of $1,215,097 as a debt service
reserve,

Investmenis

The City and the Sports Corporation categorize its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. GASB Statemeni No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Applicafion provides a framework for measuring fair value which establishes a three-
level fair value hierarchy that describes the inputs that are used to measure assets and liabilities.

+ Llevel | inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
a govemmient can access at the measurement date.)

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
an asset or lability, either directty or indirectty

+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priarity to Level 3inputs.
If o price for an identical asset or iability is not observable, a government should measure fair value using
another valuation fechnigue that maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use
of unobservable inputs. If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than cne
level of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest pricrity level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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Minimum Fund Balance Policy

It is the desirz of the City to maintain an adequate fund balance in the General Fund in order to maintain
liguidity and in anticipation of econamic downturns or natural disasters. The City Councithas adopted a
financial policy to maintain @ minimum unassigned fund balance of 50 to 60 days of budgeted General
Fund expenditures.

Met Position

Net position represents the difference between assefs, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
defenred inflows of rescurces. Restricted net position represents the difference between restricted assets
and liabilities payable from these assets that is externally impesed by enabling legisiation.

Netinvestrnent in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, plus deferred
outflows from bond refundings, reduced by retainage payable and the outstanding balance of any debt
used for acquisition, constiuction, or improvernents of those assets, plus any unspent bond proceeds.

F. Budgetary Control

As set forth by the City Charter, the City Manager submits annual budgets ta the City Council in August
for the upeoming fiscal year. In September, the City Council adopts budgets for all govemmental funds
excepl for the Grands Fund, Police Seizure Funds, Fublic Improvement District Funds (PIDs), Tax Increment
Financing District Funds (TIFs), and the Verizon Theatre Fund. For each governmental fund, budgeted
appropriations [expenditures) may not excead budgeted revenues plus beginning fund balances.

Capital project funds are controlled on a project basis and budgeted appropriations are carried forward
each year until the project is completed.

Note 2. Detailed Notes
A, Deposits and Investments
Casha vivalend

At September 30, 2020, the City reported cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Net Pasition as
follows:

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cash $ 15117508 3 2956906 $ 18074414
Pooled investments 116,499,052 12,099,512 128,598,584
Total cosh and cash equivalents $ 131,616,560 § 15056418 $ 146,672978

Of this amount, the City's cash carrying amount [book) and bank balances were as follows:

Financial Institution Book Balance Bank Balance
Wells Fargo and BNY Mellon $ 18,048,158 $ 19.256,44]
Petty Cash 26,256
Total cash $ 18074414 $ 19.256,441
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
[Unaudited)

Management's discussion and analysis provides o narrafive overview of the financial activities and
changes in the financial position of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas [the City) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2020. It is offered here by the management of the City to the readers of its financial
statements. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the
information furnished in our letter of transmittal, the introductory section of the City's financial statement,
and the accompanying nofes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

+  The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded ifs liabiifies and deferred
inflows of resources at September 30, 2020 by $484,440.019 [net posifion].

« The City's total net position increased $39,421,403, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020,
primarily due toincreased property tax assessments, sales tax collections, and grant conributions.

« At September 30, 2020, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $234,115,110. The $47,731,260 unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents 32.9%
of total General Fund expenditures and transfers.

« The City's total long-term liabilities of $4629,163,768 decreased by $73.034,453 [104%) during the
current fiscal year. In fiscal year 2020, nel bonded debi decreased by $43,908,750, with the
remaining llability comprised of pension and employee related obligations See Table 4 in this
report for further information regarding the City's long-term liabiiities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and andlysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The reporting focus is on the City as a whole and an individual major funds. It is intended to present a
more comprehensive view of the City's financial activities.

The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1} government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial staotements include the
Staternent of Net Position and Statement of Activities. These statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City's finances in a manner similar to thot of a private-sector business. Both
are prepared using the economic resources fecus and the accrual basis of accounting, meaning that all
the current year's revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred oufflows of
resources, ligbiifies, including capital assets and long-term liabiliies, and deferred inflows of resources.
The differences between these iterns are reported as net position. Over time, increcses or decreases in
net posifion may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City Is improving or
detericrating. Other indicators of the city's financial position should be taken inte consideration, such as
the change in the City's property tax base and condition of the Clty's infrastructure (i.e., ronds, drainage
systerns, water and sewer lines, etc.), in order to more accurately assess the overall financial candifion of
the City.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the govemment's net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. If focuses on both the gross and net costs of the govemment's various
activities ond thus summarizes the cosf of providing specific govemment services. This statement includes
all current year revenues and expenses.



City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis — Confinuad
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities divide the City's activities info twa types:

Govemnmental Activities -~ Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general
government, public sofety, planning, public works, transportation, housing, community development,
cultural events, and library. Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees provide the majority of
financing for these activities.

Business-Type Activities - Activities for which the City charges a fee to customers to pay most or all of the
costs of a service it provides are reported here, The City's business-type activities include a water and
wastewater system, a solid waste sanitary landfill, a storm water utility systerm, municipal cirport, and
municipal golf courses.

The government-wide financial staternents include not only the City ifself (known as the primary
govemment), but cbo the Grand Praiie Sports Faciliies Development Corporation, Inc. (the Sports
Comporation) and the Grand Praiie Housing Finance Corperation (HFC) as component units, Both are
legally, financially, and administratively autonomous separate corporations. HFC issues tax exempt
revenue bonds fo supply mortgage financing for low income home buyers and multi-family
developments, and engages in other affordable housing activities. The Sports Corporation oversees Lone
Star Park at Grand Prairie, a horse frack facility.

The Crime Confrol and Prevention Distict (CCPD] is a legally separate entity that is financially
accountable to the City. A blended presentation has been used to report the financial information of this
component unit,

Fund financial statements - The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting fo
ensure cnd demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. A fund is o grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. These statements focus on the most significant funds and may be used to find
more detailed information about the City's most significant activities, All of the funds of the City can be
divided into fwo categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds,

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to accaunt for the majority of the Clty's activities,
which are essenfially the same functions repeorted as governmental activities in the government-wide
sfatements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such Information may be useful in evaluating o
government's near-ferm financing requirements.

The focus of the governmental funds financial stotements is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statemenis. Therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govermment's near-
term financing decisions, Both the governmental funds Balance Sheet and the govemmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconcilction to
facilitate this comparson, These reconciiafions explain the differences between the government's
activities o5 reported in the government-wide statements and the information presented in the
governmental funds financial statements.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Pensions

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, defered outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of TMRS, and additions
to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan confributions are recognized in the period that compensation is
reported for the employee, which is when contiibutions are legally due, Bensfit payments and refunds
are recognzed when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported ot
fair value,

Postemployment Benefits

The City provides postemployment hecithcore benefits to all vested emplovess upon retirement from the
City. Employees are vested in the City's pension plan with twenty-five years or more of service, regardiess
of age, or five years or more of service at age sixty and above. Coverage is also available to dependents
or surviving spouses of refirees. The City subsidizes medical, dental, and hospitalization cests incured by
refirses and their dependents. Recommendations for plan benefits are presented to City Council for their
approval  duing the onnual  budget process. The City's plan  qualifies os o
single-emnployer, defined benefit plan. Complete details of the plan are listed in Note K starfing on page
78.

Long-Term Debt

General obligation bonds and other debt issued for general government capital projects and acquisitions
that are repaid from tax revenues are recorded in the governmental activities column in the government-
wide Statement of Net Position. Debt issued to fund capital projects in the proprietary funds is recorded
in both the business-type activifies column in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and in the
proprietary fund Statement of Net Posifion. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred charges on
refunded debt obligations, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest methodin the government-wide financial statements and in the propriefary funds. Bonds payable
are reported net of applicable bond premiums and discounts.

Noture and Purpose of Classifications of Fund Equity
Resiricted fund balances in the governmental funds are externally Imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other govermments for specific purposes.

Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant fo constraints imposed by the
City Council through an ordinance or resolution, which are considered equally restrictive for the purpose
of committing fund balances. To remove or change the constraint, the City Council must take the same
level of action,

Assigned fund balances are determined by City management based on City Council direction, in
accordance with financial policies adopted by resolution. Assigned fund balances are constrained by
the infent 1o be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance represents the amount that does not meet the criteria for restricted,
committed, or assigned.

Nonspendable fund balances represent inventories and prepaid items.

The City considers expenditures to be made from the most restrictive classificction when maore than one
classification is available,
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+ Pension and OPEB investment experience - the difference between projected and aciual
earnings of plan investments. The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense
over o closed five-year period as required by GASB No. 68 and 75.

+ Pension and OPEB assumption changes - the difference resulting from a change in assumptions
usad to measure the underlying net pension and OPEB liability, These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period,

Deferred inflows of resources represents an acguisiion of net gosifion that is applicable to a future
reporting period, and as so will not be recognized os an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
Defered inflow of resources are reported in the basic financial statements the same as deferred outflows
of resources. The City has the follawing items that qualify for reporting in this category.

« Unavailable revenue - at the govemmential fund level, property fax and ambulance receivobles
recordad but not expected to be collected within than sixty days after fiscal year end are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period that the amounts become
available.

« Pension and OPEB actuarial experience - the difference between the expected and cctual
experience in the actuarial measurement of the total pension and OPEB liability not recognized in
the cument year, This amount is deferred and amortized over a period of years determined by the
plan actuary. The amertization period is based on the estimated average remaining service lives
of employees that are provided with a pension or OPEB through the plans {active and inactive
employees) for the City determined at the beginning of the measurement date.

« OPEB assumption changes - fhe difference resulling from o change in assumplions used fo
measure the underying net pension and OPEB liahility, These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated averoge remaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

« Pension investment experience — the difference between projected and actual earnings of plan
investments. The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense over o closed
five-year period as required by GASB No. 68,

Compensgied Absences

Employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts, depending on fenure with the City. These
benefits accumulate pro rata by pay period. Payment for unused vacation will be made upon separation
of employment. Fire and police civil service employees who have completed their infroductory period
are paid up ta 90 days sick leave upon separation of employment, excluding indefinite suspensions, The
valuation of the civil service sick leave is at current pay rates. The valuation of accrued compensated
absences includes salary-related payments such as the City's share of taxes and contibutions fo the
refirement plan in accordance with GASB 16,

Accrued compensated absence liabilifies are reported in the respective columns in the govermment-
wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Compensated absences are
only reported in governmental funds if they are owed lo seporated employees at the end of the fiscal
year,

44

City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis — Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
[Unaudited)

The City reports thirty one individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund's Balance Sheet and in the govemmentdl fund's Stotement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the City's six major funds - General Fund, Section 8 Fund,
streets CIP Fund, Grants Fund, Debt Service Fund, and the Epic 2 CIP Fund. Data for other nonmdjor
govemmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated preseniation. Individual fund data for each
of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Proprietary funds — The City maintains two different types of propriefary funds — enterprise funds and
internal service funds,

Enterprise funds are used o report the same functions presented as business-type activities of fhe
govemment-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
wastewater systemn, solid weaste sanitary landfil, storm water utility, municipal girport, and municipal golf
courses. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in mare detail, The City has five enterprise funds of which twe are major enterprise funds
— the Water Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waoste Fund. Data from other nonmajor enterprise funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for each of these nen-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhare in this report.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs infemally among
the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for vehicle and equipment
maintenance and the premiums, deductibles, and claims for all insurance programs (e.g. employee
health, workers compensation, general liability, etc.). Because these services benefit both governmental
and business-type functions, thay hove been allocated to both activities in the government-wide
financial statements in proportion to services received. The City's two internal service funds are combined
into a single, cggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements, Individual fund data
for the City's internal service funds is pravided in the form of combining staternents elsewhere in this report.

Notes fo the financial statements - The nofes provide additional information that s essenfial o a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information - In addition o the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information conceming the City's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor govemmental funds, nonmajor
enterprise funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.



City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Confinued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Total assets of the City at September 30, 2020 were $1,342,784,154, defemed outflows of resources were
$24,443,572, totalliabllities were $679,577,059, and deferred inflows of resources were $23,210,648 resulting
inanat position of $584,440,019.

The largest portion of the City's net position, $529,985,182 (77.4%), reflects its investment in capital assets
(land, buidings and improvements, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery, and equipment), less any related
outstanding debt used to aocquire those assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City reports its capital assets
net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1 below is a summary of the City's net pesition at year end compared fo the prior year.

Table 1
Net Position
Govermmenial Business-ype Tofal
Activities Activities Primany Govamment
o730/2019 F130,/2020 F30/2019 5430,/2020 20T # /302020
Cash andinyestments $ 288,433,055 § 259942938 F 113033233 3 1149753733 3 401,566,568 F 374896671
Ciher assets 20,685,432 26,581,255 11,679,221 12403270 F2.364.653 38984525
Copita assets.net 685704072 703,895,868 236,585,451 245,007,090 22,289,563 F48.902.958
Told assels 794,822,859 FRCA20061 361,397 545 372364093 1,356,220,804 1,362784.154
Deferred oul flows of
IESOCES 39.225.451 21525904 4,344,178 2.309.822 43,569,629 23836.724
Currant liokilities 34,644,037 36737593 12,188,778 13.475.698 46,823,435 50413291
Long-term bonded debt 453318815 416024621 57,863,033 51,248,478 511,181,848 467 2731099
Cther noncurrent liobilitiss 146810348 1420234244 24,204,005 19.864.425 191016373 141 850,665
Total loklities 454773820 594988 458 4,257 B34 24.588.401 749,031,654 479577 055
Deferred inflows of
fasouCes 5191644 20878302 548517 1.725.500 5,740,161 22600802
Mat Pasition
Het Investmeant In
capitol ossels ANoIrels 336,590,522 176,237 658 193,394,640 487,259,273 525 5785,182
Restrieted 58899457 58,783,228 59,346,571 41272475 118,246,428 120040703
Unrestricted 4,183,774 701.455 35,349,141 33,472,479 512915 34,374,134
Total net postion § 374052846  § 394080205  § Z70RASTT0 § 288359814 § 445018414 % £B444001%

A portion of the City's net position totaling $120,060,703, or 17.5%, represents resources that are subject to
externdl restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is a
$34,394,134,

The City's net position increased by $3%,421,403 from the prior fiscal yeor due fo an increase In property
taxes, sales taxes, charges for services, and grant contributions, Overall water and wastewater rates
increased approximately 4%.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Receivables and Payables

Maijor revenue sources suscepiible fo accrual are recorded as receivables when they become both
measurable and available. Expenditures incurred during the curent fiscal year but not yet paid are
recorded as payables at fiscal year-end,

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements cutstanding of
fiscal year-end are referred to as due to/from other funds,

Inventories and Prepaid items

Inventory consists primarily of supplies and material and s recorded ot cost when purchased and
expensed when consumed. For the General Fund, inventary Is expensed on an aclual specific-cost basis,
Special Revenue and Enlerprise Funds' inventory is charged out on a first-n, first-out basis, except for fuel
inventory which is charged out on a moving-average basis, Prepaid balances are for payment made by
the City in the curent year to provide services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year, The cost of prepaid
items is expensed when consumed rather than when purchased,

Accordingly, for both inventories and prepaid items, fund balance is classified as nenspendable for an
amount equal fo the cost to signify those funds are not available for spending.

Capital Assets and Depreciotion

Capital assets (i.e. land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than bulldings, infrastructure, and
construction in progress) of all the funds are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical
cost is not known. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and copital ossefs
received in a service concession arangement are recorded at acquisition value on the date donated.
An itern is clossified as an assel If the initial, individual cost is $5,000 or greater, Capital assets of the City
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the govemment-wida
financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Assets subject to depreciation are
depreciated using the straighi-line method,

The estimated useful lives of all depreciable assets are as follows:

Buiidings 20 - 40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-15years
Improvements other than Buildings 20 - 40 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position by the City that is applicable to
a future reporting period, and os so wil not be recognized as on outflow of resources
(expenses/expenditures) until then. Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the govemment-wide
Statement of Net Position for governmental and business-type activities and in the Statement of Net
Pasition in the fund financial statements only for proprietary funds. The City has the following items that
gualify for reporting in this categary.

+ Deferred charges on debt refunding - results from the difference in the camying value of refunded
delbot and its reccquisition price. This amount is deferred and amertized over the shorter of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt.

+ Pension and OPEB Employer contributions — confributions made from the measurement date of

the plans to the cument fiscal year end |January to September). These contributions are defered
and recognized in the subsequent fiscal year,
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ietal

As mentioned earler, proprietary funds use the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accounting. The accounting objectives for proprietary funds are the determinaiion of nefincome,
financial pesition, and cash flows. Proprietary fund equity is segregated into (1] net investment in capital
assets; (2) resticted net position, and {3) unrestricted net position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from the non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally resulf
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with o proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are re ported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

The City reports two types of proprietary funds - enterprise funds and intermnal services funds.

Enterprise Fun

Enferprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and cperated in @ manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent is 1) that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to the general public on a confinuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges, or 2} where the City Council has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earmed, expenses incured and/or operating income generated is appropriate for the purposes
of capital maintenance, public palicy, management centrol, and/or accountability. The City maintains
five enterprise funds — water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services, airport
operations, and golf course operations. These enterprise funds are classified as business-type activities in
both the government-wide and governmental fund financial staternents.

Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department fo other departments within the City, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has two intemal
service funds:

+ Fleet Services Fund - accounts for a full range of services in managing and maintaining the City's
fleet of vehicles and equiprment.

« Risk Management Fund - accounts for premiums, deductibles and claims for the City's property.
liability, workers compensation, and employee health and life insurance programs. The City
reports all risk financing activities in the Risk Management Fund.

E. Assets, liobilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances

Deposits and invesiments

The City maintains a cash and investrment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest earnings are
recorded in the General Fund unless it is required by regulations or agreements fo allocate fo certain
funds, In fiscal year 2020, the funds receiving allocation of interest earnings were the Grants Fund, Epic 2
CIP Fund, and the Police Seizure Funds. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the City considers
cash on hand, demand depasits, and invesiments with eriginal maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.
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The fiscal year 2020 compared to fiscal 2019 changes in the City's net pasifion were as follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Govemnmeriol Busingss-1ype Total
Activities Achivities Frimary Government
F/30/2019 7/30/2020 F130/019 93042020 F3012019 FE0F020
Revenuas:
PrOQICM rev enLes:
Charges lor services % 51,189.057 § 43289730 % 100,691,263 3 106,798,492 § 151,860,320 3 150,088,231
Operating grants and confribulions 39845579 63,784,397 3.007 96,306 39,856,586 63,880.705
Coplial grants and contributicrs B.575.572 417,050 15,541,642 10,049,185 24117214 10,486,215
Grnerc 1ev enues:
Property box 104,378,593 114,020,990 . - 104.378.573 116020990
Soles bax 49,872,182 70,808,392 - = 49,672,182 70,208,302
Cthear fax 2.231.089 1,794,491 - % 22 .09 1,724,470
Franchise fees 147956138 13,903,606 = - 14,796,138 13703806
I eshment income 9776884 7.952.464 £5.360 25770 7,842,244 7978.434
Tolalreverues 302485026 7971531 116,329,272 116,989,753 416,814,278 A3496],284
Expenses:
Support services 0669782 3130741 - - 3.669.762 3120748
Public salelyservices 109,747 831 113728877 - - 109,747 B3 113728877
Recreation ard leiwure services 35232.643 F2,949.455 - - 35237643 32949 455
Developmert services 102,740,820 110,126,927 = = 102.740.690 110, 26,929
Intarest on long-teim deb! 14987574 12,689,147 - = 1 4,987,574 12,689,167
W oler and wostewatar . = 74,389,255 73,211,370 74,369,255 73211370
Solidwoste . - 13,009,026 13,044,195 13,009,024 13.044.195
Municipal girpard - - 2942253 2,500 444 2562251 2529664
Muricipal golt couse = o 3.456.592 3.452.349 3,458,592 3,452,349
Stormwoter - = 2,647 816 2497132 2A4TALE 2497132
Toldl experses 93,398,722 300,805,171 6,446,942 F4,734.710 389,845,644 395537881
Increnses |decrecses) innet position
belore transfers 7,064,304 17.166,360 19,642,330 2225543 28,948,634 37.421.403
Tramsters 7.253810 4,830,759 17.253.810) (4830999 - -
Copita oszel i 5 - - | 108,599] - [108.599) -
Change in fel posilion 14340114 21,797,359 12499921 17 424,044 28840035 39,421,403
Het position - baginning of year 357.742,732 374.082.846 258,435,849 270,735,770 £16.178,581 445,018,414
Nel poslion - end of year § 374.082.845 § 396,080,205 § 270935770 3 DBAISSBIA § 445018614 § 684440019

Governmental activities — Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $21,997,359 in
comparison with beginning net position, primarily due to an overdll increase in property tax assessments,
when compared to fiscal year 2019 ond additional federal funding received as part of the Coronavirus
Relief Fund. This funding was passed-through Dallas and Tarrant County to the City to offset costs
associated with effects of COVID-19 on the City, Net position of governmental operations accounts for
57.9% of total net position,

Business-type activities - Business-type activities increased the City's net posiion by $17,424,044 in
comparison with beginning net position. Overall operating revenues and expenses increased
proportionately. Net position for business-type activities represents 42.1% of total primary government net
pasition,
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Governmental funds — The focus of City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of o
govemment's net resources avalable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At fiscal year-end 2020, the City's governmental funds [excluding internal service funds) reported
combined ending fund balances of $234.115.110, a decrease of $25,669.7461 In comparison with the prior
year. The unassigned fund balance partion is 20.4% and is available for spending at the govermment's
discretion. The remainder is restricted for specific purpases and Is not available for new spending. Specific
purposes include non-spendable inventories and prepaid items [$71,220); amounts restricted by statutes,
bond covenants or granting agencies ($107,921,5868) either for debt service payments, grant-related use,
special toxing districts, or for copital projects. In addition, committed funds ($66,052,337) require formal
action by City Council. Finally, funds may be assigned ($12.238,707) by City Manager with the City
Council's delegated authority. Figures 1 and 2 that follow show the distribution of governmental funds'
sources of revenues and expenditures including fransfers, $343.095.135 and $388,590,079, respectively, for
fiscal year 2020.

Figure 1 Figure 2
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At fiscal year-end, unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund was $47,731,260, while total fund balance was $60,648,430. As a measure of the General
Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both undssigned fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 47.2% of total general fund operating
expenditures, while fotal fund balance represents 37.2% of that same amount. General Fund's fund
balance increased in the amount of $15,448.159 from the prior fiscal year largely due to $10.7M in CARES
funding received from the counties of Dallas and Tarant,

Othet major funds with significant changes in fund balance include Streets CIP, Grants, Debt Service and
Epic 2 CIP. The Streets CIP Fund decreased by $25,430,385 due to an overall increase in street construction
funded from bond proceeds issued for this purpose.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Solid Waste Fund

This fund accounts for the City's landfill, garboge/recycling collection service, brush and liter collection,
street sweeping, illegal dumping cleanup, Keep Grond Prairie Beautiful, and auto-related business
programs, as well as a number of special purpose fransfers related to reserves for landfill closure,
post-closure costs and environmental remediation. All costs are financed through charges to sanitation
customers.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounling relates fo the fiming of the measurement made, regardiess of the measurement focus
applied.

Government- i ts

The govemment-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurent)
are included on the Statement of Nef Position, and the operating statement presentsincreases {revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in the net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recoghized when eamed, and expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incured.,

Govemmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. Mecsurable means
knowing, or being copable of caleulating or estimating the amount fo be received. Available means
collectible within the curent period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities (generally sixty
days). Also, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures (including capital outlay) are
recorded in the period when the related fund liabiiity is incured, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest and expenditures related to compensated absences, which are recorded when
due rather than when incurred.

Maijor revenue sources susceptible to accrual in the governmental funds include property taxes, sales
taxes, franchise fees, charges for services, and intergovernmental revenues. Revenue fs accrued when it
is deemed available except for intergovernmental revenues,

Grant revenues are recognized not just when available, but when the qualifying expenditures have been
Incurred, and all other grant requirements have been met.

The City also reports unavailable and unearmed revenues in its governmental funds. Unovailable revenues
arise when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and availoble criteria for recognition
in the curent period. Uneamed revenues arise when the City receives revenue resources before it has
legal claim to it, as when grant money is received prior to the incidence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the
resource, the revenue is recognized.
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Each fund is gccounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which constifute its
assels, defered oufflows of resources, liabfities, defemed Inflows of resources, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, and fund balances. The fund financial statements present each major fund as a
separate column, while all nenmaijer funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Major funds
are colculated using specific methads oullined in GASB Staternent No, 34, or City management may clso
deem funds as major for presenfation purposes.

At September 30, 2020, major governmental funds include the following:

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used fo account for all financial
resources of the general gavernment, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. All
general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some
other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
improvement costs not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

3 nd
This special revenue fund accounts for grant and confracl revenue received from the federal

govemnment for providing housing assistance to low income families and for the administration of the
program.

Street CIP Fund
This capital project fund accounts for the construction and renovation of thoroughtares and arterial
streefs and roads financed through general obligation bond proceeds and other dedicated sources.

Granis Fund
This special revenue fund accounts for the various federal, state and local grant revenue received by the
City. All grants included in this fund are for specific projects with limited duration,

Debt Service Fund

The City's Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of
principal, interest and related costs on general long-term debt paid primarily from taxes levied by the
City. The fund balance of the Debf Service Fund s restricted exclusively for debt service expendifures.

This capital project fund accounts for the proceeds from sales tax revenue bonds, current
lending/borrowing amangements, and other dedicated sources to be used in the construction of The
Epic.

Al September 30, 2020, major enterprise funds include the following:

Water/Wastewater Fund

This fund accounts for water and wastewater system services provided for residents of the City, including
administration, operations, maintenance, debt service, biling and collection. The City purchased freated
water from surrounding cities, and water is pumped from City-owned wells. Although the City owns the
wastewater collection systern, it has no freatment facilities. Wastewater trealment is pravided by the
Trinity River Authority. Contracts relafing to purchased water and wastewater treatment are discussed in
Note 2M. All costs are financed threugh charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and
adjusted if necessary to ensure the integrity of the funds.
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The Grants Fund increased by $5,547,445 due primarily to fransters into the Granis Fund fo pay the City's
portion of federal and state funded projects.

The Debt Service Fund decreased by $1,245,534 due to payments toward principal and interest.
The Epic 2 CIP Fund decreased by $2,348,749 due to engineering. design, and construction costs.

The Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds had a collective decrease in fund balance of $22,105,861 due to
significant projects taking place during the fiscal year.

Proprietary funds — The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detall.

The net position of the City's enterprise funds and intemal service funds were $285,216,940 and $18,847,294
respectively, at September 30, 2020. The enferprise funds' net investment in capital assets represented
47.8% of total enterprise fund's net position. The internal service funds' net investment in capital assets
represented 10.2% of total internal service funds' net position. The enterprise funds' unrestricted net
position was 10.8% of their total net posifion, and intemnal service funds' unrestricted net position was 89.8%
of their total funds® net position. The City's enterprise funds and the intemal service funds reported income
before confributions and transfers of $11,974,394 and $944,328, respectively. Other factors concerning the
finances of the proprietary funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the government-wide
financial statements and business-type activities. The following Figures 3 and 4 show the proprietary funds'
revenues of $137.641,158 and expenses of $124.204,503 (excluding non-operating revenues and
expenses, and contributions and transfers) by activity.

Figure 3 Figure 4
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual General Fund revenues were $12,397,834, or 8.4%, higher than final budgeted revenues for fiscal
year 2020. Property taxes, sales taxes, hotel/motel taxes, and franchise fees were 80.9% of General Fund
budgeted revenues. Actual General Fund expenditures were $6,285345, or 4,7%, lower than final
budgeted expenditures for fiscal yeor 2020. Budgeted excess of revenues over expenditures before other
financing sources and uses was $12,431,754 compared to actual of $31,114,935, resulting in a net positive
budget variance of $18,683,181. The City traditionally budgets revenue conservatively and this practice
frequently results in positive budgetary variances.

Net change in fund balances of the General Fund, including other financing sources and uses such as
transfers, resulted in a net positive budget variance of $22,504,219,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its
governmental and business-type activities af fiscal year-end amounted to $948,902,958. This invesiment
includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings (includes infrastructure), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The City's capital assets increased from prior year by
$26,613,395.

Major capital projects occuning during the fiscal year included the following:

Continued ambulance and engine replacement

Caontinued construction of Fire Station #4 and Fire Station #3 upgrades
Continued street rehabilitation

Cortinued street assessment implementation

Continued sidewalk construction

Continued improvements to water distribution and sewer system
Wildlife Parkway Phase |l construction

LI T B T |

The City's capltal assets, net of accumulated depreciation, af fiscal year-end was as follows:

Table 3
Capital Assets
Gavernmentd Business-type Tatal
Activities Activities Primory Governmeni
F/307201% ¥/30/2020 Fi30/2019 F30/ 2030 13012019 Ria0fa020
Land § 44708853 § ATISTROF 8§ 4831334 0§ 5105222 § 51540187 & 52.243.129
Constructionin prograss 148,1 40,079 180,158 844 28.648 888 34,107 743 196,788947 T14,266,58%
Deprecioble copital ossels 71,476,881 1.032.253 541 4323397 043 449 498,084 14236535744 1481951827
Accumudoled depraciction [520.641.741| (555,67 4,426) 122P,233,774| [243,703.761) |7 49,87 5.535) [799.578.387)
Tolal copital assets, net § 4B5F04072 3 FO3BP5B48 § 236585491  § 245007090 § 922289543  § 948902958

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found starting on poge 54 in Note 2.D.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
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Grand Prairie Industrial Development Authority

The Grand Prairie Industrial Development Authority [GPIDA] was creafed to issue tax-exempt industrial
revenue bonds to assist in the City's economic development and to evaluate tax abatement
applications. The City exercises no control over the GFIDA's management, budget or operations,

C. Implementation of New Accounting Standards Next Fiscal Year
The GASBE pronouncements effective for fiscal year 2021 are listed as follows:

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Achivities, In Jonuary 2017, This statement establishes
standards of accounting and financial reporfing for fiduciary activities. This standard will become
effective for the City in fiscal year 2021, The City has not yet determined the impact of this statement.

The GASB issued Staterment No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period. This Statement establishes objectives to enhance the relevance and comparability of information
about copital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period, and to simplify accounting for
interest cost incured before the end of a construction period. This standard becomes effective for the
City in fiscal year 2021. The City has not yet determined the impact of this statement.

D. Basis of Presentation

Governmen-Wide Financial Statements

The two govemmeni-wide financial statements, the Statement of Met Position and the Statemeni of
Activities, report information on all activities of the City, including component units. Governmental
activities, which include those activities primarily supported by taxes or intergevernmental revenue, are
reported separately from business-type activities which generally rely on fees and cherges for support.
Significont revenues generated from business-type activiies include charges to customers for water and
wastewaler services, golf course fees, airport user charges, solid waste collection services, and storm
water ufility fees. As a general rule, the internal activity between govermmmental activities and business-
type activifies is elminated from the govemment-wide financial statements except that charges for
administrative overhead services provided by the govemnmental activities to the business-type activities
are included as revenues to the governmenial activities and expenses to the business-type activities.

The Statement of Activities reports the change in the City's net position from October 1, 2019 to
September 30, 2020. This stafement demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function of the government are offset by program revenues. Specifically, the City has identified the
following funcfions of govemment — support services, public safety services, recreation and leisure
services, development services, water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services,
airport operdtions, and golf course operations. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function of City government. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function,
and 2} grants and confributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular function. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported as
general revenues in the statement of activities.

cial Statements
In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City also reports separote financicl
statements for major functions or activities of the government. These financial statements are organized
on the basis of funds with governmental resources allocated to and accounted for based upon the
purposes for which they are spent and the mean: by which spending activities are confrolled. Separate
statements are presented for governmental activities and proprietary activities.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporafion

The Sporls Corporation was incorporated on June 10, 1992, under the provisions of the Development
Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annctated, as amended
{Act] by Resolution No. 2841 of the Grand Prairie City Council, The purpose of the Sports Corporation is fo
promote economic development within the City in order to reduce unemployment and
underemployment, and to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare of, for, and on
behalf of the City by developing, implementing, providing and financing projects authorized under fhe
Act,

The Act provides that the City may levy a one-half cent sales and use tax for the benefit of the Sports
Corperation if the tax is authorized by a majority of the qualified voters in an election. On January 18,
1992, a majority of the voters approved o propesition to levy and collect an additional one-half cent sales
and use fax for the purpose of censtructing a horse racetrack. The one-half cent soles and use tax
increase became effective Aprll 1, 1993 to cover the costs of the project or the principal, inferest and
other costs relating to any bonds or obligations issued to pay the costs of fhe praject or fo refund bonds
or obligations issued lo pay the costs of the project, All bonds were redeemed on September 15, 2007.
The sales fax was discontinued on September 30, 2007,

The City continues fo receive significant financial benefits from the Sports Corporafion as excess earnings
of the Sports Comporation are paid to the City; and, If dissolved, all assets of the Sporis Corporation
become the Cily's property. Although the Sports Corporation is o legally separate entity, the City has the
ability to impose its will upon the Sports Comporation asits Board of Directors are dll appointed by the City
Council, and four of the seven-member board are actual City Council members. For this reason, the Sports
Corporation is presented as part of the City's reporting enlity as a discretely presented companent unit,
Discretely presented component units are presented in a separate column alongside the City's financial
information,

Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation

The Grand Praifie Housing Finance Corporation [HFC) was created fo issue tax-exempt revenue bonds to
supply mortaage financing for low income home buyers and multi-family development. While the enfity
is legally, financially and administratively outonomaus, the goveming body of the City of Grand Prairie
may, al Hs sole discretion, and at any fime, amend HFC's Articles of Incorporation, and alter or change
its structure, programs or activities, or terminate or dissolve it. Additionally, members of the Board of
Directors are appointed by and may be removed by the City Council. However, the City is not financially
obligated for any debt of fhe HFC. For these reasons, the HFC is presented as part of the City's reporting
entity as a discretely presented component unit.

The HEC's financial infermation, for its calendar year ended December 31, 2018, is included in the City's
financial statements in a separate column alongside the City's. Separate audited financial statements
may be obtained by wrifing Grand Praiie Housing Finance Corporation, Aftn: Executive Director,
P. O. Box 532758, Grand Prairie, Texas 75053-2758.

Related Autonomous Enfities

Grand Praiie Health Faciliies Development Authori

The Grand Praiie Health Facilities Development Authority (HFDA] was created to issue fox-exempt
revenue bonds to finance medical facilities. While the HFDA's revenue bonds were defeased, the HFDA
continues to exist only to make decisions from time to fime regarding the defeased bonds. The City
exercises no control over the HFDA or s budget,

City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Continued
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(Unaudited)

Long-term debt — At Septembar 30, 2020, the City had the foliowing long-term iabilities:

Table 4
Long-Term Debt
Governmeniol Business-ype Total
Activities Activities Primary Gov ermment
93002019 43072020 LIPS 943042020 9/30/2019 P30 2020
Bonded dabt § 453318815 § 4160244620 F S7TRE3033  § 51243478 § S5111B1BAE  § 45773098
Compensaled absences 18363930 21064457 472002 469,411 16835742 21,533,868
Oiher post employment benetils 55517084 60,687,581 5,685,150 6275963 41,404,234 66,763,564
Het persion liability 91,550,173 59,113,940 Ph16,044 4,470,085 100,166,307 53,584,025
Follution liakility 77037 200700 . = 77.037 20,900
Closure and post closure liobilily - - B.232.49% B.648.744 8232499 B 446,746
Other liakilifies 1.300.144 1139347 - - 1,300,144 1,139,357
Total long-term debl § 420,129,183 § 558050845 4 B2049038 § 71012803 § 702,1%8.22] § 679.163.768
Long-term debl Fonel
position percentage 146% 141% 0% 5% 1098 9%

Of the total bonded debl, $416,024,620 or 83.0%, is backed by the full faith and credit of the City with a
property tax pledge.

In Novermber 2019, the City issued $19,475,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019.
$21,545,000 was used to advance refund the outstanding Serles 2011 and Series 2011 A Combination Tax
and Revenue Cerlificates of Obligation bonds; and the Series 2011 and Series 2011 A General Obligation

Refunding and Improvement bonds, leaving ne remaining outstanding principal as of September 30,
2020.

In April 2020, the City ssued $4,250,000 in Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2020. $5,125,000 wos used to advance refund the outstanding Series 2011A Water and Wastewater

Systermn Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds leaving no remaining outstanding principal as of
September 30, 2020.

Duting 1his fiscal year, the City retired principal on outstanding bonded debt totaling $40.180,000. The
City's total inferest expense for all bonded debt was $17,227 808.

Additional information is detailed in the Mote 2.H to the Basic Financial Statements starting on page 60.

The City's bond ratings by Fitch and Standard & Poor's are curently as follows:

Standard &
Fitch Poor's
General obligation bonds Abt AlA
Sales tax revenue bonds (taxable) Adt At
Sales tax revenue bonds (tax-exempt) AbF Ak
Water and wastewater revenue bonds ABA AdA
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2020
budget including tax rates and fees that will be charged for business-type activities, One of the biggest
factors continued to be the national economy and uncertainty caused by the pandemic. Building and
development growth rates continue to increase overall; and indicate healthy activities in the residential
sector and commercial type permitting. Although the City s largely built out and mature, there are still
several areas available, mainly in the south sector with higher end residential areas along Joe Fool Lake.
In addition. there is a leveling of multi-family developments, but a major increase in retail construction, in
large part due to tollroad 161 and emerging destination facilities, such as Epic and Epic Waters.

The City populction as of September 2020 was 195,200 which is a 1.82% increase over prior year.
Residential expansions contfinue in the south and new manufacturing and distribution companies
continue to add growth to the City's econormy. Even more growth is expected as a result of continued
development and mebility through the City. Roadway improvements, like widening of Camp Wisdom,
Great Southwest Parkway and 1-30 frontage roads from SH 141 to McArthur continue to make additional
demands on the City for increased services. Our diverse economy, the overall DFW melroplex economy
and major transporfation access all serve to create a synergy.

The following indicators were taken into account when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2021:
*  4.6%increase in assessed properfy values;
o A 379% decrease in budgeted sales tax collections from FY2020 projected collections fo
anticipate possible impacts of the pandemic. There was no change in the City's sales tax rate.
= The City's very strong financial position, favorable bond ratings, and continued low interast rates.

These indicators resulted in an increase in budgeted property tax revenues of $3,207,012 for the General
Fund and §978,931 for the General Obligation Debt Service Fund. The City maintained the sarmme property
fax rate of $0.669798 per $100 valuation for fiscal year 2021,

Budgeted sales tax revenues across all funds were decreased by $4,363,487, or [6,11)% over prior fiscal
year collections with no change in the sales tax rate.

The City's total approved operating appropriations for fiscal year 2021 is $406,504,723, an increase of
1.88% as compared fo prior fiscal year projected expenditures. General Fund opproved appropriations
for fiscal year 2021 is $148,044,434, an increase of 1% over fiscal year 2020, Personnel services attributes 1o
74% of the total operating budget. This increase follows suit with additional staffing (full-ime and part-
time} o support general administration public safety overime, civil service step program and other
market adjustments. The increases were offset by removing budget for frozen positions, decreases in
Employee and Retiree insurance contributions and lower fuel rates. Other changes in total budgeted
operating appropriations include decreases in Parks Venue [$2.10), Capital Lending Reserves [$3.6M)
and Intemal Services Funds ($2.3M);

Fiscal year 2021 budgeted appropriations for the General Obligation Debt Service Fund decreased by
$1,389.922, or (3.9%) from fiscal year 2020,

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2020

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Introduction

The City of Grand Prairie (City} is one of the Mid-Cities in the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex, 12 miles west of
downtown Dallas, 18 miles east of downtown Fort Worth and six miles south of DFW International Airport.
The City was incorporated in 1909, and adopted the Council-Manager form of government in 1948,

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying
basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to state and lecal govemments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
[GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants as published in Audits of State and
Local Governments,

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's basic financlal statements Include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including
legally separate entifies as component units within the City's reporting entity are set forth in Section 2100
of GASE's Codification of Governmental Accounfing ond Finoncial Reporting Standiards. Based on this
criterion, the City reports the following component units as part of the financial reporting entity:

Blended Component Uniis

Grand Praifie Crime Conirol and Frevention District

The City of Grand Prairie Crime Control and Prevention Distict (CCPD) was created in May 2007
under the provisions of the Crime Control and Prevention Act and authority of Chapter 343, Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (Act) by Resolution No. 2007-02 of the Grand Prairie City Council. The
purpose of the CCPD is to provide crime control and crime prevention strategies, specific treatment and
prevention programs, and court and prosecution services including the cost of personnel, administration,
expansion, enhancement, and copital expenditures, and any ofher progroms as authorized by
Chapter 363.

Under the authority of the Act, the voters of Grand Prairie approved a proposition to levy and collect an
additional quarter-cent sales and use tax for the purpose of funding the CCPD which became effective
October 1, 2007. In 2012, citizens voted to contfinue//renew the quarter-cent sales and use tax for this same
purpose,

The CCPD's goveming body is substantively the same as the governing body of the City as the seven
members of the CCPD's Board of Directors are all City council members. The Cily has operational
responsibility for the CCPD, and the CCPD provides all of its services to the City. If the District is dissolved,
its assets will become the City's property. For these reasons, the CCPD is reported as a blended
component unit of the City and Is reported as o special revenue fund within the City's governmental
activities. This special revenue fund was established specifically to account for the accumulation and use
of the quarter-cent sales tax revenue collected for the CCPD.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Gevemmental
Buslrass-Type Achivilies - Enlerprise Funds Achvilies
T Woler T sold Oiher Interncl
‘Woslewoler Wane Tekl Senvice Fends
Corsh Bows from cparsling actvibes - e
Cothraceipts Imm custamsen §  sasTH § wameE? § @ 3 IDAEIR24) 3 .
Coshrecepls inm city and smployss conlribidions - - - 24,781,182

Coshreceipts inminlerfnd services povided . 3 £t - 5947805
Coshrecelpts om oiher govarnmenls . - T4 434 | 44,434 S
L] Oiher oparaling cash receipts 329,445 204,508 7oA, %5 1243315 15954
Cosh poymients 16 sipplies lor goods and'services 44.772.925) |&.250855) (301,137 (SE040547) [4az0.758)
= I serelcas |9.159.00%] |3a7ies| (2,722,058 (150625 16) SLB73
Coah perymients fof inderfund services wad - = 08,279 {acazws) 23884341
Cihar oparaling cosh payments |4.747,158] 11230805 (143831 ] (8141 784) x
Nai cash provided by {uied in] coeraling activities 0980 057 541784 [E 7 30,672 088 LATETO
T E x A S Trorwfens from oihes funds 1015530 3 171,433 LIB7185 (B30T |
Tronihers fo other funds |1.%11.808] (#78.354| 14,908,000 [EAREAT (230217
Conlfatian from ol her governmants 171753 - - 191.733 -
D ream B i 6 P I ayj H a r(l Nat cash provided by used in] nencapifal financing octivities {704.545) 1298384 [1.636.347) |4.439.284) 1313290
cail Bl
Frocesds from imance ol bonds AFvOmn - . 4790000 -
Capild impoc] fees from developan | T mrr = ® VBITSFT
Frascaeds from diposition of cophal ossels (ALF-T ) TR0 E06, 110 1005827 4374
it | copi [a755571) [2:387.429) (zazzavt) L |542.775)
Principal paid an debd [10,350.000) - {1 socoa) {1ous20.000) -
Infestest pod an datf (1 442.083) - 19,7104 11.481.793) .
el couh provided by fuved & L [19.314.256) 12.307.525) 1815857 (23438097 [538.401)
CashBows rominvesing wcivilies;
=l A3 1697954 - GOFRTI -
Puchae of investment secultles = - = . 400 o)
THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK I Moo o PR
Ml cenh i [uned it I 4425 507 VAP - &.125. 498 (400,000}
el 5395379 2735377 RT3 BI0228 (2374991}
Contend dash seuivobents - beginning of vao 18315332 AXARG | 6% 853 24,343 031 5911490
Contand cash equiv chenls - s ol year 3 W0 P LA 227aM § M06IRS0 § 3536
» i # g i
nelcath hom opsnaling aclvifes:
Cpanafing income |los) 3 7783657 1 [Brak ] 3 1592864 $ 120920 3 41754
Adgisimants bo operafing income [Ioss) ko nel cosh
am oparoting octvifies:
Depreciation | 4426 053 lararay 111053 18212833 255432
Provisom for uncalec e occounty {300,703) F2and) 24440 |347.156] -
Changes in ossats and lokiftis:
I ) ch 1140055 123101 99274 1 362452
3 Py " = 3 48,130 i .
e i 103743 . 30440 134,40 12367
[incracs e} decrease in prepaics [1.764.018) - 33,600 113018 w91}
Incraowe [decreese) in accounks poyable 452992 280244 64,577 SETALS {301879)
Incianie |decreass) in reldnoge poyoble 1\7.575) - - (12575 -
Incranue |decreats] inoeorued ok e 9423 14 £04.265 2130995
Increie |decreats] in customes deposits bl ] - [avd) 13 =
Increae |decrease) In unecined ey enus - i 111221 mam =
Incre o [deorease] in comgern e obiences 12572 (304} {18239 (2.600) (1.079)
Increase |decreasa) In CPER lickiiry 69412 55,658 1944 194594 1oz
Increaw [decreosa) in parsion ity [1,458,325) ARSXS 7304 11408 000 (879,277)
Mat oo providad by [used i) operting octivities § 0589007 3 441 260 5 4,041,757 $ 304672088 § 2474700
opiial ard
Cegpital i lopenfgranti L 3 £036,724 3 ¥ 3 2195382 3 8.231 408 3
and
o Shulement of Nel Posllicn:
Uneaibrictad cothand cath eguivolents - end of yoor MTE8I804 3 7100233 § 22093% 3 X0s3m 3 3536499
Realiicied coth ond cash equivolands - end of yeor 1988506 - 2,956,904 -
Tosal cath and cash equivalents - end of year 32370710 0§ nl30203  § 220006 0§ D083l § 33049

The MNotes to the Basic Financid Stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

And Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Businass-Type Aclvifies - Enferpiisa Funds Governmeniol
Monmajor Activibes
Waler Solid Enforprise Intarnc
Wosiewaler Wty Funds Tobal Sarvice Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
W aler sales 3 AT 152407 i - 3 . ¥ 47052407 §
Waostewaterservices 27819236 - . 29,519,236
‘Waler and waslewaler ees 2,411,560 o - 2411 560 -
W astewaoler suicharges Bh4 058 - = B&84008
Sollid wonie lees = 14,036 BEF % 14,038,865 2
Chorges lor services £ - 11267391 11267391 5549 B25
Infergavernmeni a rev erus - 95,304 63048 -
IrdieanC @ premius o 3 : = 24781162
Miscellaneous 329446 205,508 708,345 1243319 16,545
Tolal operating revenuve ED.576.74T 14,244 3597 12072042 106893206 30747952
OPERATING EXPENSES
Solaries andbenalils 7,804,068 138113 man 13,849 308 1.532,93%
Supplies ord miscetlenscus purchoses 1174070 483237 10590049 2729350 2293202
Furchosed services 5341752 L0368 458 1,808,705 13,206 925 1,383,787
nsurance cosly = - - - 23884341
W aler purchasas 17,194,531 = 12,194,531 -
W astewater treatmen! 17778836 = - |17.778834
General ond administrative costs 4,308,622 432 847 143,801 4882272
Franchise fees 3085068 3BE.274 30B,27% ATTE6E =
Miscelaneos 1.682090 B44.531 240,202 2766823 454,277
Deprechation 14,426,053 1875747 2,111,033 18,212,633 255.432
Total cpealing experses T2E14.090 13.107.21% B.479.195 74,400,505 20,805 994
Cipamting income TI52.457 1,137,178 3592866 | 2492700 41,554
MOMOFERATING REVENUIES (EXPENSES)
Ivestment income 25770 - - 25770 -
Gan [loms) on preperly dispodtion 28943 AZ51T 4110 97.5%0 4374
Inferask expenie (601,315} & (38.760) 1640,075) -
Tolol nonoperafing revenues |eapenses) {544,582) 2417 [32,650) 151467 15) 4,374
Income before conltibulions and tronsfecs 7218075 1,199,695 3540214 11875984 P46,320
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capildl contribulion-impact fees 1 B37.577 - 1837.577
Copilal contributions 4034226 2195382 B237,408 -
Tromters in - capitel auels 122,405 e - 122,405 -
Translers o - copital assels E: [122.405) = 11Z2.405) [B3071)
Translens In 101 5,530 . 1,271,633 2287.163 -
Transhess oul {1.911.808| (298.354) {4,908.000) (7.1 18.152) [230.219)
Toiol contributions and ronslers 7099930 1420.759) 11440585 5.238.1 88 (313.270)
Change inrel posilion 14,316,005 778936 211913 17214372 £33.038
Mel position - beginning of yecr 211 853,574 21570484 34792878 268,214,940 18214254
Mol posiion - end of year $ 124167581 % ZTA4TATE % P20 % 285431002 % 18,847 394
fog iwlch Activifes:
Tolal change Innet position £ 17204172
cjust Is to reflect the gidation of internal service lund aclivities relaled o Enterprise Funds 207,672

Change inned position of businesi-lype activilies

The Motes i the Basie Financial Slatements are anintegral part of this statemant.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020

AZIETS

Cash ond cash equiv ahents

Iny estmenls

Fecei doles, rel

Inbergoveenmen ol fecevoiies

v enileriess candd suppii as

Frepaits

Reabictad osets
Coshond ooeh equivolens
I @strrends

Infamal bolonces

Liome popment recely oble

Estimaled urguoranieed residual v e

Copital onel:
Hondepreciobie
Deprecicle, nil

Talal tisate

DEFERRED OUT FLOWS. OF RESOURCES
Deferrad chaige on refunding
Relcled lo OPER
Selcled 1o TMRS Bension

Tofnl deferad oulliows of mepureas

LIABIUTIES
Accounts payatie
Relainzge payabie
Accrued lioblifies
Unernedieyemie:
Cunrend liobiifies poyolhe Mo resticted maels:
Acored inferest
Cuntoman deposlis
Hancurent ol ias:
D wilhin one yeor:
Compenioled aluenced
Frvironmentol remedalion obligalion
Cithr liobitbes
Cutrant postion of long-lerm debi
Due iri rcse 1han one yeor
Compensated cnences
Cher pealempboyrmenl senelis
Cioue ord posiclcaue Rabillly
el pormions fiatsiily
b liotdities
Long-termn debl
Told fiobililies

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Reloled o OPER
Relaled 1o TMES pansion

Total delamed ootiows of resources

NET POSTION
et inestment incaopital ossels
Resticad o
Dt lervice
Copi of projects
Support Services
Public salely
Becrealion and leiue
Deveiopment services
Cher speciic puposes
Focillty lease
Feplocemant resarce
Unrastricied

Tatal nal patifien

Grond *akle Giand Fialike

Primary Govemmen Sports Housing

Gavemimantal Business-Tyne Foelites Finonce
Achviies Aehivikes Tatal D end Corporoion
§ 101810207 3 0, 106353 ¥ 131616580 3 LARER LTS 3 576,342

3.051,540 17406047 0,457 07 ZOEATE -
21.913.89% 7116123 FFLA00AZ 1053454
SFVLET? . LA LR -

123752 94,429 Lt AL J

ATH.AT7 1764018 Z24DA4D arard
12099512 1750506 150564168 | 457 661
143,281,87% &d 4Ba.az? 207.766.106 -
(2.528,70%) 2.926,702 . -

- - B0 &4

- 7420581 -
76753 39210962 246.529.715 ) 16122851
ATE5TFI15 205,794,128 SHLITI.243 = 10799 6T
G0, 43008 1 372364093 1362784 154 46,314,352 14,484,201

2501041 804,649 3,305,590 . -
3,573,235 330474 3507707 - -
15,452 628 1,048,459 16,621,127 -

T1526504 2307822 TREIETTE -
16,641,843 5714496 22356141 19,384 180451

1.003,255 103878 1207081 - -
13,640,802 1033.122 14473574 67500
2786010 1,000,161 ALIBAT
2,631 885 35588 DR4F AT -

32000 5278501 5.310,501 2377
9.005,253 464294 LELATH

20,500 = 00 .

160,776 - 160774 = -
JET5000 2,290,000 40,165.000 - 328,148
12059 208 507 12064321 - <
50,687 581 8278983 46,963.564

- BA4EP4E 0,648 P44
50113940 4470085 £3,584 055

976591 - 778591 -
381147420 ASFERATR 427108058 - 14448527
594968 456 B.5EB.600 679 577 05¢ 17,386 15477398
L5759 423304 4 AB0BYS
17220710 | 302.1%5 18502008 .
J0ETEINZ 1.735.500 2,00 802 -
334,590,522 1PEITABD 579 985,180 | 1347047

477354 5596270 £272,435 - -
LAT4I08 55476204 56250912 -
iEazes * 3183285 - =
12391188 = 12791188 -
11 456,424 - 11456424 2
20157215 - 052215 ”
TI4B05¢ T4R054 2 2

5 . 27.08%.5752 -
< . - - |49 787
TOLASS 33,652.679 34374134 10225054 185,065
§ 396080505 3 FBBIRENL §  éBd4s000% ] 6295 006 H) 110131570

The Moles to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended Septemiber 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Operafing Caplial
Charges Grants and Grants and
Functions/Ac tivity Expenses for Services Conhibufi Confributi
Primexry government:
Govemmental activities:
SUppon servicas 3 31310741 § 4872544 & 195474 § =
Public salety services 1137284877 12,049,004 23,757.141 -
Recreation and |sisure services 32,949,455 9.275.408 S07.507 -
Development services and other 110126729 15092783 39.324,257 417.050
Interast on long-lerm debd 12,689,149 - £ -
Total governmental aclivities 300,805,171 43289 739 63,784,399 A17 050
Business-type activities:
Water and wostewater 73.211.370 BOSTE 74T - 7873803
Solid woste 13,044,195 14.245.589 - -
Municipd airpor] 2,529,664 1,706,648 76,306 -
Muricipal golf counse 3,452,349 2.386,574 - -
Stormwoter 2497152 7,682,534 - 2,195,382
Total business-type activities P4,734.710 106.778.492 76,306 10,067,185
Total primary government $ 395539881 F 150088231 % 63,880,705 § 10,486,235
Componeant units:
Grand Praire Sports Facilities Dev elopmeant $ 4,540,434 F 985025 § - § 521.941
Grand Praitie Housing Finance Corparafion 4,207 049 5987 835 - -
Total compenent units % 10747483 % 4972860 § b3 521941

Genela [ev endes;
Taxes
Propery taxes
Sales loxes
Hotal/motel and other taxes
Franchise fees {cnd 1hose based on gross recaipts)
Invesiment income
Transfers
Totol general revenues and tronsfers.
Change In net position
Mel position - beginning of yaar
Net pesifion - end cf year

The Mofes 1o the Basic Financial Statements are an infegral part of this staternent.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2020

ASSRTS

Curvenl axsets:
Cash ard cesh sauivaienls
I gsirmants
Accounts receiv cbile, et
I erbadies andsupplies
Frapaids

Resirictad osale
Cash and cesh sguivaents
Inwestmends

Tolal curent cssels

Hofiouiren! oesats:
Capital assels:

Land
Builcings
Eqaipment
Infrosiruct e
Cormhuciionin progress
Leas: aecurdaled deprockation

Tatol noncisment gisals
Todol assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RISOURCES
Dk rabmding:
Raloled io OFEE
Relobed to TMRS persion

Total defered ouitiows of resoiress

UABIUTIES
Curran liobfies:
ACCOUNTE paycle
Reloinage payslle
Accrued imanass
Accrued iatilitias
Cornpensaled abrences
Unaaired i siue
Cwrent parfion ol leng-lem debl

Currend lizbiktias poyoise rom resiricled omeis:

Customer depasits

Tobol cument lichiities

Honcurent koblities:

Camparcied dosences
Othar postemnploymenl benefils
Closwe and posdclosurs Bobility
Hat penson llabillty
Leng-berm el

Tatod noncurant ligtilities

Total labiities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOUBCES
Related o OPER
Related o TMRS persian
Total deferred irfiows of reioucas
NEY POSITION
et investmend in copital oty
Rastngted for:
Deb service
Cepital projects
Unrasteicted
Tokal nel postion

B Tiollon o

Buslfiesi-Type Actilies - Enlesprlse Funds

al

Hormoar Achries
Wate: Sabd Enberprize. Indernal
‘Waslewnber Woite Fundy Toksl 3eivice Funds
§ 0753804 5 FRETETY $ 2997324 % 40104383 $ 35240
3411146 1192485 1870.363 17 408 08T 21.000,000
585538 583807 BT, 505 a1z ol
527006 = 67,423 4427 81878
1T76a01E - - 1 764004 444063
2558704 - 2554504 -
64,408,971 75,456 4484427
PRRITNTE 19.£38.568 4,912,557 174428301 25045847
2557138 1748378 FER7 5105223 731566
2ETAATY 9417 15, 208.893 17,508,787 1 BBE B
14525471 1112633 2,451 988 26,307 788 2370415
343.839.000 12092660 45,74%.555 A 481313 -
I0MTITA 240557 | #58E07 4, H0F 73R -
(200549272 13,137,042} [30,217.526) L (3079.97%|
193,998.085 15067 583 35,941 422 245,007 [0 1713865
2IATE 6L 34704151 41053079 349435391 26981317
B4 BT - - 04 a7 -
143,148 09473 B3.E53 38474 23031
530,360 330024 308,113 1148409 958
1.678,357 419459 LG 29872 BawYY
4452427 748409 33382 571448 626023
W0XE28 - - iogs2 -
311099 - 45T 315,580 -
A4a450 257441 131201 1.oaa,22 6415740
o Ls8 BAANR sa218 484394 47,428
A05.406 = 134 555 1,030,141 -
S10000 1700 5,390.000
F0A045 P55 S.B301 -
17.325343 1092 3e8 12300 19.209.992 7089211
' 7 ERTES 517 2
R 131350 1251841 4,275,283 780471
- BAIBIAE - 680,714 -
20268885 122512 1475685 4470085 233230
45403478 = A55.000 45958478 -
51143034 11 Z2apan 290,843 45,350,608 1013703
SB3E9 370 12316380 L0 B4.588.401 B1o2g4
243718 F2060 B7 534 473304 A% 188
571042 37788 343344 1.302.196 &7.942
8 740 457RAR 42092 1,715,500 "z
143010455 13,067,583 A5N6412 93,394 880 1713868
5596371 5,506,270
5474304 . - 55:676,204 .
21 784 451 7.118% 1485607 30,743,957 16953426

3 296,189.38)
et

§  I23494% i Bagazioy
—— s

Adpisimanits fo rellac) The consolidation of intemcl service fund-acliviFes ieloled 1o Enlarpdse Funds.

el posilion of business-tyoe oclivities

The Mates o the Basic Financial Statements are an integral parf of this stalement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the
Governmental Funds fo the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Netchange infund 3 - folal go 1Tunds
Amounts reporied lor govermmenta activilies In the statement of aclivities we
diffarent becouse:

Covernmental funds report copifad oulloy o expendiures. However, in fhe
govemment-wide statement of ocfivities, the cost of those assels is copilaiized and
allecoled over their estimaled useful lives os depreclation expense. This is the
amount of copitol assets recordedin the current pericd.

.Depreciation on capilal assets is reported in the government-wide statemen! of
aclivities but dees not require the se of curent financial resources. Thersfore,
depraciation is not reported as expenditures in the govemmenial funds (except for
internal service fund depreciation of §255,432],

Governmental funds do nol report capiiol confributions.

The nel effect of varous fronsaciions involving copital assets {ia, disposals, sales,
and reassignmenits) are rot reporied in the govemment al funds.

The issuonce of long-term debt {i.e., bonds) provides current finoncicl resources to the
govemmental funds, while repayment of the principal on long-term deb! consumes
the curent financial resowrces of gov emmental funds. Neither frarsaction, howevyer,
has ary effect on nel position. Also, goverrmenial funds reporl the effect of
premiums, dscounts, and similar items. when deb is first issued, whereos the amounts
ore delered and amaortized in the statement of activities. This omount is the net
altect of these differences in the trestment of long-l erm deibt and relateditems.

Refunding bondh issued

Paymeni: o bond escrow agents

Bond principal refirement

Bond premiurm isuad

Amortization of bond premiumsfdiscounts
Amortizalion of loss on refundings

Some expense accruals reported in the statement of activities do not require the we
of curranl financial resources and, therefore, ore not repotted as expendiures in the
governmentol funds.

Accruedinierast

Compensated dbsences

Pollution rernediation obligation

Postemployment benelit obligation

Persion iability

Defered persion ond OFER contributions, ond invesiment

and actuorial experience

Otherliabilities
Cesrlain revenues in The statement of activities that do nol provide current financial
resources are ol reporied as revenues in 1he lunds.

Internal service funds are Lsed by monogemant to charge the costs of certain
aclivilies, such o insurcnce ond flest mainlenance, to individual funds. The net
operating loss of 1he infernal service funds is reported with govermmental activities
(nel of 1he amoun ollocated fo business-lype activities of $209 872),

Change in net posifion of governme nial acfivifies

The Notes to the Basie Hnoncial Statements are aninfegral por of this siatemant.
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% |25.869.761)

61,990,328

(43,625,326}

224,800

(685,351
(19.475,000]
21,984,352
34,785,000
{2,734,530)
3173725

{304,722 37 428,825
331,774
(2,701,706
56137
15,148,108}
31,357,768
133,030,743]

160,777 (B.974,099)

884,777

423,168

B 21,797,359

Nel (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Posiion Grand Prairie Grand Prairie

Primary Government Sports Housing

Governmenial Business-Type Faclifies Finance

Activilies Achivifies Total Develop C 1
3 [24242733) % - o (zam2723) 3% . 3 -
(779227121 = (77522712} -
(23,166,540} - [23,166,540) - -
(55,292,839} 2 [65.292.639) 2 5
[12,689.149) - (12.6B9,169) -
(193.313.983) - [1%3.313.983) =
= 15,237,180 15,239,180 = -
1,201,794 1,201,794 - -
- [524,710) [526.710) -

- (1,085,775} {1.065.775) -
- 7,380,784 7.380.7684 =
= 22229573 22229273 -
[193,313.783) 22289273 |171.084,710) =
[3,033,468) =
- [21%.214)
13,033 468) [217.214]

114,020,990 - 116,020,990 - L

70,808,392 70,808,392 - -
1,794,451 - 1,794,491 -

13,903,806 - 13,703,806 - g
7.952.664 25770 7#78.434 132,971 4019
4.830.9%% {4.830.899] - - -

215.311.342 {4.805,229) 210,506,113 132.971 4019

21,997,359 17,424,044 39,421,403 [2,200,497} {215,198)

374.082.846 170935770 645018616 51,195.503 |798,002)
$ 394080205 §  2BE350814  §  4B4440009 3 48295006 [1.013.197)
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Invastments
Property tax receivable, net
Sales tax receivable
Franchise lees recsivable
Other receivables, net
Intergovernment al receivables
Due from ather funds
Inwentory
Prepaids

Totol assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retainoge pavable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Unearmnedrevenue

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Totol deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALAMCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Tetal fund balances

Total iabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balonces

Sheets
General Section 8 CIP
$ 5,386,209 2819363 % 3,242,696
53.209.057 533,109 15,340,381
1,830,275 - -
6,301,947 - -
2393307 - -
3,141,023 431 -
1,336,126 - -
35344 - -
73,633,288 3,352,903 18,603,077
3,734,440 72,928 2,544,208
= - 281.298
6,137,750 26,690 +
356,283 - -
571962 - -
10,800,455 149,618 2,825,504
2,184,403 - -
2,184,403 - -
35,344 - -
543,119 3183285 5825575
- - 9,951,996
12,338,707 - -
47,731,260 - -
60,648,430 3,183,285 15,777,571
5 73,633,288 3352703 % 18,603,077

The Motes to the Basic financial Staternents are an integral port of this siotement.
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Nonmajor Total
Debt Eplc 2 Go G tal
Grants Service (=1 Funds Funds

= 32768034 % - $ 12471070  § 115295488

2 ik 35,709,438 F647.615

- < - 1,538,585 1,794,491

- = - = 13,903,806

1,234 L 12,061,412 23,507,913

= - - 219 457 3,487 467

= - = 480715 6,239,056
13,834,330 - - 457 %46 43,519,235
= = - 5194377

- - - 3350447 3,684,522

783 = 107,264 01 7552664
136,675 - - 340,517 554 866

= . 513,348 2,140,453
13,973,022 32,768,034 109,264 47371964 317,521,953
- = 3403086 25,286,107
3,886,801 - 7078143 77,283,284
172,569 103,474 22,027,702 25.104.402
12,817,572 = 10399127 85,609,926
532,787 + 5,854,557 43,124,518 61,990,328

- 23,255,000 11,530,000 34,785,000

- 10,786,624 4,903,501 15,8%0,125
17,409,729 34,241,624 3,556,033 102,666,077 350,051,372
[3.436,707) (1,473,590} |5.848,769) 135,294,113) 32,129.419)
P.043.471 20,833 3,500,000 30.54%616 43.999.920
[57.319) [17.955] - [15.375.502) {38.238.702)

- 2,734,530 . 2,734,530

r 19,475,000 = 19,475,000
- [21.984,352) - [21,784,352)

- - - 46,671 1,173,262
8,986,152 228056 3,500,000 15,220,785 6,459,658
5,547,445 [1.245.534) |2.34B.76%) 120,073.328) (25,869 71}
1.715582 3,734,780 40,042,720 127,130,748 259784871
7265027 2489226 % 37493951 § 107057420 §F 234115110
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended Sepiember 30, 2020

REVENUES
Proparty faxes
Sales faxes
Olher {oxes
Franchise fees
Charges for goods and services
Licenses ond permifs
Anes and forfeitures
Intergovernmeni al
Geaneral and adminisiraiive
Rents and royallies
Invesimant incormes
Contributicns
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current operations:
Support services
Public safety services
Recreation and |eisure services
Developmen! services and other
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Princlpdl refirement
Interest and other charges

Total expendtures
Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over (under] expendilures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transters in
Transfers oul
Prerrium on bonds isuved
Refunding bonds issued
Poyments 1o bond escrow agenis
Proceeds from sale of assets

Tolal oiher finoncing sources (uses)

Nel charge infund bolances
Furd balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of year

Nonmajor Total
Debt Epic 2 Governmental Governmenial
Grants Service CIP Funds Funds

2817.994 181.479 40,254473 % 55371006 $ 110,073.220
- 2,200,000 - 54,030,672 125,333,219

- 823,041 - - 2.653.316

- - 2 6,294,842 12,596,789

= - - 62,212 2,455,519
190,836 5517 = BEF 477 4,207,284
5656753 - - - 6,992 879
- - - 3,449519 3,449 219

- - & 35874 35,876

. - - - 35,344
8,665,583 3.210.037 40,254,473 120,114,004 267 833,365
1159614 798 2,300,958 6,202,647 16015415
- 259,564 562,391 1,103,253
133.562 - z B857.040 7.225042

- - = 3,093,636 3,449 919

- - - 32,000 32,000
107,380 - - 2,308,668 2288010
1,400,556 798 2,560,522 13,056,364 30813837
- 720013 E - 2904416

- 720013 - - 2904414

- - = 35,876 71.220
7,265,027 2,489,226 29,000,000 59.615,354 107.921.586
E - 8.693.951 47 406,390 46052337

- - - 12,338707

- - - = 47.731.260
7.265,027 2,489,226 37.693.951 107,057,620 234115110
8,665,583 3210037 40254473 F 120,114,004 § 247833345

Sheels
General Secfion 8 CIP
69856384 % - $ -
34.938.17% - "
255906 =
13503804 -
4,978,448 6,466,819 -
2981599 286411 K
5.758.341 - -
11.918.632 37.308.327 -
5,194,377 % E
334,055 -
7.B33.606 -
ST AT4 - £
1,533,059 78046 16,000
159,544,065 44,139,603 15,000
22783021 -
58,318,340 - =
2802857 - -
13.243.283 41,538,764 3,491,180
1,261,630 80,055 36779
128,429,131 41716817 19,627,959
31,114,835 2,420,784 [17.611.959]
- = 886,000
[16.762.667) {20,833) 16,704,426)
1,115891 10,700 -
[15.446.774] [10,133) 15,818,426)
15.468.159 2410651 (25.420.385)
45,180.271 7724634 41,207 756
60,648,430 § 3183285 % 15.777.571

The Mates fo the Bosie Finencial Statemants are anintegral part of this stofement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Recenciliafion of the Gevernmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020

Teolal fund belance - folal governmental funds 4 234115010
Ameounts reported for govemmental activities inthe siotermenl ef nel position are different
because:

Capital essels wedin governmental activities are nol financial resources, and therefore,
are not reporfed in 1he lunds [excluding internal service lunds” capital assels of $1,513,B68), 701,982,000 N

Caeriginrevenuss are not availoble o pay for current-period expanditures; therefore, these
revenues are defarred in ihe furds. 29044186

Certainassets and liablities do not provide or require the we of curent financiol resources;

therefore, these assets and licbilities are nol repariadin fhe govemmeantal funcs T E x A S
Acerved interes! onlong-lerm dabt {2.531 885}

Uramort ized loss of bond refundings 2,501,041

Deferrad persion and OPER contributions, and invesiment ond acluarial experencs Df(."ﬂ m B i 6 PI a '*j l ia 'd
[excluding ind ernal service fund tolals of $33,109), {1.819.334) 11.850.178)

Intemol service funds are wsed by monagement to charge cost of ceriain activities, such cs
employes heallh insurance, rsk manogement Insurance, and fleet services. to individual
funds, The ossets and llabilities of the internal service funds are Included In governmenial
activities in the govemment-wide stal ement of net position [nel of amounl allocaled {o
buginess-type activilies of $2,928.702). 15918,592

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Mancurren! liabilifles ara nol dues and payablein | he curent petiod: therelore, they are nof
reporl ed in the governmental fund balance sheel. These roncurren liabilities ore os

Toflows:

Long-termdebl {389.935.000)

Uromortized bond premium/discount, net [28.08%.620)

Compensated absences [excluding Intermal service fund totals of $47.428| [21.017.029)

Siher post employment beneflts (excluding intemal service fund tolals of $780.473] [59.907,109)

Mel pension labliify (excludingintemal service fund tolals of $233,230) [58,880.7 10)

Erwlronmenlal remedialion obligalion (20.500)

Dhher lakilities [1,139.347) |554989,735)
Net position of governmenkal activities £ 304080205

The Noles to the Basc Finoncial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis — Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

The City's approved appropriations for capital projects in fiscal year 2021 fotals $50,053,324. Planned
capitdl projects include:

$12,733,480 in street and signal projects

$17,118,500 in water and wastewater requests
$5.229.500 in storm drainage projects

$3,452,388 In fire equipment and stations' relocations
$5,593,016In Municipal Facilities

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an
interest in the govermment's finonces. Questions conceming any of the infarmation provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Controller, City of Grand
Prairie, Texas, 326 W. Main Street, P.O. Box 534045, Grand Prairie, Texas, 75053-4045.
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